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PART 1

OMBUDSMAN ACT



THE OMBUDSMAN OF NEW SOUTH WALES

SIXTH ANNUAL REPORT

(1st July, 1980-30th June, 1981)

Under the Ombudsman Act, 1974, the Ombudsman as soon as practicable after
the 30th day of Jume in each year is required to prepare and submit to the Premier
to e lakd before both Houses of Parlinment, a report of the work and activities of
the Ombudiman for the twelve months preceding that date. By virtue of section 36
of the Police Regulation (Allegations of Misconduct) Act, 1978, the requirements to
muake such annual report B extended to cover the work and activities of the Ombudsman
under that Act abso. The first Ombuodsman, Mr Kenneth Smithers C.B.E., refired
just 13 days prior 1o the end of the period of the Annual Report. In these circumstances
this Report has been prepared by officers of the Office of the Ombudsman in consultation
with Mr Smithers., The first person promcin in this report refers o Mr Smithers, the
refired Ombuwdsman,

The report is divided into two parts. Part [ deals with my activities under the
Ombudsman Act and general matters. Pant 1 deals with my activities under the
Police Regulation (Allegations of Misconducty Act, 1978,

PART 1

OMBUDSMAN ACT

Complainis

During the vear a total of 3 077 new written complaints under the Ombudsman
Act were rteteived in respect of public authorities (including local government
outhorities), ond the investigation of B93 carried over from the previous year was
continued. OF this total of 3970, 247 were compleiely outslde my Jurisdiction, In
addition 8% were excluded from investigation by wirtue of the list of excluded conduct
sef out i Schedule 1 of the Act, In respect of 7, the conduct complained of took
place prior to 1Bth October, 1974, or in respect of local government authorities, prior
o 15t December, 1976,

1 declined 1o investigate 326 complaints exercising ane or ather of the discretions
contained in section 13 (4) of the Act. In addition, in 18 cases relating o local
pgovernment authorities where there was o right of appeal or review and where there
were no special circumstances, I declined 1o investigate. 49 complaints were withdrawn
at varving stages of my investigation,

I completed an investigation in 1 567 complaints and of these I found 263 10 be
whaolly or parily sustained.

1 should poine out that o additben to those found o be sustained there would
be & number that would have been so found if the investigntion had not been discon-
tinugd when seme action had taken place to remedy the matter complained of during
the course of the mvestigation, although at that stage it may not have been clear that
there lad been wrong conduct by the authority, The numbser of complaints diseontinued
totalled 346,

The iodal number of complainis received under the Ombudsman Act for the
full year showed n small increase, mainky a8 a result of o guite substantinl increase in
the number of complaints received after 31t December, 1980, [ should add thag
in addition 1o the above complaints, some 830 complaints were recelved in respect of
the conduct of members of the pq:uﬁ:: focce under ihe pmﬁ.'l.:'nn: af the Folice
Begulation (Allegations of Miscondust) Act, and thess are deall with separately in
Part 11,

More: Throughous Emn;l::trnnlhrﬁmpmm romoun relers to the former Ombudsman
Mr Kenneth Senfthers who retired on the 171k JTune, 1951,
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The figures relating to complaints received against public authorities under the
Ombudsman Act since my appointment are as follows—

Within Jarisdiciion
Bosdias
Liacal J|.||:l::||:I:IL"“.E['E e
. iction
Ordinar¥ | & overnment
12th Mayw, 1975 (o 30k Jupe, 1974 1 928 1o 453 X 381
L5t July, 1976 1o 30ch June, 1977 2d 1442 32 215 2209
Ist July, 1977 1o ih June, 1578 1 7% £535 TR 2929
Ist July, 1978 1o 3th June, 1979 2060 S0 21 3298
Ist July, 1979 1o Mth Juns, 1980 - i A0 GRD 15 257
Ist July, 1980 10 Mich June, 1981 1819 il 1| 247 Y irr

In addition to the written complaints there were many telephone calls received
from persons wishing to make complaints or requesting information, The mumber af
ihese was 3 B29,

B46 interviews of prospective complainants were carrled out during the year.
Many of these were of o general nature and did not resull in & complaint being
lodged.

Amendments to ihe Dmbudsman Aci

In past Apual Reports 1 have referred to proposals which I have made for
amendments io the Ombudsman Act which I have regarded as necessary to render the
Act more effective and perhaps make the task of the Ombudsman slightly easier,

I am very pleased that whilst I did not see these amendments brought into
being prier to my ceasing to bold office as Ombudsman, at least & number of them
have received the approval of Cabinet and are included in a draft Bill approved by
Cabinet for presentation to Parliament in the near future. The principal matters
included in these amendments and in respect of which 1 have made recommendations,
are as follows—

(1) A power for the Ombudsman to apply to the Supreme Court for an order
staying the action of a public authority in situations where the Ombuds-
man is of the opinion that the action, if taken, will negate in whole or
in part the exercise of his functions under the Act

{2) That the Ombudsman be granted immunity from all legal actions excepl
in respect of questions of jurisdiction and actions based on alleged bad

{3) To facilitate investigations in inter-jurisdictional matters, particularly
those involving the Commonwealth and the State.

{4) That provision be made for the appointment of one or more Assistant
Ombudsmen and, in doing 50, to regularise the previous appointment.

{5) That it be clarified that the Ombudsman be exempted from compelia-
bility to produce documents in Court procesdings.
{6) That the Ombudsman be empowered to specify a place at which public
authorities are to produce decuments to him.
In sddition to these, a recommendation which T made that Ttem 15 of excluded

conduct In Schedule 1 of the Act, numely that which relates to payment of any money
as an act of grace, be omitted, was accepted and this was recently done by proclamation,

Unfortunately, some other amendments which 1 have recommended for con-
sideration have nof, up to the present, been accepted and, In particular, 1 mention
that with regard to an extension of jurisdiction to cover complaints by employees af
public authorities in respect of matters in conncction with or arising out of their
employment, My view is that the Ombudsman should have the right to investigale
guch maliers where he considers that the conduct merits inwestigation in order to
avold injustice. As I have stated before, there is no suggestion that matiers which are
covered by awards or which are dealt with by unions should be the subject of the
Ombudiman’s investigalion.

I trust that my successor will be able to convince the Government of the
pecessity for this additional power.

Again it has been necessary because of the increase in the work carried out
by this Office and also becawse of the rising number of complaints received in respect
of the conduct of members of the police force, for a small increase to be made in
staff, Some changes have occurred during the year with retirement and with officers
leaving to take up other appointments.



A sxistanit Onibad seras

Mr Roger Wincent, LL.B., resigned in February, 1981, Mr Vincent had hesn
appointed as from 2nd April, 1979, for o period of 2 vears to deal with maliers
arising under the then newly enacted Police Repulation {Allegations of Misconduct)
Act and to have prime responsibility for the handling of complaints concerning
prisoncrs. Following Mr Vincent's resignation, Mr Clive Roberison, & Senior Investiga-
tion Officer was appointed to act as Assistant Ombudsman, He carried out that task
from Februnry, 1981, and I was most grateful for his assistance.

Deprty Owmbudsman and Sraff

During the year I have been ably assisted by the Depuly Ombudsman, Mr
Daryl Gunter, LL.B. (Sydneyy, LL.M, {London); by the investigation staff and by
all the support staff. T am mest sppreciative of their work.

Locnl Government Awnthoritics

Mine hundred and ninety-one complaints relating to 155 different councils were
received during the year. This compares with 8% complaints In respect of 161 differend
councils last year,

Three hundred and fifieen complaints had still been under investigation at the
beginning of the year, making a combined total of 1 306 Of these 436 were still under
investigation at the end of the year. | declined 1o investigale 128 complaints for
variows reasons, 7 were found to be outside jurisdiction and 16 were withdrawn, Of
the others, investigations were compleded in 627 and 7% were found to be sustalned,
In addition, in 92 cases which were discontinesed for varying ressons during ihe progress
of the investigation, a number would have been found to have been sustalned showld
the investigation have been fully completed,

As previously reporbed, many matters related o the problems arizing from
naise, barking dogs, pollution of one sorl or another, drainage problems and actions
which coused annovance to neighbours, In many cases Council has a responsibility to
act to resolve ihese matters, but the contribution which can be made by the Com-
munity Justice Centres should also be recognized, Many of the problems that are
raised relating to the actions of Council are amenable to mediation through the
Community Justice Centres where the dispute B essentially one between neighbours, In
many cases, Council has not been able 1o tike action because of limitations under the
Local Government Act bai the dispute confinues, This Office has made avaflable
information about the Community Justice Centres at the time of initial Inquirles of
this Odfice, and in zeveral cases, it has been recommended to complainanis that they
should eonsider approaching the Community Justice Centres for mediation of a dispufe
:I.'Im it has pot been possible to have the matter resolved by my Intecvention with

e Couneil.

It is rorely appreciated the extent to which Local Counclls do effect a resolution
of complainis belween nelghbowrs,

One of the most vexing problems in the Local Government area is the concern
expressed by persons who have placed objections to Building Applications or Develop-
ment Applications that their views have not been taken into account by Council when
it made s declsion. Investigation of such complaints in most cases has shown that the
objections were faken info consideration but Councils have been acting within the
guidelines that they regard as being laid down and developed by the Appeal Courts.
Where it is clear to Council that a developer will be successful before the Land and
Eovironment Court, the Council has little alternative bat do approve an Application
provided that it is in proper compliance with the Local Government Aet. the ordinances
and its own regulations. In & mumber of cases, it has boen found that the requirements
af the law have not been fully complied with but they have been in the minority,

An asspciafed problem i the question of notification to adjoindng owners of of
persons affected by a Building Application or a Development Application. This Oifice
conducted a survey of all local government awthorities In New South Wales to attempt
to determime the extent fo which such notification was being made, The result of the
survey showed that with the exception of those cases coverad by section 34228 of
the Local Government Act where a Council is obliged to give notification to persons
affected where an Application is made for the conseni to the erection or alieratlon
of a residentinl Aat-building, most Councils failed to give notification to persans aflected,
A varicty of rensons were advanced for this, the principal one being the additional time
and expense to Counsll resulting from inquirbes being made in respect of the plans
and also many Councils had doubts as to their awthority fo make such plans available
given the terms of the Local Government Act and Ordinances. In my view there is
much to be gained by making neighbours aware of building plans as carly &s possibile
so that their comments can be tlaken into account by the Councils' Officers when
pssessing the plans and that it is in the long run far prefernble to provide for this as a
matter of course. Whilst it does necessarily increase the work of Councils' Officers in



ilse short ferm, it provides @ much befter long term situation in that neighbours can
be made aware of intentions and can resolve very carly whether the proposal is likely
fo be against their imerest. In the vast majority of cases, it will not be against their
interest, and the matier can be resalved immediately. Disputes with neighhours can be
conssberably rediced.

Prisoners

The current year has seen an increase in the number of complaints received
from priseners.

Three hundred and thiry-sight eomplainls were recelved durlng the year, as
compared with 228 complaints received from individual prisoners during the previous
VitAr.

In addition to the 338 complaints received in respect of the Department of
Corrective Services during the year, 144 from the previous year were still under
investigation. OF the total of 482, 243 were still under investigntion at the 30th June,
1981, OF the 239 complaints dealt with during the vear, 7 were outside jurisdiction,
4 were declined for vorious reasons, 11 were withdrown, OF the balance of 207, 79
were discontinued, 95 were found not sustained, 29 were found whelly sustained and

4 were found partially soslained.

In addition {0 complaints received from prisoners about the Depariment of
Corrective Services, | have received 104 complaints related to other bodies, some of
which were outside my jurisdiction,

Particulars of scparnie ilems of complaint reccived since the commencement
of the Ombudsman Act are o8 follows-—

Careective
12th May, 1975 eo 30th June, E976 .. b 24% 23 271
Year Hih June—
9T .. i .. . .. e 196 4 236
| L S - N i, i 443 HZ 525
e . L 284 61 547
1980 . . 234 o 264
14941 . 338 104 42

The subjects of complaint from prisoners are many and varied but it s possible
to observe some basic causes for complaint. These are often the lack of access
prisopers have fo information or to the appropriste authorities within the prison
systern, or both, Although thess problems can often be expeditiously resolved by my
officers, there Is cause for concern that this Office is in such eircumstances obliged
to take on a function which more properly ought to fall to the Department of
Corrective Services.

This Office in many cases is dependent upon replies from the Department of
Corrective Services which, In turn, obtains reports from Superintendents or from
officers. There is a great need for improvement in the speed with which such reports
are provided to my Office. Otherwise good co-operation has been received from the
Depariment. Very urgent matters are now increasingly dealt with by telephone in
the initial stages of an investignion,

As a result of investigations which have revealed defects of administration, a
major review of prisoners’ mail is being undertaken and other matters of importance

have slso been raised with the Depariment for its consideration and determination.
An cxample, relating to the issue of cassette tapes to prisoncrs, is described In the

case potes of this Report.

Regular meetings have been established with the Chairman of the Corrective
Services Commission and these have been extremely helpful,

Publiciiy

The number of occasions when 1 have been called upon to address various
bodies and organizations has lessened with the greater awareness on the part of the
public of the role of the Ombudsman. However, together with the Deputy Ombudsman
and members of the staff, nddreswes have been piven to such bodies or organizations
on over 20 occasions. In addition, | have appeared on Iglevision and spoken on radio
on several occasiona.

T am aware thai there is still nesd o publicize the facilities that the Ombuds-
man's Office offers to members of the public who are concerned with regard to their
relationship with public authorities.
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Visiis

Duiring the year [ have been visited by the Ombuedsmen from the Morthern
Terrilory, MNew Zealand and Fiji and by members of the staff of the Queensland and
South Augsirnlion Ombuwdsmen. In addition, the Chairman and Wiee Chairman of the
English Administrative Law Review Commiltee, namely Mesirs F. P, Medll, QuC., and
0. Widdecombe, Q.C., had discusions with me. Profesmor Stanley Anderson of the
University of Califormin, who is a prolific writer on the subject of Ombudsmen, alsa
called,

Ausiralasian Ombodsmen

The majority of the Australasian Ombuedsmen were in Jerusalem for the Second
International Conference held at the end of October, 1980, Consequently, no Ags.
trafastan Conference was held during the year under review. The next such Cone
ference B fa be held in Mew Zealand at the end of September, 1981, and it is
anticipated that my swecessor will attemd. He will doubtless receive great benefit
from the opportumity to meel with his Australosian colleagues. T personally have
found the close association with them invalusble.

T attended and addressed o workshop on the Ombudsman held by the College
of Advanced Education in Canberra at the end of August, 1980,

hversens

I was fortunate in being able to aftend the Second International Ombudsmen’s
Conference held in Jerusalem from 26th Oclober, 1980, to 1st November, 1980, The
Conference was attended by over one hundred persons representative of Ombudsmen
or members of their staff or persons otherwise pssociated with Ombudsmen, scoom-
panled by their wives.

The subjects discussad included the following—

“The Ombudeman as mediator, reformer—and fighter™,
*The Ombudiman's role in the freedom of infermation”,
“Evaluation of the elficlency and effectivencas of the Ombudsman®™,

Other papers covered the Ombudsman in the felds of local authorities, correc-
tions and mental health, military service and Sfate authorities,

T was the main speaker and delivered a paper on the subject of "The Oirmbsdss
man in the ficld of Tocal mthorities™.

There is considernble walue in atlending such Conference and apart from the
practical wscs, there is the opportunity fo learn from other Ombudsmen the way in
which they regard their role and carry out their functions,

Whilst overseas 1 took the opportunity of having discussions with the Parlia-
mentary Commissioner in London, the various Commissioners for Local Administratbon
in London, York, Seotland and Wales, and also with the French Mediateur,

General Matters
(2} Comploiuir abont comploints

From time to ime, a public awhority gets upset with what T have 1o say
during the course of an investigation. This i good and as It should be for, witheut
differences of opinion, life would fndeed be dull.

I become concerned, however, when a public authority appears to be adopting
# reseniful nititude s o matter of course and T regret 1o say that this situation appears
to have been reached with the Department of Incdustrial Relations,

My concern appeared justified when, during my absence from the Office and
in the course of investigating & complaint against the Department, the Deputy Ombuds-
man, wha wis Acting Ombudsman in my absence, raised o matter with the Under
Secretary., The Under Secrefary in his response addressed to me nsked that T personally
examine the file as, he said, he regarded the Bsues rabsed by my officers to be “pin-
pricking™ nnd “time-wasting impertinences which only Increase times o bring other
cases fo finnlity™,

I did examine the file and, ps o result, my coofidence in my officers was
substantinted. The complaint, basically, concerned the bBsse of whether a former
employee (the complainant) of a company had been correctly paid under the Plumbers
and Crasfiiders (State) Award,



The complainant had worked from 12th March, 1979, until 26th July, 1979,
Only the period 12th March to 20th June, 1979, was covered by the State Award, the
remainder of the period being covered by a Federal Award. The Depariment had no
jurisdiction in respect of the periosd covered by the Federnl Award but, clearly, had a
responaibility to ascertain whether the complainant had received all he was entitled to
under ithe State Award.

The problem was thai, when the complainant’s former emplover adjusted his
wages following the Department’s intervention, n composite adjustment covering the
tatal period of employment under both Awards was made and a composite gross
adjprtment figure was given. Mo split-up or details of the adjusiment made under either
Award and, in particular, under the Stale Award, was given nnd the Depariment took
no action to find this oot

The Department’s attitede was that as the complainant was entitled to receive
£X under the State Award and, as the total gress amount paid by the fermer employer
exceeded this, his entitlement under the State Award had obviously been satisfied. The
Acting Ombudsman pointed this out to the Under Secretary and went on 1o say—

“It would seem fo me, then, that the Department is not in o posttion o say,
with certainity, that the paymient msde by (the complainant's) former
employer included the amount 1o which he was entiled under the Stae
Award in respeet of the period 12th March to 20th June, 1979."

This evoked the response referred to earlier.

I subsequently wrote to the Under Secretary and said—

“It seems perfectly clear that you have missed the point that I made regarding
the amount recoversd in terms of the State Award, In the absence of any
details from the former emplover as to how the (gross) figure was made wp
in terms of each of the applicable Awards (State and Federal), it is ot
possible for anyone, let alope the Depariment, to say whether (the com-
plainant) was paid his correct entitlement wnder either Award. Whilst the
total amount paid . . . was in ¢xcess of the amount underpaid in terms of
the State Award, the Depariment took no- action to cstablish definitely that
the employer’s ebligations had been correctly fulfilled for the peroid covered
by the Siate Award. Chuite clearly, the Department had a duty to ask the
employer to detnil the adjustments made for the period in guestion.

I do not agree with your description of the issues raised by my officers as
gither 'pin-pricking’ or “time-wasting impertinences” .

I think it is Imporiant for public authoritics to realize that, where they have
a job 1o do, it B important that the job be done properly and accurately. “Mear
enough™ i not good enough particularly where the payment of money & in dispate,

(b} Where fo turn

Bometimes, it is difficult o delermine against which public authority & com-
plaint is being made or the best way 1o try to help the complainant. One such case,
received during the year, concerned a woman in South Australin who had travellad to
Sydney in her modor car and there had disposed of it

The complainant claimed thai she had notified the South Australian motor
vehicle registration authorities of the dispoaal of her vehicle but she had received sum-
meonses in respect of parking offences in which the vehicle bad been involved after she
had sold it. The complainant described the position thus—

“On receipt of the first summons {(which was the only advice or intimation of
the offences) o letter was forwarded to the Clerk of the Court giving details
of the change of ownership, etc. Further parking summonses continue to
arrive and epch time the spme advice has been forwarded. In July, 1980, a
letier was received from the Police Department advising that if any further
summonses were received they should be returned together with a copy of the
said letter from the Police Department, This has been done on each oceasion,
but nodwithstanding such, the offences have proceeded to Court and two judg-
ments have been handed down reguiring (the payment of) parking offencs
fines plus court costs or iF nol paid by the date stipulated, jail would ensue,”

The complainant was obviously distressed about the situation and, as a first step,
I decided to write 1o the Under Secretary of the Department of the Attorney-General
and of Justice 19 see if he could help. He subsequently wride 1o me and said, firer
alfa—

. . the low in MNew South Wales provides that cither the actual offender or
ihe owner of the suhject wehicle may be prosecuted for a parking breach.
Where the actunl offender is not detected, it ks the practice lo commence
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proceedings by woy of information alleging that the defendani was the
owner of the subject motor vehicle st the time when n parking offence
occurred,

Owmper” in this confext pursuant Lo section 184 (5) (b) of the Motor Traffic
Act, 190%, means:

“The person in whose name the wehicle is registered except where such
person has sold or oiberwise disposed of the vehicle and has complied
with the provisions of the regubations applicable to him in regand to such

sale or disposal.’

{ The complainant} indicates that she did in fact comply with the appropriate
provisions i South Australia regarding the notification of the sale of the
subject vehicle, although there secrms to be some doubt aboul whether the
notification was ncted upon by ihe appropriaic authorilty in that Stofe,

The prosecution of parking offences in this Stale B entirely a matier Tor the
Commissioner of Police. The Commissioner has the discretion to bring pro-
ceedings against the registered owner nnd accordingly It i3 he who has the
power to withdraw such proceedings where he consisbers il appropriate.

It appears however, thot in relation to the summonses initially listed Tor 4ih
June, 1980, and 13th August, 1980 (the complainant) chose fo make her
representations direct 1o the Court, The 4th June matter was eventually
heard on Bth October, 1980, when the Police offersd no evidence and the
information was dismizsed. The [3th August motter was dealt with on that
date and on this sccasion the presiding Magistrate made an order dismissing
the information under the provisions of section 556a of the Crimes Act,
1905, On both oceasions (the complainant’s) representations were drawn [0
the attention of both the Police and the Court.

8o far ps the summens listed for henring on 27th Auwgust, 1980, s concerned,
there is no suggestion of any representations being made fo the Court by
(the complainant) direct or by the Police on her behall. This matter pro-
ceaded ex-parfe in the ordinary course with the imposition of a penaliy and
costs of 541,50,

I note the Commissioner advised (the complainant) on Ist July, 1980, that
it is not possible for his Department to siop the lssue of further summaonses
unless the necessary adjustment has been made 1o the appropriate Motor
Registeatbon Records (in South Auwstralia) .

The Commisioner alvo advised in the same communication that shoukd
{the complainont} receive any further summonses, arrangements should
be made 1o forward them together with a copy of his communication to
him. 1 can only supgest that (she} continue to follow the Commissiones's
pdvice in the event of any further summonses being reccived. 18 is noled
that in two of the ahove matters (the complaieant) wrode to fhe Courl
amd Aok, [ seems (o the Commissioner, which may indicate some confusion
s far as the Commissioncr’s reguirements are concerned. Unfortunately,
I am not In o position to assist (her) in this regard because, as I have
pointed out previously, this B o matter solely for the discretion of the
Commizsioner of Police.

In relaiion to the ope matier which did resolt in {the complainant) having
an order made against her | am awaiting o decision on a submission 1 have
placed before the Minkster on the guestion of annulment. T hope to be in
a position io mlvise of a final decision in the acar future.

It seemed fo me that the complainant’s problems stemmed from the failure of
the authorities in South Austrafia 16 act on her notification of dispesal of her car and
mot from any action taken by the New South Wales authorities. 1 wrote and told her
this and sadd that T would enlist the aid of the South Awstralizn Ombudsman to try
1o fesolve the matter. At the same time, | suggested that she do exactly os the Com-
missioner of Police had reguested in the event that she received any more summonses,

At my reguest, niy compatriof in South Austrolin took up the matter with the
Motor Viehicles Registration Division of ihe South Australian Department of Transport
and his Inguiries revealed that—

i was possible that the complainant’s advice of sale of the vehicle had
mot been acted wpon;

af the regisiration of the wehicls had lapsed for a period in excess of 12
months, it no longer appeared on the registration records and, therelore,
the eomplainant should have no further problems,
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In addition, 1 ascertained that the penalty impesed on the complainant on 27th
Augusi, 1980, upon the recommendation of the Minister of Justice, had been annulled
by the Governor.

I informed my complainant sccordingly and discontinued my inguiries.

(¢) Acquisivion af fnemd

In my last repori, 1 mentioned briefly the matter of sdequate notice being given
to people whose properties are 1o be acquired for public purpeses and referred to the
recommendations made in this regard by the Imerdepartmental Committes on Land
Acquisition procedores.

The Commitice has recommended that adequate notice of all land acquisition
proposals should be given and the public be given the right 1o object, with the principal
right of objection being st the planning stage and, thus, at a fime when the proposal
to acquire land for o public purpose is, in fact, stll a propesal and while as a matler
of practical reality abternatives could still be considered.

I had occusion to raise with the Department of Main Roads the gquestion of
giving adequate notice o property owners affected by new road proposals or by
changes to existing road proposuls pnd referred the Department to the recommenda-
tions made by the Interdepartmental Committee. Of course, in doing this | realized
that the Committee's recommendntions were simply that and no more as the Govern-
el had neither accepted nor rejecied them,

I received a reply from the Department which imdicated thot It had nod been
the Depariment’s practice o notify owners of properly affected by a future rood
proposal of the effect. The Depariment had relied on the slatulory pianning process
for the dissemination of this information 1ogether with advice to individual owners,
prospeclive buyers and prospective vendors, when they inguire, usually as part of the
normal conveyancing process. The Department realized that this was not o foolproof
procedure Tor ensuring that every awner of affected property was made aware of an
eflect.

The Department said that there were two discreet phases in the development
of a road project—
the development of a proposal;

the development of & detailed design which resulis in the preparation ol
working drawings,

The development of o proposal, from inceplion of investigation o final accept-
ance, and adoption, was & lengthy process often spanning several years. 11 involved
mot only detailed echnical investigation but also consultation with others, and partica-
larly with Councils. During the course of the invesigation the effects on property
are contipually changing. That Department felt that it would not be appropriate o
nolify property owners al this stage.

When o proposil has been finally accepled, and adopied, the position is some-
what different, At that stage properiics which will clearly be wholly or partially
required can be identified, although for the latter the dimensions af the affected paris
are nod known with any exactliude. However, the Depariment pointed out thae it
must be understooxd that o proposal 5 nof a detailed design. A detailed design resulis
in the preparntion of working drawings which show ihe precise dimensions of all
aspects of the future road including properly dimensicis. A progosal is faken fo
what 1z called the “owtline design”™ stage. This s sufficient for an apprecintion of the
feasibility of ihe future praject and, éinter olio, imdicaids approximate property cffecs,
The result is that when a proposal has been adopied there can still be properties in
the “may be affected” category.

Where an adopted proposal i such thal the properly effect can be positively
identified for all properties in the vicinity of the road, the Department B in a position
to notify owners of affected properiics nnd has in fact faken this action where this
has appearcd appropriste (for example, the Sydney-Meweastle Freeway projects in
the Durimbab-Wyong and Wyce arens where the Depariments proposals were dis-
cussed with ihe owners of the affected properties and also al public meetings convencd

by the Departement. )

Furiher, the Department anticipated that it would be in u position to notify
property owners who were affected by the original proposals included in the planning
scheme for the Eastern Distributor between Sir John Young Crescent and Flinders
Street, Darlinghurst, of e amended effect of the new scheme when it is approved,
This approval would follow a frm anncuncemient by the Government  following
discussion with the Svdney City Couneil.
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The Department went on lo say—

“The Deporiment accepts, and always has accepied, that it has an obligation
to advise property owners on request, whether their properiics are, arc likely
to be, or are not afected by road proposals. It concedes that cwners of
properties affected by adopted proposals should be notiffed as soon &s prac-
ticable after final acceptance of the proposals. However, the decision to
notify or not must depend on an assessment of whether any good purpose
would be served by vague or uncertnin sdvice where the Department cannot
make o positive commitment. Each proposal will nesd to be dealt with on
its meerits,”

‘There can be no doubt that the guestion of when to give notice to affected
property owners is & vexed one and there is no casy answer to it. I agree, however,
with the general principle enuncisted by the Interdepartrental Committes that notice
must be given at a time when n person’s objection can be realistically and properly
considered—not when a proposed public work is a [foit accompli,

Since September, 1980, of course, some ndditional protection has been afforded
landowners affected by proposals involving the scquisition of their properties by virtue
al' the Environmendal Planning and Assessment Act, the provisions of which provide
for considerable public participation and debate in relation to land reserved for a public
purpose. The provisions of the Act, of course, bind the Crown and, therefore, the
Depariment of Main Foads.

There is liftle 1 can do 1o overcome the many problems inberent in the guestion
of giving adequate notice of proposed or possible aequisition. However, I express the
hope that the Government will give expression (o the recommendations made by the
Interdepartmental Committes on Land Acquisition Procedures in the nol too distant
fudure,

(d) The Problems of Planning

In my repoert for the year ended 30th Jume, 1977, 1 expressed concern that,
in my view, “. . . far too afien the planners become absorbed in the niceties of planning
and are very much inclined to Forget that human beimgs are vitally affectsd by what
the planner is doing. Where it takes a long tme to do nothing, people are affected
even more™,

A perfect example of my concern occurred during the year., A Council, in
1973, had adopted a Draft Planning Scheme includesd in which were planning proposals
1o relocate a section of State Highway. Such proposals affected a considerable number
of property owners all of whom claimed Inability to sell or adequately mprove their
homes because of uncerainty about and their inabitity to find out whether the propesals
wiould ever become reality.

Several of the property owners affected had made inguiries of the Department
aof Main Roads and had ascertained that the Department had no plang for any road
propasals of the nature included in Council’s Flanning Scheme.

Finally, in mid-1980, the local Member of Parliament complained to me on
behalf of the property owners concerned and [ took up the matter with the Counsl.
At the same fime, | wrole to the Department of Moin Roads seeking information,
for it seemed to me ludicrous that a local authogity would plan read proposals
involving o State Highway if the public autherity having direct responsibility for State
Highways considered the proposals impractical or undesirable,

Council later informed me that the road proposal was deleted from a Second
Diralt Planning Scheme adopted by Council in Aupost, 1980, becanse there was “no
likelihood of the road being construcied by 19907, Of coorse, [ informed my
compiainant of this

I wns most concerned that here was a case where peoples’ praperty had been
sdversely affected for seven years without any real possibility of the road proposal
becoming a reality in that time. My concern was not alleviated when the Department
of Main Roads wrofe to me and, [nfer alfa, said—

“ . . you will apprectate that Counctls are anfonomous planning bodbes,
Provided any such proposal affecting the Main Road system conforms to the
Dicpartment's standards, is compatible with the Department’s awn proposals
for a particular area and the Council involved is prepared to meet the cost,
then the Department would raise no objection to the work being undertaken.”

I began inguiries 1o pursue the guestion of whether a local suthority should be
required to consult with the Department before o rond proposal is included in a Diraft
Scheme. Such “prior consultation™ it seemed to me, would ot least ensble identification
and “weading out™ of proposals which were not “compatible with the Department’s own
proposals far a particular area” and might reduce the incidence of unnecessary adversa
effect on peoples” properties.
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In the meantime, however, the Enviconmental Planning and Assessment legisla-
tion was passed and came into operation. In terms of section 62 of the Environmental
Planning and Asscssment Act, o Council, in the prepartion of an environmental study
ar a draft local environmestal plan, i required to consult with, irrer allo—

*. . . such public authorities or bodies . . . &5, in its opinion, will or may be
aflecied by that drafi local eavironmental plan;™

In addition, of course, before a drafi local environmental plan can have effect,
it must be approved by the Minister for Environment and Planning apd woukd be
carefully reviewed by the Department of Envirenment and Planning in the process,
I am confident that the Department would look to see that appropriate consultation
had occurred.

In view of this, 1 concluded my inguiries.

(el Refusal fo Amend Legivlmiion to Alow Concessions for Improvements when
Assersing Land Tax

I received a complaint from chariered accountants on behalfl of two land-
subdivision companies that raised a rather interesting problem which, at first glance,
appeared to be insoluble.

Briefly, in terms of the Lamd Tax Management Act, when land has been
subdivided, the subdivided lois are valsed and an allowanee 5 given {ie., an amount is,
in effect, deducted from the valuation for taxing purposes) to the subdivider for the
value of improvements (ronds, kerbing and guttering, efc.) fo the land. The problem
aross because, before the date on which valuations were made but after the base date
applicable to the valuations, seme blocks were sold by the two companies. Cuite
correctly, when the wvaluations were actually made on the sold blocks, the Yaluer-
CGieneral issued his valuation sotices to the owners (e, the people who had purchased
them) and pot to the companies who were the owners as at the valuation base date,
The owners, of course, were not entitled o any allownnce for improvements as they
had not carried them ouwt. Unfortunately, the companies could not object to the
valuatlons on the sold blocks, even though they were liable for the land fax, because
the valuation notices had not been directed to them; neither could they requesd new
valuations.

The sccountants claimed that the companies had paid over 52,000 in their
1276 land tax asscssments that they should not have been liable to pay.

As both the Commissioner for Land Tax and the YValuer-General were involved
in the matier I wrote to both and, in particular, sought their comments about a possible
solution to what seemed to be a legal impasse,

I received firstly a long reply from the Commissioner which set out the relevant
provisions of the Land Tax Mamagement Act and the Yaluatiom of Lamd Act and

concluded by saying—
“The land tax assessments for the 1976 and 1977 tax years in relation to the
subject items of land appear to be correct and in accerdance wilth the Act.™

MNeither 1 nor the complainanis had ever contended otherwise but I was dis-
appointed that the problem involved in the complaint had not been attacked and no
suggestions had been made about how it could be overcome,

Then, | recerved a comprehensive reply from the Valuer-General. In his usuwal
forthright and pragmatic way, the then Valeer-General, Mr Bird, faced the igsue
squarely and coacloded his letter by saying—

“There is one contribution which I may be able to make to alleviate recur-
rence of some of the types of difficulties for similar circumstances as they
arise in the future, That is, by adminisirative action, | will avedd incloding
in the one valuing action separate valuations caused by sale of part of land
and which would otherwise include sales before and after the commence-
ment of & rating vear, Thereby there would be available to rating authorithes
and the Lamd Tax Commissioner values of all land 85 it was held at the
3lst December of ench year,

Whilst that action, if carried out in the subject case, could have alleviated
the present difficultics raised by the complainants, nonctheless 1 have no power
to reopen the matters to cancel the valuations made and to remake them
with retrospective effect,

In any event the scope for avolding future simblar problems, resling as it
does on the watchfulness of my officers, I8 too fenwows and unreliable in a
taxation system and needs o more positive legislative remedy, This T believe
needs an amendment to the Land Tax Acts, whildd they continue fo contain
the value and valuation prescriptions, which would enable the Commissiones
fo request retrospective action to provide specinl valuntions as at the com-
mencement of each land tax vear,
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In the meantime | have issusd instructons aleding my officers 1o the need
to take action which will minimize the subject problems.

As far as your complainonis are concerped they miay have 1o seek some
cx gratis adjustment of their fax, and, in this regard T would readily provide
assistance and advice if requested o do s

I considersd that, in the light of the Valuer-General's adyice, | should pursue
with the Commissloner the questions of amending the legislation and making some
adjustment to the fand fax assessed in respeet of the two companies as an act of grace,
Befare T did so, however, T asked the Valwer-General if he objected to my making
known to the Commissioner the views that he had expressed. The Valuer-General
told me that he had “no objections whatsoever” and e went on o say—

*. .. Provision should be mode for the Commssioner to be able o reguest
the valver (Valuer-Generel in situations where the Valuation of Land Act
applies) to provide a specinl valuation in all cases where there is no valua-
tign standing in the namc of a taxpayer at relevant date (the commencement
of the tax year).

I place emphasis on the ownership by the tospayer; lirst, because it is a
personal tox and, secondly, and perhaps. more importantly in the subject
closs of cases, became the subject copcessions built inte the system are
personal to the owner who made them,”

I then took up the matter again with the Commissioner.

The Commissioner in October, 1979, replicd and said that he propoded 1o
recommend (o the Treasury that the Land Tax Management Act be amended so as to
create, for land tax purposes only, an allowance to be deducted from the unimproved
valoe and 1o enable the Valuer-General to determine such an allowance. He added
ithat, &8 & concession for the benefit of taxpayers involved, he also intended (o ask the
Treasurer to approve that the Act be administesed in accordance with the proposed
amendeents, pending actual amendment of the Act, and that such approval apply
io the companies concerned in the complaint made to me and o any other similar
situntions which might arise prior to the Act being amended. The Commissioner said
that he would frsily consult with the Valuer-General as the operation of the propesed
amendmient would invalve that officer.

In December, 1979, the Commissioner informed mie that he had written to the
Treasury along the lines outlined abowe,

I considered the Commisiion's approach In the matler to be completely salis-
factory amd I was confident that, in the face of the views expressed by both the
Valuer-General ond the Commissioner, the siiuation that existed and which so clearly
eperated unfairly and unjustly to the detriment of taxpayers would be quickly rectified.
Alas—this was not to be.

Between Decembor, 1979, and Okctober, 1980, the Commissioner kepl me
informed 85 o the progress of his recommendotions and it was clear that there was
no progress, even though the Commissioner had again written to the Treasury on 9th
Detober, 1980, recommending again the changes he had earlier put forward,

On 29t October, 1980, 1 wrote 1o the Secretary of the Treasury and asked
him fo let me know what was happening and when the Commissioners recommenta-
tions might be acted upon, Finally, in April, 1981, the Secretary replied and spid
frfer alli—

“Mo amendments have been made to the Lapd Tox Managemeni Act since
1975 but the Commissioner of Land Tax has drawn attention to & number of
mreas where he fecls that the adminisiration of the Act could be improved,
including the matters referred to in the representations which were made to

In addition, the Commissioner and (he Treasury make a detailed
review of the Land Tax Monagement Act and the Land Tax Act as part
of the Budget review process cach year and a report Bs furnished to the
Government on the resulis of that review,

The question of the amendments which might be made to the legislation
s considered by the Government as part of its overall Budget strategy.
For a mumber of reasons Ministers have declded against the Acts being
pmended, 1 might mention that Minsters have been conscious of the desir-
ahility of making such amendments but overall Budgetary considerations
have precluded ihem from giving approval. In this connection it & appreci-
ated that the present provisions in relation to the deductible allowances for
improvements effected by the owner result in a higher tax being payable in a
purtber of instances but there are many other casés where reliel from land
tax could be considered 1o be at beast as justified.

The Commissioner’s suggéstion that the Minister suthorize him 1o make
pssessments 88 o voriation to staiwe has certalnly been taken fully into
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sccount.  However, in addition to the question of equity so far as the opera-
tion of the Land Tax Managersent Act s concerned, there is the very impor-
tant consideration that Parliament is becoming incrensingly critical of the
use of this procedure particularly where taxing begislation is concerned.

As a result of your further inquiries Treasury will ensure that the matter is
again drawn specifically to the Government’s attention when next year's
Budget is being formulated and we will seek a clear Ministerial direction as
ta whether, if the Act is not to be amended, the Government would be
prepared to authorize a variation of statute to cover the particular cases.
I mast siress, however, that I would be compelled to bring to the Govern-
ment’s atteniion other areas where relief from land tax could be considersd
o be equally warranted.”

1 noted all that the Secretary had to say with concern amnd disappointment and
I replied to him in the following terms—

“l am concerned that, quite clearly, an anomalous and unjust situstion is
operating which can be remedied by amendment of the appropriate legislation,
This has been recognized by both the Valuer-General and the Land Tax
Commissioner. Again, the Commissioner, recognizing that persons affected
by the particular provisions of the Act involved have been seriously dis-
advantaged, has recommended that he be authorized to administer the Act,
pending amendment, i a way designed fo remove such disadvantage.

I am disappointed thai, in the face of clear evidence that the law, as It
stands, is resulting in injustice and disadvantage to taxpayers, the Government
has not seen is way clear to authorize amendment of the offending legislation.

I have seriously considered whether, in this particular case, 1 should find
the conduct of the Land Tax Commissioner 10 be wrong in terms of section
5 (2} (b1} of the Ombudsman Act. That section provides that conduct of a
public authority is wrong if it is in sccordance with any law or established
practice but the law or practice is, of may be, unreasonable, unjust, oppressive
o improperly discriminatory. However, | have reached the view that 1o
lake this course would be unfair to the Commissioner in the light of his
efforts to have the law amended and to remedy the injustice that has occurred
and, no doubt, will continue o occur,

I, of course, am unable 1o intervene so far as the Government's decision, as
related by vou, is concerned excepd 1o bring the facts to the notice of the
public when I next report to Parlinment and 1 propose to do so,

In the meantime, | note your assurance that the matter will again be drawn
io the Government’s aitention when next vear's Budget is being formulated.”

I informed my complainants and the Land Tax Commissioner of my views, of
my inability to fake the matier further in the light of the Government’s decision and
of the fact that I proposed to include details of the matter in this report.

I can only express a fervent hope that the Governmend will aci in the manner
recommended by its taxing officer, the Commissioner, and so remedy the unjust and
unfair situation that has deliberntely been allowed to continue in operation. It may
well be, as the Secretary of the Treasury sabd in his letter, that there are “many other
cases” where relief from land tax would be justified. My only comment is that, if
relief is indeed justified. then the Government should act te give such relief.

(f} Peavients in Povehiatric Hospitals
On page 14 of my last Annual Report | raised once again the problem of fecs
payable by long term patients in psychiatric hospitals.

Whilst almost everyone recognizes the existence of a problem, progress has been
slow in achieving justice for thes: people.

| have been informed that the Commonwealth is not prepared 1o accept responsi-
bility but I do understand that involved in a review of the State Mentnl Health A,
which is now under consideration, are proposals which may lead to a more satisfactory
amd equitable situation. 1 brust that this position s achieved in the not far distand future.

Appendices
A selected number of cases dealt with during the year are set out in SUMTary

form in Appendix "A", T have endeavoured to ensure that the identity of the com-
plainant ia not revenled,

Appendix “B” is n statistical summary of complainis,
& SE4IE—2
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RUILDERS LICENSING BOARD

Offer of inadequale amount in setilement of claim

i & somefioies the case that, on ilke materizl submitted by o complainant, 1
kave considerable doubt that the complainant has faken sufficient action 1o resolve
his or her problem with the relevant public authority and, therefore, whether | should
embark on an investigation under the Ombodsman Act,

Omn some oocasions, 1 attempt to resclve my doubtd by seeking forther informa-
tlon from the complainant. On others, as in this case, | make sone preliminary inquiries
with the public suthority and inform both the authority and the complainant that 1
will decide whether 1 will investigate the matter in the light of the results of my
preliminary inguirics.

My complainant had entered into a contract with a builder for the construction
of & home, The builder failed o complete the work and my complainant ppproached
the Board, As a resuli, the builder was disciplined in terms of the Builders Licensing
Act and the complainant was invited to make o claim under the House Purchasers
Agreement insurance provisions of the Act.

The complainant in his letter to me which 1 received on Tth January, 1981,
sxid—
“{1 have a) Solicitor scting on my behalf . . . bul (he maiter has once again

become stalemated in so far as she has requested my further instruction
following the Board's offer of $1,000 compensation,

The final figure of the cottage s in excess of 560,000 but the Board's assess.
ment process has arrived at the figure of $1.000 compensation. | would be
prepared 1o settle for $5.000 which I understand is the maximum under these
circumstances.”

He had written to the Board following his Solicitor's request for instructions
but, he claimed, had not received a reply.

I wrote 1o the complainant and tokd him that 1 had not decided whether I should
investigate his complaint. [ expressed some surprise that he had clected 10 write
directly to the Board, following the offer of $1.000, instead of consulting with and
instructing his legal representative. Motwithstanding this, 1 asked the Board to let me
know the circumsiances.

The Board's reply was quite comprehensive and the events that had occurred
were related as follows:

{a) On 1%h March, 1980, the complainamt lodged Notification of Claim
under clause 4 (b)—completion costs—aof the House Purchasers Agree-
ment. The claim was investigated and the costs to complete the builder's
work was assessed by the Boards Inspection Branch.

(b} In so doing, the Branch also estimated a fair and reasonmble price for
the original contract. This was done as the buflder had admitted to the
investigating Inspector that the contract had been considerably under-
guoted. In calculating o purchaser's loss under clause 4 {b) the Board
has the right under clause 2 (2) of the House Purchasers Agresment lo
adjusi the original contract price 10 a “reasonable” price, so as 10 remove
any unjust gain the purchaser may achieve from a le=s than reasonable
original price;

{e) Whilst the conditions precedent 1o establishing a valid claim under clause
4 (b) appeared to have been fulfilled, clause 2 (2) was applied as

fallows—
Aszessed Comt to Complete | ; oo 521,000
Adjusted Original Contract Price .. 560,000
Lers Payments by the complainant . R0000
—_— §20,000
. _\-.\- —_———
Net Lags i i3 e ot $1,000

Accordingly, the sum of $1,000 was approved and offered to the com-
plaimant in setthement of his claim,

{d) On 16th October, 1980, the Board received a letter from the com-
plainant requesting review of the claim on the basis of a quotation
received from another building flrm which the complainant considered
to be comparable with the contract price of the original builder. A
reply to this letter had been sent on 23rd October, 1980, contrary Lo
the complainant's claim in his letter to me.
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(e} The matter was then renssessed in the Hght of the further quatation,
and the investigating Inspecior, having confacted the building company
and having closely re-examined methods of construction, etc., conceded
that it was “conceivable that (the building firm) wsing the light timber
framing code [thereby using a lot less timber in the framework o that
imstalled by the orginal builder), could have constructed the dwelling
for around $51,000 allowing for adjustment of prime cost allowances”,

{I) In the light of the revised assessment, the complainant wns given the
benefit of any doubt, so far as the application of clause 2 (2) of the
Agreement was concerned, and on Glth January, 1931, approval was
given by the Board io increase the offer of settlement to the maximum
£5,000 subject to the bullding work being satfactorily completed.

{g) The complainani had been informed by better dated Tth Fanuvary, 1981,
of the inereased offer of settlement, ond when the Bospd wrode (o me,
o reply as 1o his intentions was awaited,

I noted that the Board's decision to offer the compluinant $5,000 had been
taken the day before I received the complainants better amd several days before 1
referred the matier to the Board, Accordingly, 1 decided that there was no nesd for
me to take the matter any further; 1 declined to investigate the complaint and con-
cluded my inguiries,

CONSUMER CLAIMS TRIBUNAL

Unreasonable and Tmcorrect Refusal to Dismiss Clakm

I received o complaint concerning the conduct of a Consumer Clalms Tribunal
Referee at o hearing of a copsumers claim in which my complainant was the
Respondent.

As 1 have said elsewhere', whilst | do not regard the actual decision of a
Tribunal to be o matter which I can investigate, I consider that 1 am able 1o investigate
such matters as a Referee’s actual conduet during the couwrse of o hearing and ndminis-
trative matiers connected with the functioning of the Tribunal. Even so, 1 invariably
inform my complainants (and I did so in this case) that my attempts to invesligate
are seriously hampered by the fact that the Tribunal, by law, B not reguired to keep
a proper record or transcript of proceedings before it

My complainant alleged that the Referee at the hearing had unreasonably and
incorrectly refused o dismiss the consumer's claim. The details can be summarized

a5 follows:—

(a) My complainant (I will refer to him as “Mr A") had pecformed some
work for the consumer who subsequently queried the account rendered.
Mr A had informed the comsumer that he would take out a summons.
This he did at 9.45 n.m, on 10th September, 1979,

(b} Mr A personally served the summons on the consumer’s wife on the
evening of 10th September, 1979, and was Informed by her that her
hushand had referred o cloim to the Consumer Claims Tribunal, Sub-
sequent inquiry made by Mr A revealed that the consumer hod com-
menced Tribunal proceedings at 10.20 am. on 10th September, 1979
ithis was Inter confirmed as fact during my investigation), ie., seme
35 minutes after Mr A had issued his summaons,

(e} Mr A had gueried with Registry stafl whether, in the circumstances,
the Tribunal had jurisdiction to hear and determine the consumer's
claim and ke was told to raise the matter with the Referes at the
hearing, which was listed for Tth December, 1979, and seck dismissal
af the claim.

(d) Mr A described the events that followed thigg=—

“I paised this marter with the referee at the hearing, he condescendingly
informed me that 1 could not possibly hawe issued the summons ot
9,45 am. as, quote, ‘The Court of Petty Sessions does not open until
10 am' unguole, Mr Srmithers, 1 am sure you are well aware of a
9,30 n.m, opening time for the Couris of Petty Sessions, in fact the
Chamber Magistrates commence their day at 10 a.m.!"

Prior to deciding whether o investignie Mr A% complaint, 1 had inguiries
made which revealed that it was possible, at the Court of Petty Sessions concerned,
to have a summons Bsoed between 230 aom. and 4,00 pome. each day, Monday fo
Friday, Time of issue, unfortunately, is not shown on g sumds.

i Reponi of ihe Ombudsman of NSW.—1977/7T8—pp. 15,
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1 also considered the terms of section 19 of the Consumer Claims Tribunals
Act, which says—

“19, {17 A court has no jurisdiction in respect of any issue in dispute in a
copnsumer claim which has been referred o a coasumer claims
tribunal and has not been withdrawn or dismiszed for want of
jurisdiction.

{2} Where proceedings for the determination of any issue were com-
menced in a court before a consumer claim im which that issue is in
dispute was referred to a consumer claims tribunal and those
procecdings have not been withdrawn, nothing in subsection |
prevents that court from having jurisdiction in respect of that
issue and the tribunal on the application of any party to those
proceedings who is a party to the proceeding before the tribunal,
shall make an order dismissing the claim,

{3} For the purposes of this section, an iswue is in dispute in a consumer
claim referred to o consumer claims tribunal only if the existence
of the dispute was shown in the claim referred 1o that tribunal or
wins recorded In the record made by that tribunal in accordance
with section 12 (1) (b).

{4) For the purposes of this section, “court” includes any court, tribunal,
board or other body or person—

i{a} which or who has power under anmy Act; or

(b) which or who has, by agreement between 2 or more persons,
authority,

to determine by arbitration, conciligtion or otherwise any Bsue that

is in dispute.”

1, iherefore, decided to investigate the complaint and in referring the matier o
the Commissioner for Consumer Affairs, T asked that he particularly inform me of the
attempts made by the Referee to ascertain whether, in terms of section 19 (2) of the
Act, proceedings for determination of the issue before the Tribunal had been com-
peaced in & court before reference to the Tribunal,

The Commissioner subssguently informed me that, in addition to complaining
o me, Me A had written to the Minister for Consumer Affairs in similar terms aboast
the behaviour of the Referee at the Gopsumer Claims Tribunal hearing. The Com-
missioner enclosed a copy of the Minister's reply which, he said, relayed the Senior
Referce's comments about Mr A% Falm The Minister's lebter said, infer alig—

“] have now had the oppdMunity of discussing the matter with the Senior
Referes, .oivevnrmcanrens , who also presided at the hearing. (He) has
indicated that the determination was made oaly after a consideration of the
total evidence adduced by the parties af the hearing. He further indicated
that he had no further comment to make with regard to the matters raised in
your letter, other than to point out that the Referees must, at all times, rely
on the evidence produced by the parties which can include expert evidence
from persons such as officers of the Builder's Licensing Board., Ultimately,
however, the final decision must rest with the Referee alone.

I can only relerate the commenis made in my previous letter that T am oot
empowered to intervene in, or review a decision of the Consumer Claims
Tribunals.

The Commissioner, in his report to me, wenl on Lo say—

“Your letter sought infarmation about what steps a Referes takes to determine
whether or not other proceedings have been commenced buil other than
{the Senior Referee’s) response that he acts on evidence produced at the
hearing [ cannof comment further,

However officers of the Department do take certain steps and I will mention
these, Prior 1o a hearing if the Department’s officers are advised of matters
likely to affect jurisdiction and specifically the existence of procesdings in
another court, details are then obfained from the pariies a3 to the Coart,
nature of action and the plaint number. A check is made with the Court of
issue to ascertain the identity of the parfics and the particulars of claim.
If it is clear that section 19 (2} applies, the matter is referred to the presiding
Referes prior to hearing in order that the claim might be dismissed. In this
case, (Mr A) contacted the Department's Chatswaood offtce and advised he
had taken out a summons on the same day as the consumer in this case
had lodged a claim. Mo note was made of the time of day (Mr A) claimed
to have taken out the summons bul he was told it would have to be left to
the Referee ai the hearing to decide the matier. I am sure you will agres
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that in such circumstances it would not be appropriate for administrative
mction to be taken to dismiss a claim and a hearing was the only way for the
partics to present evidence in support of their claims,”

1 informed Mr A of all that the Commissioner had 1o say and of my intention
to write to the Senior Referee 1o seck his report regarding the steps he took to salisfy
himself that he had jurisdiction to hear and determine the consumer claim. 1 stressed
again my inability to st pside the Tribunals order and advised Mr A of the availabillty
of judicial review of the Tribunal's decision an the ground of lack of jurisdiction. 1
suggesied that he would meed to discuss that aspect with his legal representative.

I wrote to the Commissioner and, farer alia, said—

“I am ol satiasfied, on the comments you have made, that the Referee took
reasonable steps o satisfy himsell that the Tribunal had jurisdiction o hear
and determing the claim, bearing in mind the provisions of section 19 of the
Consumer Claims Tribunals Act, following {Mr A’s] application o the
Referee for dismissal. In this regard, there is nothing in your reply which
in any way refutes the cloim made by (Mr A) that the Referee merely
disheliewed his statement about the prior issue of a summons on the basia
that the Clerk of Petty Sestions Ofice would nod be open ot the time (Mr A
clairmed 1o have taken out the summaons.

Bearing in mind the binding nature of an order made by a Tribunal and the
guite restrictive grounds on which an appeal can be lodged, 1 am of the view
that Referess must be extremely careful in the proper exercise of their power
to hear and determine claims and must take all reasonable steps to satisfy
themdelves that they have jurisdiction to proceed with the hearing of a claim,
particularly once the issue of jurisdiction is raised.

As | am now aware of the bdentity of the Referee who presided at the hearing
involving (Mr A), 1 am writing 1o (him) and, pursuant o section 18 of the
Ombudsman Act, am seeking further information from him about the sieps
be took o satisly himself that he had jurisdiction.”

I wrote 1o the Senior Referee. outlining the nature of Mr A's complaint,
the results of my imguirics with the Commissioner and my infention to investigste
his {the Senior Referee's) alleged conduct. | asked that he report to me regarding
“the steps you took, a5 presiding Referee, to satisly yoursell that you had jurisdiction 1o
hear and determine the claim, particularly in view of the_application for dismissal
made by (Mr A} and in the light of the comments he made in this respect in his

complaint to me." |

The Senior Referee reported to me in the following-terms—

“I canngt of course agree that you have any right to ask any gquestions con-
cerning the conduct of o Referce during the course of a proceeding of o
Tribunal and particularly with regard to how a Referee arrivies at 8 fnding
either of jurisdiction or Crder.

Mo notes of evidence are taken during a proceeding or form part of the
record of a Tribunal hearing,

In this claim which was beard on Tth December, 1978 (Mr A}, a Director
of the Respondent company, appeared as well as the Claimant. Bolth parties
were sworn amnd gave evidence.

I made the Andings on the evidence (prool) produced by the parties. He
who alleged must prove. [ do not look for any other evidence {proof]. The
partics musi give me the information, All evidence must be on oath, |
hear both aides on oath.

I considered that the answer given by the Commissioner was cormect.

I do nod agree with and | refect your conlention that | wunreasonably and
incorrectly refused to dismiss the claim the subject of the complaint,”

Following reccipt of the Senbor Referee’s repori which, it seemed o me, did
not address fselfl o the question posed in my request, | ascerfained that, on 28ih
Movember, 1979, cerfain amendments 0 the Consumer Claims Tribunels Act had
taken effect. One of the effects of the amendments had been to insert 8 new section
204, in the Act. Section 204 provides—

“20a, (15 I a1 any time before an order hns been made by a tribunal under
section 23 in respect of a consumer claim the jurisdiction of the trbunal
Io hear and determing the claim is disputed by a parly to the claim, the
tribunal shall pot make an order determining the claim withou: fired giving
a ruling as to whether It has jurisdiction to hear and determine the claim.

(23 A tribunal shall not of 15 own motbon make an order under ssc-
tion 23 (1) (e} dismissing a consumer claim for want of jurisdiction without
first giving a ruling as to its jurisdiclion to hear and determine the claim.
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(3) If & tribupal has given a ruling wnder subsection (1) or (2} in
respect of a consumer claim it shall nod make an order under section 22
in respect of the claim—

{a} umil 14 days have elapsed following the giving of the ruling or

ib) if at any time before it has made an order it receives notice thal
procecdings for the reliefl or remedies referned to in section
21 have been commenced in a court i respect of the ruling,
uptil the proceedings before the court have been determined.”

I, therefore, wrote again (o the Senior Referse and said—

siae | have outlined on several occasions i the past, [ consider that T do
have jurisdiction 10 Jook at the conduct of a Referee in & Consumer Claims
Tribunal hearing but mot ot his decision or order,

It is on ihis basis that | am investigating (Mr A's) complainl in respect
to your conduet up to the time that you made your decision to proceed
with the hearing of the claim. Mothing that you have said in your letter
persuades me that you made any serious attempt 1o properly determine the
question of jurisdiciion once @ was raised an the hearing,

More importantly, perhaps, your conduct in this particular case appears
to have been contrary o law in that the procedurcs loid down in sub-
sections (1) and (%) of section 204 of the Consumer Claims Tribunals
{Amendment) Act, 1979, do not appear 1o have been followed, Mo douobt,
you are lamilizr with the provisions of the Act o which [ refer.

fin terms of sectlon 3 (21 {a) of the Ombudsiman Act, your conduct migh
be found 1o be wrong and be made the subject of adverse comment. Before
T make any decision in this regard, you are afforded the opportunity, pursuant
s section 24 of the Ombudsman Act, to make submissions to me about the

minlier.

ﬁﬁhﬂinsw. I would appreciate your comments cOncerning Your apparent
fifitkire 1o comply with the provisions of scction 20a of the Consumer Claims
Tribunnls { Amendment) Act, 1979, as soon a5 possible and, in any case,
within four (4) weeks of the date of this letter.”

At the same time, | wrate to the Commissbener and foter sl said—

*I indicated in my letter of 17th June that | was taking up the maiter with
{the Senior Refereel and I pow enclose for your information a copy of
the reply that (he) mode to me. | am sure vou will agree that his reply
could not be regarded as terribly helpful.”

Howewer, | am concerned 1o mole that the Tribunal, n the hearing con-
cerned on Tith December, 1979, apparently did net act in accordance with
the law as set out in subsections (1) and (3] of section 204 of the Con-
suener Claims Tribunals {Amendment) Act, 1979, the provisions of which
came inte effect on 28th Movember, 1973,

However, leaving aside the fact that the Tribunal appears (o have scted con-
trary to law (the Semior Refereed, hos said nothing which persuades me
that he made any serbous attempt 1o fairly or properly determing the question
of jurisdiction when it was raised af the hearing. In view of this, 1 have
written 10 (Mr A) in the following terms—

“Whilst il is not my function 1o offer legal advice to any person, | can do
litile more than suggest that you give consideration to seeking o review
of the Tribunal's decision in this case i, of course, you are =il able to
do so, In this regand, you would need to consalt with your begal repre-
sentative. OF course, you may wish 10 explore the possibilily of seeking
legal ald and you can do so by contacting the Legal Aid Services Com-
mision of MSW., or the Law Socicty of M.5W."

I note feom your letier of 2Th May that officers of your Department do take
certain steps b ascertain whether proceedings have been commenced in
another jurisdiction in respect of a maiter the subject of a claim referred o &
Tribunal, The Department’s usunl procedure appears o be to refer questions
aof jurisdiction, after imqudry, 1o the Referee concerned, prior to the hearing,
for a decision 1o be made. In this case, howewer, that procedure was nol
followed and the motter was lelt for the complainani to raise al the hearing.

I conned see that the Fact that (Mr A} Bsused his summons on the some day
that the comsumer referved her (sic) eluim io the Trbunal was o valid
reason for departing from normal Departmental procedure and, perhaps, you
wioruld let me have your further comments in this respect as soon as possible.

Motwithstanding (the Senior Referee’s) wviews about my jurisdiction, with
which | disagree, | propose to seek his further commenis regarding his ap-
parent fallure (o aet in necordance with section 204 of the Comsumer Claimms
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Tribunals { Amendment) Act, His conduct in this regard might well be found
to be wrong in terms of section 5 (2) (a) of the Ombudaman Act in that It
was conirary to law.”

1 pleo wrote to Mr A, outlining the results of my Enguiries 10 that time and
advising him in the teems indicated in my letter 10 the Commissioner,

~ The Commissioner replied 1o me, again pointing out that he was not in a
position to influence the manner in which Tritunal hearings are copducted. He went
O 10 $AY——

“In relation to the conduct of the Tribunal Registry's staff 1 am sure you

understand they have no outhority generally o either reject claims that
conaumers wish to lodge or 10 prevent a claim being heard once i has been
lodged, 1 make this comment becaise there are many siluations where
people scck to lodge claims thet are clearly bevond the scope of the
Tribunal and as a practical course of nction staff will advise that the matter
may be dismissed. If the person insisis, s often happens. the Registrar and
his stodfl have no choles but to take the claim,

A similar situation arises where & respondent guestions the jurisdiction of the
Tribunol and sections 17, 19 and 20a are the relevani ones f0 consider.
While the stoff tnke the steps mentioned in my letter of 27th May, 1980, the
procedure is different where it is suggested the summons and the claim were
faken out on the same doy, Tribunal claim forms note the lime a clzim is
lodged but T understand this information & not recorded by Courts of Petty
Sessions when summons are isued.  As it is a frequent occurrence that
disputes arise because the commencement of claims and other court proceed-
ings are conlemporaneows it bas been the practice as directed by the Referces
not 1o refer these cases 1o a Referce but to list directly for the lssue 1o be
dealt with af a hearing, In (Mr A%) case as in others the telephone messages
about the matter would be on the file for the Referee 1o peruse,

You will be aware that the commencement of procesdings in another court is
mot of #sclf sufficient to prevent the Tribunal having jurisdiction bul section
19 also provides thot the issue in dispote must be the same. Whatever the
circumatanees surrounding the date of commencement of proceedings if there
is any debate aboot the Evee the matter is listed for hearing without reference
1o a Referee,

As I mentioned obove, Tribunal stall cannot reject claims nor can they prevent
makiers coming to a hearing even though the rewult of a jurisdictional dispuie
may appear (0 be obvious. A similar situation has been dealt with already by
the Victorian Supreme Court in an unreporied case: B v The Referee aof the
Semrll Clidrse Tribuwal wid Burford: ex pante Rostill Pry Led on the 13h
Fetrruary, 1973 A copy of an extract from the C.CH. Reporis about this
case 15 aftached. I can only assume that such a judtgement would probably
alio be made in New South Wales,

I hope the above infermation satisfies your inguiry ﬁ\ln iy view the Registry
etafl were acting within the requirements of the legislation and the procedures
il by the Referees.”

[n mty view, ol that the Commisioner siid rendered the Referee's duty 1o
consider the gquestion of jurisdiclion, onee mised ot a hearing, all the more imporiant.
The lasiz of the Yictorian decision to which the Commissioner had referred me was
simply that the appropriale time to raise the bBsue of the Tribunal’s jurisdiction is at
the hearing before the Beferee, A copy of ihe estract mentioned in the Commissioner's
betier is reproduced at the conclusion of these case notes and marked A"

The Senior Referse’s reply was in the following terms—

=l now have the Tribunal file relurmed from the Commissioner, following his
reply to yourself,
There 15 no mentfon on my nodes of the hearing of any request by the
Respondent for the claim to be dismissed or any other matter concerning
jurizdiction,
The amendment to the Consumer Claims Tribunals Act to which you refer,
hud mot been brought o my potice for distribution to the Referces wniil §2th

December when T brought it to the notice of a solicitor appearing before me,
although section 20 was passed on 27th November, 1979,

Eection 204 is welcomed by the Referees sand has been invoked on many
oocasions.

I certainly do not do anvthing ot & hearing which i contrary to any law of
which 1 am aware.™
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1 was somewhal amazed and cerininly concerned thad, apparently, the Senior
Referce and, presumably, the other Referces of the Consumer Claims Tribunals were
mol aware of a change in the law under which they operated and which was of
particular significance in relation 1o the conduet of hearings. Thercfore, 1 asked the
Commissioner to let me have s repart regarding the steps faken by his administration
to keep the Senior Referce informed of the progress of the propesed amendments to
ihe Act and their effect and implementation once they became law on 23th NMovember,
1979, 1 aleo asked that the Departmental and Tritunal files be made available to me.

I also considered it desirable that Mr A be seen and questioned regarding his
contention that he had raised the bssue of jurisdiction with the Referee at the hearing
on Tth December, 1979, particularly In the light of the Senior Referee’s report. One of
my officers interviewed Mr A at his home on 30th October, 1980. The interview,
with Mr A's consent, was tape recorded and subsequently transcribed, A copy of the
transeript of the interview can be found at the end of these notes marked with the
letier "B

The Commissioner, after some delay, reported to me in the following terms—

“] have to odvise you that it has not been the practice of the Legal Section
of my Department to formally communicate dates of assent or proclamation
on new/amending legislation to persoms within the Department principally

r_wihk for implementation.

You Will appreciate that formal advice is usually unnecessary because the
seniod oflicer concerned is directly nvolved in the preparation of submissions,
advising the Minkster during passage of the Bill and subsequent action.

I the Tribunals Amendment Bill of 1979, neither the Senior Referes or
the Registrar were so involved except in the very early stages of consideration
to a proposed Bill when they made suggestions for various amendments to be
put o the Minister.

T have had inguirics made 1o try and establish the sequence of informal aclion
that would hove accurred o bring about implementation of the amendments.
Given the lapse of time and the reliance of the officers concerned on memory,
it is not possible to establish dates. However, it does seem that several factors
including incorrect assumptions of knowledge of the details of the Act and
date of assent could hove meant that the Senior Referce was nol aware that
the amendments were in force ontil 12th December as stated in his reply 1o
you.

In light of the circumstances of this matter 1 am taking steps to ensure that
both the anticipated and actual date of new or amending legislation coming
inte force are formally conveyed to relevant persons within my Drepartment
i the future™

My examination of the Department and Tribunal files revealed the following
refevant facts—

{i) Officers attached o the Tribunal Registry spoke by telephone 10 Mr A
on 26th October, 1979, apparently to obtain certain details 10 enable
notice of hearing o issue to the parties. On the same day, Mr A rang
Registry officers and raised the question of the Tribunal's jurisdiction o
hear the claim. The file is minated in this respect as follows—

“{Mr A) sdvised that he had the summons issued on the 1tk
September, 1979, 1 wdvised him that this was the same day that the
claim was lodged. (Mr A) gquestionsd the matter of jurisdietion he
was advised that the matter will still be lsted for a hearing and that
if he considers that the Court of Petty Sessions has jurisdiction he
should bring it up before the referes for a decision.™
{ii) The Senior Referee, during my inguiries and, earlier, when Mr A had
made representations to the Minister, had minuted the file 10 the effect
that he coild aot remember whether Mr A had raised the question of
prsdiction, His file minutes said—

“I do not have any recellection of the evidence which was given by
cither party. There was nothing in the hearing to make anything
stand out in omy memory”

and

“There i3 no note on my record sheet that (Mr A) raised the ques-
tion of jurisdiction. T usually note any point taken on jurisdiction or
question of law raised. T do not remember this matter at all . . .
I eannet confirm or deny the allegation made iy ————
the letter {from the Ombudeman). Thefe i no note that any sum-
mons was produced by either party for consideration.”
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This case, 1 believed, well illustrated the unsatisfactory state of affnirs that misse
ievitably arise when a Tribunal, whose decisions are binding on the panics and feom
which there is no appeal and only & very lmdeed right of judictal review, i3 not required
to keep sn adequate record or transcript of proceedings.

Section |2 (1) of the Consumer Claims Tribupals Act prowides thai the recosd
of & tribunal in respect of a claim referred #o it shall consist of—

the claim as lodged by the claimani;

the notaion of the nsture of the dssues in dispule as determined and recorded
by the Iribunal during the hearing of the claim;

the ruling, if any, given by the iribunal in relation to its jurisdiction to hear
and determing the claim; and

the order, if any, made by the tribunal,

Section 12 (3) provides that nodes made by o referee in the course of a hearing
of a claim, other than the notation, muling and order referered 1o in section 12 (1), shall
not form part of the record of the tribumnal,

Morwithstanding the provisons of section 12, 1 was then and am now of the
view thal & strong case can be made oul that o Consumer Claims Tribunal should,
in the inferests of justice, be required to keep = . . such nofes as {are) necessary
to ¢pable the case to be loid properly and sufficiently before the higher court™.

I believe that this s particulady important where judicial review s berng sought
on the ground of alleged denial of natural justice for, in the absence of o proper record,
I cannat see how the case could ever be “properly and sulficiently” Inid before the higher
court,

S0 far s Mr A's cose was concerned, | believed that. in the absence of knowing
with ceriainty just what was sald ut the hearing, it was reasonable 1o consider probahili-
ties, In this regard, Mr A had been consistent in his claims thal be raised the isae
of prrisdiciion ot the hearing. He had said this in his letter of complaint (o me anmd in his
interview with my officer. His conduct prior to the hearing. in Oclober 197%, when
be queried jurisdiction with Registry staff ot Chatswood, was consistent with lis
claims to me that he had raised the ssee.

The Senbor Referee, on the other hand, could mot remember whether the issue
of jurisdiction had been rafsed or not. He kad said that he “wsually” notes any poknt
faken on jurisdiction and he relicd on the fact that his notes of the hearing made no
mention of jursdiction having been raised. However, it was significant, 1 felt, that he
said he “wnrally”™ noted any podnt taken, ete.—this, 0 me, simply meant that fe did
sl alweys do 4o, In this context, then, the absence of any mention of the issue in his
nodes was simply an indication, and no mare, that the issue pray not have been raised
OR that it wox rabsed but wes aor recorded by the Senior Referee in his nodes.

Therefore, there was doubt: but, in my view, bearing in mind that Mr A's
actions prior o the bearing had been consistent with a comeern about the Tribunal's
jurisdiction and with his later claims 1o me in this regard, 1 believed that the benefit of
such doubt should be given ta Mr A. He appeared a reasonable and truthiul persan
and 1 could not see why his laims should pot be accepted in the absence of any evidence
that his claims were incorrect,

The Commissioner had iodd me, in any case, that the notes made by Repisiry
stofl following Mr A% “phone eall about jurisdiction “would be on the file for the
Referse to peruse™, In my view, this being the case, no criticism could reasonably be
levelled at Registry stafl for having fefi the matter of jurisdiction for determination at
ihe hearing. On the other hand, I was of the view that the availability of the file noles
should have aliered the Referce, and hod placed on him a degree of responsibility 1o
dispose of the jurisdictional question, even to the extent of asking the respondent (Mr
AY if e wished to raise the matter {assuming for the moment that Mr A had not done
s,

On all of the material available [ felt that it was reasonable for me to conclede
that, leaving aside the amendments 1o the At which came Into foree on 28th Novem:-
her, 1970 pnd which were nol followed hj‘ 1he Senior Referee, the Senior Referes

had failed 1o imke sufficient steps o saiesly hinvsell on the matter of juri.-ndi:[.'h;L_d_-li
hecause—

{a) the noies of Mr A having raised the matter prior to the henring had
been avallable to him;

(b} there was nothing o refute Mr A’s claim that he had raised the maiter
at the hearing and the material availabde suggested that, in all probability,
he had,

2 Lord Homworth, qooted i Pirbwuone v Goldriel (19790 | —NSWLR—IT0 (See also
Kherrimp v Goddeick [1970] F—NSWLRE—Z85).
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This brought me to the disturbing situation whereby the Senior Referce of the
Consumer Claims Tribunal had noet been aware, until |2th December, 1979, of
amendments 1o the law, under which he and the other Relerees were required to operale,
and which took effect on 2Bh WNovember, 1979, This was quite increcible! Apant
from voicing strong crilicism of this state of afairs, however, there seemed little point
in my pursuing the matter in view of the Commissioners claim 10 have laken steps
to emsure that a similar situation did nol again arise,

I found the conduct of the Senior Referee to be wrong in thal—

{a) he failed to take sufficiens steps to satisfy himsell on the gquestion of
jurisdiction to hear and determing the claim and, purssant to section
5 {2y (b} of the Ombudsman Aci, such conduct was unreasonable and
unjust; amd

(b he foiled to comply with the provisions of section 204 of the Comsumer
Claims Trbunals Act, as amended and. pursuant to section 5 (21 (a]
of the Ombudsman Act, such condust was contrary to loww,

Before making a report, which | am required to do when | fimd conduci 1o
be wrong. 1 informed the Minister for Consumer Affairs of my intention to niake such
report and asked if he wished 1o consult with me (this | am also required by law
to do), The Minister and I subsequently met and consulted whereupon | proceeded

to make my repoert,

In my repart, | strongly recommended that, in finure, a referee be required
to keep a proper record or transcript of proceedings at & Comsumer Claims Tribunal
hearing and that, in this regard, the law be amended to reguire this to be done if
meceasary. | also recommended that, so far as my first recommendation was concerned,
copsideration be given 1o the uwse of tape recording (e.g. cassefte recorders) so that,
in the event ihat it become mecewsary fo Wandcrtbe a recording. the cassette could be
re-used,

Finally, I recommended that the Commissioner for Consumer Affairs take up
with the Depaniment of the Atorney-Uiencral and of Justice the question of the
desirabitity of showing the time of issue on @ summons taken out in respect of a
maiter thot is copable of referral 10 8 Copsumer Claims Tribunal,

Having made my report, 1 gave copies of it 1o the Minister for Comsumer
Affairs and the Commissioner o5 required by the Ombudsman Act, and 1o the Senior
Referee and Mr A, as | may do if T so0 choose.

The Minister for Consumer Alfairs subsequently informed me that—

{u} for various reasons, particolarly bearing o mind the cost factor, he con-
siclered the tramscription and taping of proceedings before the Tribunals
to be kmpractical af the present time. However, accepting the views thot
I expressed he had writien to the Senior Referee directing that, in futur,
each Referce should make notes of such aspects of cascs before them
a5 might later become matiers of contention and, further, that, where
there s any doubd 33 o the jurisdiction of the Referee, he shoubd
adjourn the hearing in order to fully and carefully consider the ruling
he should make,

(b1 he bed raised with his colleague, the Attorney-General, the suggestion
thai the time of issue he noted on a summons where i 5 likely or
capable that the isue could be referred to the Tribunals, The Minister
wenl o to say:

“The Atterney has noted that the daie of isue is, of course, alrcady
appropriately noted on a summons. However, following his referral
of your suggestion to the Civil Claims Court and District Cowrt,
the Attorney is convinsed that noting the time of Bssue would present
practical problems that could only be salved by expenditure, which
would be owl of all proportion 1o the difficulties it would nfiempi
o solve. The Attorney has noted that the problem appears to have
arizen only once.

It is estimated that some 50000 matters wouold [all within this
category and that there would subsequently be problems connected
with the “bulk” lodgement of process st court offices, a great pro-
portion of which would be consumer orientated.

The Atiorney has concluded, vegrettably, that there appears to be
po economically feasible method of implementing this suggestion
and that it would appear practicol for such problems to be resolved
at the relevand time based on evidence available from the parties
concerned.”
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I was disappointed that my recommendations regarding the transcription of
Tribunals' proceedings were not implemented as 1 congidered them important and basic
to “justice being done”. 1 adhere to that view now but appreciate, as the Minister has
said, that there are practical difficulties involved. MWeventheless, T am not convinced
that such difficulties (incleding alleged costs) are so great as to justify a fallure 1o
keep a proper record of proceedings before the Tribunals.

In relation 10 the matter of showing on a summons the time of s lssue, |
readily appreciate the problems and concede that (o require this o be done would
be impractical,

Deespite my desappointment, [ concluded that 1 had taken the matter as far as
I was able and [ discontineed my investigatbon.

COUNCIL OF AUCTIONEERS AND AGENTS

Refusal fo tell complainants of sction taken

My complainant, who had moade n complaint to the Council about the behaviour
of a licensed Real Estate Agent, wrote to me and complained that ihe Council would
not tell him what action it had taken against the Agent. other than saying that
“nppropriate diseiplinary sction' had been taken.

I determined his complaint o be Council's refusal to provide details of disci-
plinary action taken sgainst the Ageni and sought the views of the Chalrman of the
Council of Auctioneers and Agents,

I received & reply from the Registrar which indicated that the Council had
considered my letter at its most recent meeting and had dicected him to invite my
attention to the provisions of section B6a of the Auctioneers and Agents Act.

Section Bba provides as follows—

“{1} It shall not be lawiful for any member of the Council or any of i
officers or employees, except for the purposes of the adminisiration of
this Aect or the regulations, fo make publicly kmown or to make available
to any person of court any information fumished to the Councll pur-
suani to the provisions of section 38a, or disclosed by an inspection
made wnder the providons of section 38r or section 55 or by an aucdit
made under the provisions of section 38p, or in an accountant’s report
made pursuant Lo section 83, excepl—

[a} 1o the court before which any proceedings are pending or being
taken for—

(i) the grant of & Hoense 1o or the renewal, redorafion or can-
cellation of a license of;

(i1 the registration or cancellation of the registration of; or
(iil) the disqualification wunder section 2% or Sln of,
the person to whom the information is relevant: or

(b} to the court in which proceedings are being taken for a breach
af this At agninst the persen to whom such informulion is relevant;

ar

{e) to the eourt which ar the judge or magistrate who may be order
in accordance with subsection (4} of section 74 cerfify that any
person should be permitted fo claim against the Auctioncers and
Apents Fidelity Guarantee Fund.

(2} The Registrar may with the approval of the Council communicate 1o
any person directly concerncd in any tronsaction with a licensee or real
esiate dealer, as the case may be, any information furnished to the
Council in accordance with the provisions of this Act, is so far as It
relates to any such iransaction and directly concerms amy such person.

(3} Any person who commlbts a breach of any provision of this section shall,
tn additbon to any olher procesdings, pennlty of punishment to which he
may be liable, be guilty of an offence against this Act”

The Registrar said that Council considered that any disciplinary action taken
against a licens=e was a matfer belween the Council and the licenses,

I had a close look at the Auctioncers amd Agents Act and then wrote o the
Chairman and said—

“You will recall that the complaint in this case, related 1o Council's refusal
to provide or disclese details of disciplinary aclion taken agsinst an ageni
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and, ia this regard, 1 note that Council relies on the provisions of section BSa
of the Auctioncers and Agents Act 1o justfy ils view that “any disciplinary
action taken by (the} Council against () licenses , . . s a matier between
the Council and (the Leensee)™ and cannot be disclosed, nod even to the
person whose complaint fed 1o such action being taken,

I am afraid that 1 cannol agree with Council’s interpretation of the effect of
gection 684 and, in reaching this view, | have had regard o the following
considerations:

(n} Section 634 renders it unlawful for any member of Council or any of its
officers ar employess o0 make available to the public or any person or
court, apart from the exceptions listed in subsections (1) (a). (b}
and (c), any information fernished fo the Corrcll pursuant to section
38a; or dirclosed by an inspecrion moade under sections 38R of 55; of
diselosed by an audiy made under section 380 or (v an acoouwntant’s
report made umider section B,

(b} The various sections mentioned in section 564 have (o do with—

the provision of information, on requisition, by licensees relating to trust
pccount operation, payments received, etc. (section 38a);

information obtained by an inspection of books of sccount and other
records required to be kept in relation Lo trust scoounts (section 38m);

information obtained from an aedit of acoounts amd the resultont
auditors’ report {(section J8§n);

information obtained by an inspection of the record of all tramsactions
by or with a real estate dealer (section 55) and

information obtained from an accountant’s inspection of accounts and
the resullant repori.

{2} It seems quile clear that the provisions of non-disclosure in section Bba
relate only to information which is furnished fo the Conncil in a variety
of ways, as sct out in the other sections of the Act mentioned above,
and has no application in relation to disclosure of action faken by the
Couneil as a result of a complaint having been made to it. It appears
quite clear to me that section 86 does not prevent the Council telling a
person what It has done in relation to the conduct of an agenf, eic.,
which has been the subject of that person’s complaint”™,

Consequently, in my view, Council's refusal to disclose details of disciplinary
action taken in respect of a complaint has no statulory basis and is merely an sdminis-
trative practice. The question, then, that 1 have had to consider is whether such
practice is reasonable in terms of the Ombudsman Act.

“1 believe that & complainant is entitled to know the action that has been
takeén in respect of his complaint. In my view, it is not sufficient to tell him
that his complaint has been investigated or dealt with, without also telling
him whether his complaint was found to be well-made or without substance
and, if the former is the case, to tell him the action taken by the investigating
authority. In other words, a complainant is entitled to know the outcome of
his complaint.

It seems lo me that this view cannot be regarded as a movel approach but
must be seen as one that is firmly entrenched in modern consumer protection
legistation, of which the Auctioneers and Agents Act now forms a part.

On this basis, T suggest that Council's present practice might be found 1o be
wrong in terma of the Ombudsman Act and might be reconsidered with a
view 1o ensuring that complainants are informed of the action taken by
Council in respect of their complaints, including details of any disciplinary
action taken in respect of an agent, dealer, ctc., the subject of complaint,”

1 sought the Chairman's comments about the views I expressed and he later
wiole Lo me in the following termg—

“It has been Council's policy in the past 1o advise the complainant that the
matter has been dealt with, and indicate what action has been taken without
going into detail. If the matter is o straightforward one there is nomally no
further developmeni.

I understand Council's policy in this regard was adopted following problems
ereated by attempts by complainants and others to improperly use the
information given by Council,

However, the Repistrar and at times, Senior Officers, when discussing the
matter with o cemplainant, elther in person or by telephone, have entarged
on the reasons for and extent of any action taken where they believe such
explanation might reasonably be understood.
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You will appreciate that very ofien action iaken by the Council elther direct
or through the Courns resulling from the investigation of a complaint is in no
way related 1o the complaint itself. So often 0o, in these circumstances the
investigation shows the actual complzint 1o be groundless or, on the point of
the complaint there are not sufficient grounds on which we can prosecute.
It has been fousd priedent in these instances to advise the complainant that
the matter has been investigated and the agent has been disciplined by Council
ar advie of the ootcome of Courl acion.

In wiew of the views expressed by vou, | will have the matter of release of
information discwssed at my next Couancil Meeting in September.”

I replied ond sabd—

“It may be of some assistance to you if 1 clarify a little the views | expressed
im my last letter. In this regard, | do not see that it is necessary e go into
considerable defall when Informing a complainant of the outcome af his or
her complainl. For example, in the case invalving Mr Lynam, it would have
been sufficient to tell him that the Council had severely reprimanded ihe
Agent concerned; 1 submit that it was not sufficient fo merely tell him that
the Council had taken “appropriaie disciplinary actlon againsi the Agent™.
In other words, the advice given 1o complainants should be specific even if it
is nod extensive,

You mention in your letter that sometimes action i taken through the Courts
and somictimes there are nad sufficient prounds on which to prosecute. 1 can
see no real reason, in either case, why the complainant cannot be truthfully
infarmed of the position,

Similarly, if the Councl's investigation shows a complaing to be withow
substance, the complainant should be so informed, and, be given reasons for
the Councils decision.”

After Council had considered the matter and the Chairman had writien to me,
I was able fo inform my complainant as follows—

“The Chairman of the Council has informsed me that the matter of disclosure
of imformation regarding the outcome of Council's investigations of com
plaints was discussed af Councils meeling on 9th Seplember when Council
resofved as follows—

"[Council) will advise complainants of the outcome of any investigation
it makes of the fesull of any Court proceedings where, in its opinion ihe
release of such information will mot prejudice Council's further aciions
in the matter,” "

Where Council is of the view that it may seek to fake further action
against the Agent, even if only to the point that it will kecp the Agent's
activity under surveillance, it will relesse to the complainant information
it sees fit under the circumsiances.

The Chairman bas commented in the following terms—

“You will appreciate that this decision is a departure from Council's Previouws
policy bul you will note i is stlll not prepared 1o release the information
when it thinks it unwise to do so.

Reverting back to the complaind by Mr ... .. ... ngainst Agenf, ........
I am sure the reluctance to provide precise information to Mr ........ in
December, 197%, was influenced by Council's decision to keep the sctivities
of the Ageat under surveillance as well as its view that there was not

sufficient evidence ot that stage for it to lodee o complaint for cancellation
of the licenses.™

In the light of all of the information available, I regard your complaint to me
to have been sustained. However, in view of Council's decision to, in future,
ndvise complainants of the outcome of complaint investigations {except in
the circumstances outlined), 1 propose taking the matter no further in terms
of the Ombudsman Act.

In this regard, whilst Council’s decision might not go as far as 1 would have
hoped, it certainky represents an improvement over the previows position.
D course, any complainant in future dissatisfied with ihe information dis-
closed by Council following investigation of a complaint can still make a
complaint to me and T will be ahla to look into the matter in the light of the
specific circumstances of the case”

I then concluded my inguiries.
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COUNCIL OF AUCTIONEERS AND AGENTS

Unrepsopable Requirement that Multiplicity of Licenses be Held

My complainant, the Managing Dhrector of a firm of Real Estate Agenis,
Avctioneers and Valuers, with offices in five suburbs, stated his complaint in the
following ferms—

*1. In each of our offices we run a number of Real Estate Corporations.
Each Corporation has only one place of business,

Each Corporation holkls a Corporation License as a Real Estate Agent.
In each affice there i a Tully hcensed person as an employee in charge.
That employee in charge i an employee of ecach of the Corporations.

The Council of Auctioneers insist that for each Corporation the person
in charge must hold an additional personal Estate Agenis License, i,
10 Corporations—one employee in common must hold 10 individual
identical Licenses,

We maintain thal nothing in the Auctioncers and Agents Act allows this.
The Council agrees, but says it is a policy matter. Ouwr complaing is that
policy not covered or oulside the Act iz unenforceabls, undesirable and
merely an unonhodox way of raising revenue,”

I received a report from the Reglsirar of the Council and one of my officers
subsequently hekl dmcussions with him, In pursulng my investigation, a wery close
study of the Auctioneers and Agents Act was necessary. The oulcome of my inquiries
wis reflected in the terms of a letter I directed to the Chairman of the Councll wherein,
Inter aifa, 1 said=—

*T have noted all that the Registrar has had 1o say and paniculary that the
Council interprets the relevant provisions of the Auctionsers and Agents
Act as requiring 3 licensed person in charge of a oumber of corporations
aperating from & common place of business 10 held separate personal licences
in respect of each such corporation.

In addition, one of my officers has had discussions with the Registrar abouwt
the matter. I am aware that the complainant has agreed to apply for the
additional Heences reguired by the Councll oo the understanding that, shoubd
legal advice by the Bepistrar support the complainant's interpretation of the
legislation, the lees padd will be refunded.

It seems quite clear that the guestion to which 1 should sddress myself is
whether the relevant provisions of the legilation require (and therefore
render the Council's present requirement correct) a licensed real estate
agent to hold additional licences when be is the nominated person in charge
of several corporations carrying on business at one place. The provisions
of sections 20 and 21 of the Acl, in my opinion, do nid make the position
abundantly clear,

Section 20 appears o require a corporation fo hold a corporation licence
and to employ a licensed person in charge at its sole or principal place of
business. Secrion 21 (2) {e) appears fo additionally require a corporation
to employ a licensed person as the person in charge at every other place
it comfucts it business. Sectiowr 21 (2) (a) appears (0 prevent g persowm,
by virtue of one licence, keeping more than one place for the conduct of
his buwsiness whilst section 21 (3} appears to preveni a person from being
in charge at more than ane place of business.

Following my officer’s discussion with the Registrar, [ understand that the
Council's present views regarding the interpretation of the various sections
mentioned above can be summarized as follows—

{a) the providons of section 21 (2) (a} should Be and are interpreted to
mean that a licensed person can only work for one firm or employer
by wirtue of one leemce and, in this eontext, the word “place™ and
the phrase “place of business™ should. as appropriate, be interpreted
ip mean “company” or employer™;

(b} the provisions of section 21 (3) could be suid 1o srengthen the above
contention; and

() the inteni of the legulafion was to make public the identity of ihe
person in charge of every corporation carrying out business in the feld
and, if separate licences were not required in respect of each company
for such o person (even when it iz the same person), the public would
ot Be inoa position to know who s in charge of each of & number
of companics operating at the one place.”
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The philosophy involved in this interpretation of the legislation might well
have mesit, but, 1 regret to say, I am not convinced that such interpretation is correct.
It seems to me that the major difficulty in this regard is the use of the words “place”
and “place of business™ in the Act.

Ewven if the relevant sections are resd in the way suggested by the Registrar
(ie., by substituting “company/employer” for “place” and “place of business™) a
considerable difficulty then arises In respect of the Council's policy of allowing one
person to hold separate licences for separate companies operating from the same
“registered place of business”, as follows—

(i} Section 21 (2) (a) would read—

“Mo person shall by virlwe of one real estale agents licence, keep
more than one (company/employer) for the conduct of his business™

This would support the Council’s present interpretation of the law.
{ii) Section 21 (3} would read—

“Mo person shall in pursuance of this Section be in charge al more
than one [company/ emphiyer) ™,

This would completely negate the policy referred to abowve,

In addition, 1 cannot find in the Act any requirement that a liceasee publicly
isplay his licence or licences. Section 35 merely appears to require him to paint of
x some type of sign showing particular information on the outside of his re
office and any other place he carries on his business.
On the material available to me, 1 am of the view that the question posed must
be answered in the negative for the fellowing reasons—

1. In the absence of any definite indication to the contrary, the phrase
“place of business” should be construed to mean, simply, the place
at which a person/corporation eonducts or carries out his/its business.
The phase, in its own right, is not defined in the Act; bowever, the defini-
tion of “Principal place of business” in section 3 says nothing to indicate
that the phrase should be taken to mean anything other than what it
says in terms of the wsual meaning of the words used in it

2. (a) In terms of sections 20 and 21 of the Act, the only requirements
placed on a corporation appear o be that—

it holds & corporation licende;

and
it employ as a person in charge, at every place it carries out business,
a licensed person,

{b} The only requirement placed on a licensed person appears o be
that he carry out his business, by virtue of one licence, at only one
plece.

3. (a) There appenrs to be nothing in the Act or Regulations which requires
a person, being the person in charge of a number of corporations
all of whom have a common place of business, to take out scparale,
personal licences in respect of each corporation involved.

{b) In this regard, I have noted the then Minister's comments in the
second reading speech, relating to the 1975 Amendment Bill,
wherein, inter alia, e said—

“The Act will simply require that a licensed person be in charge
of every branch office of & corporation, in addition to its principal
place of busingss”. (Hansard—19,3.75—pp. 4966}

Such comments appear to support the view 1 have expressed.

Tt seems o me, then, that a person placed in charge by more than one corpora-
tion, where the corporations carry on their business at the same place, needs only
to hold one personal Hoence, because—

he is & person “who is the holder of a real estate agents licence™. (Section
21 (2) (c))

and
he ia not “in charge at more than one place of business”, (Section 21 (3))
angd

be is not keeping “more than one piace for the conduct of his business as 2
real estate agent™. (Section 21 (2) (a)).
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“Accordingly, al this stage, my view is that the complaint made to me
should be held 1o be wholly sustained and that the Council's conduct
in insisting that additional licences be taken out in respect of cach of the
various corporations by the licensed persons in charge at Chatswood,
Crows Mest, Killara, Northbridge and Willoughby, respectively, might
be found 1o be wrong in terms of section 5 (2} (a) of the Ombudsman
Act in that @t is contrary (o law,

In this regard, 1 woubd welcome your further comments about the views
1 have expressed. In the meantime, it would appear appropriate to
obtain the legal advice referred to by the Hegoirar, in his discussion
with my officer, before requiring the issue of the additional licences
knvolved in this case,”

The Chairman replied that, whilst he could not disagree with my interpretation
of the relevant sections of the Act, he felt sure that it had not been the original intent
for the Act to operate in the way I'd suggested. He expressed the fear that the argu-
ments advanced by the complainant might be a device to avoid the intent of the Real
Estate Salesmans (Stote) Award and certain provisions of the Auctioneers and Agenis
Act.

The Chairman went on Lo say—

“If such a siuation obains and 5 expanded, I could see unnecessary cone
fusion in the minds of the public with a number of companies working out
of one ollice.

A further question is, o what extent are people who are dealing with one
of these companies profected under the Council's Fidelity Fund and indeed
what risk is there to the fund bself. You will appreciate that on your inter-
pretation, one contribution only would be made to the fund In respect of the
sole licensee working out of one office (for six companies).

As my Registrar has indicated 1o you, we awail our own legal advice on the
position.

You are probably aware that we are currently undertaking a complete TEVIEW
of the Auctioneers and Agents Acl In considering the new Act, regard
will be had to the points raised, but in the meantime, following receipt of our
legal advice, 1 will seek the Minister’s view on an immediate amendment
to the present AcL”

I replied in the following terms—

“The problems to which you have alluded in your letier are real omes and 1
can appreciote your concern. However, it seems to me that any question
of circumventing the provisions of the Real Estate Agenis (State} Award
would be one for referra] to and saction by the Department of Industrial
Relations rather than one for the Council 1o become invelved in.

In any cuse, il the legal advice on which you are at present waillng con-
firms the interpretation of the Agt that I have put forward {and, I note,
you do ned disngree with my views in this regard), then the remedy lies not
in implementing the provisions of the Act incorrectly, as appears 1o be the case
at the moment, but in emending the Act to overcome the problems that you
have identified,

I concede that Couwncid shoubd rely on 13 own legal advice but, leaving that
pside, 1 must say that nothing in your letter persuades me that 1 should alter
the view | expressed in my lnst letter regarding Council’s conduct.”

The Chairnian subsequently informed me that the gquestion of amending the
Act was being considered and that the Minister would make a decision when the legal
advice that Council had sought was received,

Following a later telephone discussion with the Chairman, I wrote to him
asking that he confirm that the required legal advice hod been received and 1o inform
me of the substance of such advice. 1 also asked that he let me know whether the
fees paid by the complainant, in respect of the ndditional personal licenses sought at
the Council’s behest, had been refunded in occordance with the agreement made with
the complainant,

The Chairman wrotewmd said—

“As mentioned on the telephone, new Legislation is in the course of prepara-
tion and I expest will be presented to Parlinment within the next few days,
The fees paid by the complainant have been refunded s undertaken by us
in the arrapngement made with him.”

On 3ith October, 1980, the Minister miroduced the propesed amendments in
the Howse in the Auctioneers and Agents (Amendment) Bill. To use the Minister's
words (Second Reading Speech—Hansard=—Me. 2d—pp, 2453, the relevani amemd-
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mient 1o section 21 was designed 1o =, . . probibit a person being a licensee in charge of
& place of business for more than one licensee at that place of business . . .5

In the circumstances, 1 held the complaint to have been sustained but, in the
light of the action taken by Council, ook the matter no further.

DAIRY INDUSTRY AUTHORITY OF N.SW.

Crying over milk that was nod spilt

I received a complaint on behalf of o family business aboul the Auwthority's
refusal to pay them a sum of $4,000 in respect of milk delivered to a receiving agent
in the South-West of the State.

The company conducted a dairying and milk vending operation amd held a
quota to deliver 7983 litres of milk per week to the factory in question. On the 6th
January, 1978, the company applied to the Authority for the surrender of their guota,
nominating 3rd March, 1978, as the ciffective date of surremder,

The company was subsequently notificd by the Authority that approval had
been given for an ex grotie payment in respect of the quota and that the quota would
be cancelled on the 31st March, 1978 The company assumed from this that it would
be enstitled to deliver milk to the Awhority through the receiving agency wp until
31st March, 1978, This it did until 2152 March, 1978, believing that i would be
padd for any milk delivered prior fo the cancellztion date fixed by the Awthority.

In the event, although the receiving faclory purchased the milk delivered
between Ird March and 21st March, 1978, this did nad invelve acceprance of the milk
by the Authority, and payment was nod made af Authority rates. The family company
suffercd a loss of 54,000 as a consequence,

The matier was pursued by the company direct with the Authority in the first
instance and then through the Minister for Agriculiure. These efforts proved fruitless.
The Minister conflrmed the Auvthority’s view that the company had no grounds for
expecting payment of any sum by the Authority in respect of milk delivered on and
after 3rd March, 1978, the date of the quota nominnled by the company,

The company subscquently soughi an investigation under the Ombudsman Act
gnd this was done. The Authority proved most co-operntive, although its first response
was simply 1o re-aflirmn and support its decision.

It became apparent, however, dhat the Aulhority itself had initially favoured
payment to the company and was influcnced against doing so by an internal report
which, in my view, unduly emphasized the quesiion of legal Habitity. An additional
impediment 1o payment was provided by an error within the receiving factory, where
the deliveries received between the 2nd March and 2ist March, 1978, were not
recordied on the weight sheets as they should have been, repandless of the currency
of atherwise of the quola,

I put my views on the matter of legal liability to the Authority, and also

pointed out that, because of the administrative factors involved, and cspecially the
error within the receiving loctory, there could be no guestion of & precedent being

ecreated if payment were to be made.

The position was reviewed by the Authority in the light of the arguments 1
put forward, and an ex groric offer of $3,611 was exiended to and aceepied by the
company. This was the difference between the amount already paid to the company
and the amount they would have receiwed if the guota had been decmed to be
current to 319 March, 1978,

GOVERNMENT INSURANCE OFFICE
A Claim Following o Visit from a Burglar

1 received a complaint from clienis of the Government Insurance Office 1o the
cffect that the Office was wnjusily refusing to meet in full a elaim arising from
burglary. The Office, through ifts agents, a firm of Los Assessors and Investigators,
had declined to pay more than 3440, whilst the complainants contended that articles
wilh a total valoe in excess of 51,000 had been stolen from their bome.

The dificulty in respect of the claim had arisen from the fact that a preliminary
list of stolem items had been preparcd amd given to the kecal Police and to the
Assessars on the Saturday night in the confusion and distress of the hours immediately
following discovery of the burglary. A more comprehensive list was prepared following
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a more thorough check of the contents of the home in the calmer atmosphere of the
following Sunday. This List was claimed fo have been pressnted ot the local Police
Station on the Sunday evening, and to the Asscssors on the following Wednesday, by
which time a piece of jewellery was included on the list given o the Assessors, and
also reparied to the Police Sfation as missing,

When in the course of processing the claim it was learnt by the Assessors that
the only list of stolen items held by the Police was that given to them on the Saturday
night, plus the item of jewellery, the selilement offered was restricted to that list. It
was not undil soome time later that the complainants, in the context of their then current
dispute with the Assessors, visited the Police Station with a check list and themselves
learnt that the Police had mo record of the list presented at the Station on the Sunday
after the burglary. The check list was refained at the Police Station and treated by
them ns the fird revision of the preliminary list,

The Amesors look the view that the check hist was a belated attempt on the
part of the insured to affect o contrived reconcilintion between the only inventory
presented to the Police and the pdjusted investory given to them as the basis of the
claim against the Government Insurance Office. Acting as the agent of the Insurance
CHlice the Assessors aceordingly refused to recognize any claim other than that arising
from the list compiled on the night of the robbery, plus the ltem of jewellery reported
missing on the following Wednesday. In short, the Adsessars reganded the later lists
s an aftempt to chent the Insurance Office,

Having examined Police reports on the procedures followed in the Police
Station, it ssemed (o me (o be at Jeast as likely that the Jist said to have been presented
at the Police Station on the Sunday cvening was mislnid and irretrievably lost, After
all, it had been made clear to the claimands that it was open to them in the ordinary
course of events to adjust the firgt list given to the Police in the stressful cireumstances
of their discovery of the crime, and il there was (o be an attempt o cheat the Insurance
Office it would be glaringly obvicws that both lists would need to mgree, and excep-
thonally silly to atternpt to effect an agreement between those lists months Eater and
only after quite a considerable discrepancy lad been potnted oat fo them as a reason
for refusing 1o meet their claim in foll.

Accordingly, 1 pursued the matter further with the Chairman of the Government
Iresurance Office, and this led 1o direct invelvement of the Office ifsell in n review of
all of the circumstances which had led 1o the complaint under the Ombudsman Act.
‘The outcome of this action was that the Office concluded that the extent of loss
claimed was substantiated and a revised offer of settlement on hat basis was extended
and accepled by the complainants.

GOVERNMENT INSURANCE OFFICE

A De Foacto Insurable Inderest

My complainant went to the Government Insurance Office when he renewed his
house nnd contents insurance policy and, although the policy was in the name of
himself and his wife, as joint owners of the home, he asked to have specifled on the
policy the jewellery of his de faclo wife. He was advised 1o have a valuation done,
and he did so0, Some of the jewellery was ftemnized on the policy and the remainder
was in o list from the valuer retained by the Government Insurance Office.

The house was subsequently burgled and the jewellery stolen. The Government
Insurance Office refused the claim for the jewellery on the ground that there was no
insurable intered, that i, that the eured. the complainant and his estranged wife were
not owners of the property claimed for. The Government Insurance Office claimed that
“no mention was made that any insured property belonged 1o a third party" while the
complainant pointed ouwf that his de facto wife had accompanied him and had been
actively involved In the placing of the jewellery on the policy and that the clerk who
dealt with them knew of her relationship to him.

My atall raised the apparent conflict as to the facts with the Government
Insurance (ffice and there followed meetings between the complainant and their staff,
Finally the Governmendi Insurance Oiffbee accepled that it was the complainant's
inteion that his de facto wife have an insurable inferest in the jewellery and would
have placed her name on the policy if he hod known that was required, The Govern-
ment Insurance Office advised me subsequently that “the matler has now been seftled
io the satisfaction of all pariles concerned™.

T concluded that the complaint was sustained, but nofed that “Following further
cxnlanation the Qffice has scitled the matter satssfactorily™.
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GOVERNMENT INSURANCE OFFICE

A “Shake-Lp"

Many people spproach me when faced with what they consider 10 be an unfair
decision by a public authority. My investigation somctimes reafficms the decision made
by the authority, and satisfies the complainant that the manner of his treatment was fair.,
Often, of course, a second and more thorough leok &f a particular matier by an
nuthority following commencement of my investigation resulls in a changed decision,

In this case, my complainant approached me after a claim under his Houwse-
holders' Insurance Policy was rejected by the Government Insuronce Office.  The
circumstancss leading to this rejection were as follows—

Cn Sth July, 1977, at 6.05 a.m. there was an earth tremor centred near the
towns of Gunning and ¥ass, On that morning, a large erack a down
the wall of his lounge room, plus a number of smaller erack: through the
house, He contacted the Head Office of the Government Insurznce-Office
later that same day and again some months later. Despite assurances that
an officer would come and inspect the damage and provide a elaim form far
completion, it was not untll early in 1980 when a burglary oocurred ot his
heme that an astessor calling on that madter was informed of the earlier
enrthquake damage, The assessor indicafed that an eprthquoke had ot
occurred on the date in queston and that Bo claim was pavable, and a
further letter from the assessors dated 23ed Apeil, 1980, mformed my come-
plainant that there wos no official recosd of any enrthguake at the time he
claimed,

My complainant then contacted the major newspapers and the Commonwealth
Meteorologicn! section nt the University of Mew South Wales and his inquiries
revealed that an earthquake occurred on Sth July, 1977, at Bowning and that
the percussion affected the Parramaita arca and spread Into the North Shore.
A check he made of othed Insurance Companbes revealed that claims had
been paid. He informed the firm of Loss Adjusters acting for the Government
Insurance Office of this information. Mevertheless, the firm maintained that
its imspection of his properiy established that the house was over 100 years
ald, and that while internal cracking had occurred it appezred that this crack-
ing had resulted from normal settbement, and other inguiries made failed o
give evidence of any other damage being caused in the pear vicinity of his
home. Accordingly, the finm wrote to my complainant on 29th August, 1980,
denving linkility and informing my complainant that, while an earth tremor
had occurred on the date clabmed, no reports of damage were received in his
particular ares, The letter Turther stated that the Government Insurance Office
had indicated to ifs loss adjusters it had no knowledge of the claim being
reported and in the circumsiances was unable to sccept Hability. Despite
numerous "phone calls to the Government Insurance (dfice, the decision re-
mained unchanged,

When furnished with this informtaion, T comtacied the Government Insurance
(Hfice in early October, 1980, Following this formal nodification to that office, my
Investigation Offtcer had discussions with an Officer of the Government Insurance Oiffice
mnd inspected the file on this matter. A further Engineering Report was called for, and
my complainant’s property inspected again on 27th October, 1980, The findings on this
pocasion were conveved fo me by letier from the Government Insurance Office dated
2nd December, 1980—

“It is confirmed that initial enquiries indicated that damage appeared to have
resulted from normal setiement and there was po evidence of oiher earth-
quake damage in the near vicinity. However, following further enquiries
it has been determined that o minor earthquake was recorded at the time
in question and that it would probably only affect older buildings, The
damage i comsistent with the alleged cauie and it has therefore been
accepted s a claim under the policy.

Setflement has been negotisted ot 52,475 and a cheque (in this amount) has
now heen despatched,”

My complainant attended my Office personally to express his thanks for resch-
ing a successful conclusion to this matter which he had been pursuing on his own
behalf with the Government Insurance Office for four years.

On 10th December, 1980, 1 wrote to Mr Trimmer, Chalrman of the Gowvern-
ment Insurence Office and informed him [ found the mmphinl 16 be susiained in
terms of the Mew Sonth Wales Ombudsman Act. As the moier wos resolved, 1
then concluded my investigation,
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HEALTH COMMISSION

Furnishing of Incorrect Information

The complainants purchased land in & low-lying area in the Gosford district
and, prior to exchanging contracts, their Solicitor made a formal search with the
Health Commission as to whether the land had been notified a8 unhealthy for building
purposes in terms of section 55 of the Public Health Act.

Section 54 of the Act cnables the Commission, “after causing due inguiry 1o be
made”, 1o report (o the Minister that it would be prejudicial to health that any land
in its then condition be buili upon. Section 55 eénables the Minister, after considering
such report, and publishing notice as required by the Statute, 1o declare that the land
shall mot be built upon until corrective measures arc taken,

The complainant’s scarch was returned by the Health Commission with a certi-
ficate to the effect that the land involved had not been notified under section 55 as
unhealthy building kand and, consequently, they proceeded with the purchase. Subse-
quent events were described by the complainant’s Solicitor in the following terms—

“Afler settlement of the sale the purchasers had plams prepared to croct @
dwelling on the subject property and attended Gosford City Council for the
purposs of lodging same.

On attending to lodge the plans they were advised that the property was one
which may require fill and were told that they must obtain a clearance from
ithe Health Commission prior 1o building approval being granted.

On notifying (us) af the above we provided ouor clients with the Certificate
which was shown to Counctl who indicated that (he Cerlificate appeared to be
incorrect.

{We) then wrote to the Health Commission asking whether or mot the
property did in fact require fill and we enclose herewith a copy of their reply
dated March 11, 1980.7

The reply received from the Commission said—

“T wish to inform you that the subject land is within an area which is being
investigated with a view to its notification under section 55 of the Public
Health Act as unsuitable for building purposss. An inspection by an officer
of this Commizsion disclosed that although some flling has been spread
over the land it is not sufficient fo render the land suitable for building and
in order to do so additional filling conssting of clean soil or sand should be
spread over the land and evenly graded to the levels shown on sketch below.

On completion of filling operations this Commission should be informed in
order that an inspection may be made with a view to excluding this allotment
from the area io be notified.”

The complainants took the position that, had they known the Innd required flling
before building would be permitted, they would have purchased land elsewhere. They
felt that they had been misinformed by the Commission at the time of formal search
and they asked the Commission to meet the cost of fillink. The Commission declined
to do so. /

-
I took up the complaint with the Chairman of the Health Commission and he
informed me that the certificate issued as a result of search was correct in that the
land was not notified under section 55, He sdded—

#The Commission cerfificate omitted disclosing that the property wos in an
area which it was proposed would be nofified as unhealthy for building pur-

poscs at a later date.

{The complainants) have filled their land to & level which will be satisfactory
for building purposes. However, the filling used is not a kind that will allow
for op-site disposal of domestic wasle Waler.

1 enclose for your information a copy of a letter from the Commission to
the complainants indicating that, subject to the approval of Gosford City
Council, no objection will be offered to the erection of buildings on their
allotment.”

I wrote again to the Chairman ond said—

“] am concerned ihat, notwithstanding that the certificate issued on 20th
Movember, 1979, was technically correct in that the land involved had not
been notificd under section 55 of the Public Health Act. the complainants
obviowly relied on the certificate to Indicate that the land was not unhealthy
building land. They claim that this led them to purchase the land,
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There are o number of issues arising from this in respect of which 1 would
appreciate your further advice—

(e} How, other than by approaching the Commission on formal scarch,
coubd the complainants have ascertained that the land might be
regarded a3 unhealthy building land requiring fill?

(b) (i) When was the decision made to investigate the area in which
the land i sitwated with a view to ils notiflcation under section
357

(i) Was such investigntion current when the certificate was issued
and, if s0, why was not mention made of it when the formal
search was made?

{€) Has additional fill been placed on the land since the letter of 11th
March, 1980, was sent to (the complainants)? If not, how is the
land now regarded as meeting the Commission's requirernents™

As a result of the Chairman’s report, T felt that the position could be summarized
a5 follows=—

{a) The subject land was low lying and, when first inspected by Commission
officers in 1971, was under water. It was next inspected in February,
1980, when it was found that, in the intervening time, some filling had
been spread over the land, but this ended about 5 metres short of the
rear boundsry and the filling was generally 0.5 metres below ihe
required level,

(b) The allotment adjoining on the north-west comer had been filled in 1976
to the required height and was well above the subject lof. Another lot
next door but one, was filled to the required level in 1978, The Commis-
sion contended that it should have been obvious that further filling was
required to make the land suftable for building.

() CGrosford Council was aware of the Commission's Interest in this ares as
it was kept informed of the results of inspections. The previous owner,
also, may have known of the position but there was no clear evidence
in this regard.

(d) The area had first come under notice about 1965, In 1969 o large part
of the area had been notified as unsuitable for building. Tt was realized,
then, that the area should be further extended but, at that time and wntil
recently, there had been liile activity in the aren and its notification
had a low priority, Council was aware of the Commission’s interest in
the land and, in the last few years, several lots had been inspected to
supply filling requirements.

{e) The notification of the area has not yet been finalized a8 more field work
was needed before this could be done, and, o date, there had been
mare urgent work to be earried out,

{(f} The Chairman agreed that it would have been preferable had the cer-
tificate sued by the Commission drawn attention to the proposal o
notify the complainants® land under section 55 of the Public Health Act,
but this, unfortunately, had been overlooked, He added that any incons
venience caused thereby was regretted but pointed out that filling the
land to the Commission's requirements was to the owner's advantage as
:.':; fand would otherwise remain wet for protracted periods following

n.

(2} An inspection on 27th May, 1980, had disclosed that the required filling
had been spread on the land. and accordingly the complainants had
been ndvised that mo objection would be offered to the erection of
busldings on the allotment,™

After carefully considering all of the material available to me, 1 took the view
that the action taken by the Commission in this case, following reference of building
plans to Council, was designed to asmist the complainants to overcome the problems
evident on the land and which, no doubs, if not corrected, would have led to refusal
af permission to build by Gosford City Council pursuant to seetion 313 of the Local
Ciovernment Act.

Al the same time, 1 formed the view thai the faci that the land was being
investigated for possible notification under the Public Health Act should have been
made known at the time the formal search was dealt with.

I, therefore, wrote to the Chairman and sald—

“It seems clear from what you have had 1o say that Gosford Cliy Couneil,
being aware of the Commission's interest in the ares, informed the com-
plainants of the Hkely problems at the time building plans were submitted



41

for approval, Whilst 1 accept that the Commission was trying to help the
complainants by drawing their attention to the problems with the land, the
terms of the Commission's letber of 11th March, I'"80, to (the complainants)
appeared to clearly indicate that, unless ihe kand was further filled, building
approval would not be fortheoming. It may well be that it was not the
Commission's intent o convey such an impression, bearing in mind that the
procedures laid down in sections 54 and 55 of the Public Health Act had
not been followed.

In other words, whilst it was open o Gosford City Council to refuse building
approval, in terms of section 313 of the Local Government Act, and in the
light of its knowledpe of the Commission's intefest in the area, it was nod
open te the Commission to infer, in the absence of notification of the land,
that spproval for building would not be given by the Commission, The position
should have been made much clearer to (the complainanis) than if was.

In all the circumstances, you might now let me kneow whether there s any
reason why, m fulufe, certificnies issued should not disclose that, where
such is the case, land the subject of search, B subject to investigation for
possible motification in terms of the Public Healih Act.”

I was pleased when the Chairman informed me that, in future, search certificates
would be appropriately endorsed along the lines that T had suggested.

DEPARTMENT OF LANDS

Delay in Dealing with Application
I investigated a complaint wlloging extensive delay in dealing with an applica-
tipn to converl & Special Leage to frechold and the reply I received from the Under
Secredary for Lands indicated that the complaimt was well founded,

Problems had ariven due 1o a decentralization of work from the Crown Lands
Office 1o Land Board Offices. The need to relocnie stalf {involving promotion action
in most cases] had resulted in some vacancies occurring and had camsed delay.

Whilst 1 apprecinted the difficultics facing the Department, my coacern was
thot applicants ought 1o be warned that their applications were not going 1o be deall
with quickly and the appropriate time to do this appeared to me to be when an
application was first received at o Land Board Office.

In this regard, inquirics [ had made indicated that it was not, then, the practices
io acknowledge receipt of applications but that a form letier wad shostly 1o be intro-
duced to overcome this difficulty. One of my officers had diseussed the matter with
the Department's Secrefarial and | had been provided with a copy of the form letier.

I wrote to the Under Secretary and said—

“Whilst the leiter will certainly be an advaniage over the current practice of
not acknowledging receipt of applications at all, in my view, bearing in mind
the delays that applicants can now expest to encounter, the letter does. not go
far enough in that it does not specify that a delay of several months can be
expected.  Meither does it tell the applicant of his ability to put forward
special circumstances which might warrant special priority in processing his
application.

I am firmly of the view that applicants should be plainly told the siuation
regarding delay, as you have outlined it to me, and be given the opportunity
to pud forward any special circumstances which might exist. [ realize that
form letter AT44 has only recently been printed and o would be unrealistic
o alier it af this tfime {perhaps it could be altered when it is heing reprinted
o replenish stocks).”

The Under Secretary replied. saying—

“It is ngreed that applicants should be mformed by the Department of the
sitwation regarding likely delay in the processing of a conversion application.
Apart from any delay caused by work volumes and stafl shortages, ctc., in
Land Beard Offices, the length of time to finolize o conversion application
depends on the nature of the administrative action involved in the particular
application. In this regard, the early finalization of a conversion application
is often outside the control of the Department. In particular, where an
application is affected by the provisions of Part 114 of the Forestry Act,
1918, the Forestry Commission is afforded a statutory period of three months
after receipt of notice of the application or, on advice, a further period not
excesding three months, in which to certify that it objects to the granting or
confirmation of the application,
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The Mational Parks and Wildlife Service is afforded a similar period in which
(o indicaile Uiz attitude towards applications affecting its arcas of interest.

In generul, it may not be unusual for a period of six months or even more,
to elapse in finalizing a conversion application. In all the circumslances, i
has been decided to indicate to all applicants by means of a footnote to
form AT44, that it 15 not unusual for & period of dx months or more 1o
elapse in finalizing o conversion application. The advice will be incorporated
inta the form on re-print,

The proposal that it should also be indicated to applicants l:'l'lhl lhu]r may
put forward special circumstances which might warrant special priority in
processing their applications, is not favoured. This could oaly be expected
1o result in n large number of requests for expedition which could only
be met to the detriment of other applications, etc., and in many instances,
would be incapable of fulfilment because of administrative and slatutory
requirerments,

Where genuine reasons exist for expedition, it has been found that it is usual
for applicants to indicnte this to the Depariment of their own volition.
Where practicable, the Department endeavours (o assist the parties. It is felt
that advice to applicants of the likely period of delay will, in itsell, serve to
result in applicant submitting requests for expedition where special eireum-
stances exist, without the mecessity for in effect inviting them to do so."

I nccepted the views expressed by the Under Secretary, welcomed the action he
proposed fo fake and concluded my iquiries

DEPARTMENT OF LANDS

Proposed Termination of a Permissive Occupany and Subsequent Demolition of
a Riverside Cofinge

This complaint was from a Solicitor on behalfl of a brother and sister in relation
to a proposal by ihe Minister for Lands to demolish their family holiday cottage,
wharf and boat ramp on the banks of the Kalang River at Urunga.

The family had been advised in June, 1979, that the structures would be
remaoved because in 1965 the Department had adopted a general policy of clearing
foreshore occupations as they became available, Part of that policy was that mo
transfers woild be allowed other than In special circumstances where hardship could
oeciir.  Unfortunaiely for the family, the father (the holder of the permissive
oocupancy}, died in June, 1966, and ihe family had pot at that stage applied to
transfer the Permigive Occupanies into their names.

In early August, 1966, the Lands Department notifisd holders of P.OCs in that
area of amended conditions relating to them and apparently such a nofice went to
ihe father (recently decensed) advising that the PO, could not be transferred excepl
in special circumstances, Mothing further happened until early 1977 when the Depart-
ment advised a number of owners of cottages on Permissive Occupancies of the
termination of their leases because the structures thereon were derelict.

Such o npotice was mot isued to the late father as apparently the cottage
was in good condition. However, the son on finding out nbout the nolice, on behalf
of the sstale wrate o the bocal member of Parlinment supporting the other owners
of the Permissive Oocupancies so served, 1o have these notices of termination with-
drawn. It was ns a resuli of his letber that the Lands Depariment became aware of
the death of the father,

Shorily after the Department issued on 318t August, 1977, a nofice of termina-
tion of that Permissive Occupancy addressed to the Estate and giving its rensons
as “holder decensed and occupancy aot ransferablbe".

The family then tried through various members of Parliament to have the motice
withdrawn and the Permissive Occupancy transferred to their name,

On 19th July, 1979, 1 received the complaint and commenced an Investigation
with the Lands Department, The first action faken was [o request the Depariment
to provide a report on the basis that according to the Solicitors the policy of the
Department had not been fairly or consistently applied. At the same time T requested
that the demolition action scheduled for the removal of the coltage be postponed
while my inquiries were under way,

The Solicitor in the meantime had obiained an Exparte Injunction te restrain
the Minister and the Department from demalishing the cottage and other improvements,

The Department then provided s report which advised that the proposed
demolition had been stayed following the service of a notice of Injunction and
Summons,
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The report went on as follows—

“In 1965 the Department formulated a policy of clearing the foreshores
of the Kalang River near Urunga (formerly Bellingen River) of all the
Permissive Occupancics then existing by 31st December, 1933, On 4th
August, 1966, the holders of all the occupancies involved were advised of
the decision. A copy of the notice sent to Mr 5. ..... is attached. It will
be scen that holders were informed that—

i. o transfer wall be allowed other than in special circumstances where
hardship could sccur:

3, In the event of a bullding becoming derefict through any cause,
the remains of the building are to be removed from the site and
the land is to be beft in a clean and tidy condition;

3. no extensions or alterations to existing buildings will be permitied
pnel no pew buildings are to be erected.

In December, 1976, because of the inadequate standard of construction and
maintenance of the builldings a number of holders of Permissive Occupancies
in the area were ksued with notices of termination effective from 6th August,
1971

In January, 1977, Mr 5...... made representations (through the local
M.P.) on behalf of the affected tenants. As a result of these representations
it was decided to withdraw the termination notices, but it was il the
intention 1o terminate all occupancies by 315t December, 1983,

It was only after Mr S....... letter in January, 1977, that the Department
became aware that his father had died and that Mr S...... and his sister
were occupying the premises. In accordance with the stated policy the
occupancy was terminated from 6th Awgust, 1977,

With regard to the three occupancies referred to in your letter it is true
that “transfers” were permitted. These “transfers” were permitted by the
Minister as the applicants had shown in each instance that hardship would
oceur if “transfer” were oot permitted, The “tramsfer” to Messes ...
ocourmed in 1977, 00 . ..... In 1970 and to .. ... im 1958,

On 11th April, 1978, the Minister directed that under no circumstunces
were any further “tramsfers™ 1o be approved but thal tenants who were
using their occupancies for their own personal use either on a permancnt
or hoHday hasis could retain the occupancy for their respective lifetimes.
Tenants who were wsing their premises for rental purposes would have
their occupancics terminnted as froem 3ist December, 19383,

On 31st May, 1978, all remaining tenants were advised of this direction.
Mesirs _..... e and ...... qualify for a “life” tenancy under the
Minister's direction but it does not apply o Mr S5.... .. or Miss S......
as they were not lenants,

A series of representations to the Minister have been received regarding the Mr
and Miss S———occupancy. These representafions were all carefully con-
sidered and Departmental policy explained. The request for “transfer” was
refused ns the Department was not satisfied that hardship would accur.

Several of the occupancies &t Urunga have been ferminated and the siruc-
tures removed, The Department has provided MrS...... and Mis 5. ... ..
with explanations for its decision and considers it has applied its policy
consistenthy,”

My inquiries over the next few months involved interviewing the Solicitor
and his clients, examining the Department’s fles on all of the P.Os in that area, an
inspection of the cottages in guestion as well as further considerable correspondence
with the Department. | then pointed out o the Department that there appeared to be
some inconsistencies in the transfers of other properties in that area from parents
i children on the basis of “hardship™ and that it seemed to me that it should act
fairly in cxccuting its policy. 1 specifically pointed oui some similarities in ofher
cases and recommended that the Department reconsbder its decision and offer the
8. ..... family lifetime tenuare,

The Deparimeni subsequently adwised that the Minister had approved of the
brother and sister being offered o PO of the structure for a lfetime term, to commence
from Tih August, 1977 (the day afier the lermination of the former occupancy).
However that the offer was conditional on the withdrawal of the Summons of 197%
and the dissolving of the resultant notice of Injunstion at no cost to the Department.

The Depariment also pointed out that it did not propose to discontinue with
its efforts to clear the foreshore area concerned of the occupations which at that time
conatituted nn infringement of the publics right to use the land. Also that it would
have to be satisfied with o much larger term project than was first envisaged in 1965,
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I passed on this information to the Selictor's who agresd te the Department’s
offer on behall of thelr clients.

DEPARTMENT OF MAIN ROADS

Refusal to compensate for domage to vehicke

My mfﬁplain:nl wiole 1o me and, fmier olia, said—

“,

T

T

I

On Sth September, 1979, 1 was driving my car, & 1951 Rover with a
caravan in tow, south on the Pacific Highway. North of Kempsey a flag-
man direcied me to drive along the shoulder of the read as the roadway
wis being recomstructed. 1 saw amongst the stones and loose earth a
reck which looked too large to drive over. | could net go to the left of
it a5 1 would have had 1o drive through the drainage ditch, 1 could not
go to the right of It as & grader was approaching from the opposite
direction. | applicd the brakes but could not stop in time and crashed
ofto the rock causing considerable damage.

Owerlooking the scene were three men in the cabin of a truck. 1 dis.
covered which man was in charge and asked him to sign a piece of
puper cerlifying that my car had been damaged there by a rock, this he
digd,

With considerable difficulty the car was driven to Kempsey where some
repairs were effected. Other repairs were elfected in Sydncy,

The next day [ spoke by telephone o Mr Max Underhill, the Works
Engineer, Department of Main Roads at Port Macquarie. He advised
me 13 wrile 1o him making my claim for damages.

0 25th September, 1979, [ wrode to Mr Underhill claiming compensa-
tion of 338545 and enclosing copies of invoices,

A letter dated Gth Movember was received from the office of the Secre-
tary, Diepariment of Main Roads, rejecting my claim,

On 12th Movember, 1979, I wrote 0 the Hon. Peter Cox, Minister for
Highways, asking for his assistance.

The Hon, H. F. Jensen, Minlster for Roads, replied on 4th March, 1980,
rejecting my claim,

On 20th May, 1980, I wrote 1o my local member, the Hon. Meville Wran,
reguesting his assistance.

From the Premier's Office, I received a letter addressed to the Preeier
from the Hom, 5. D. Einfeld, Acting Minister for Roads, advising that
the Diepartment would not accept liability for my repairs,

I request your assistance in oblaining justice drasing to yvour attention several

wankE,
inl

by

fc)

My claim rests on the following undisputed facts.

. The road wes being reconstructed so the only way the rock could
have been in that position was as o resolt of the action of DME,
stafl.

2, A flagman was in allendance and directed me 1o drive where 1 did,

3. Three emplovecs of Department of Main Roads were in a
truck facing the scene.

4, My losses resulted directly from striking the rock.

The denial of domages has been repeatedly based on the statement ™at
the time of the pecident there was & clear path available (o your vehicle
and this path was used by other traffic quite safely®,

What path was followed by vehicles ahead of me 1 do not know, A
1951 Rover with a van in tow travels ab o gentle pace and we were
seldom close behind other vehicles and none were in sight on that
idny,

It is possible that other vehicles went to the right of the rock. As I
repeatedly stated in correspondence I could not go to the right of it
large grader was approaching and o hesd-on collizisn would
resulied,

The value of the claim is reasonable as [ have not had the vehicle fully
repaired. There s a badly buckied chassis cross member and other
bent items but as these damaged paris do not affect road-worthiness they
have been left. T do not intend to make any further claims.™

HH
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In taking up his complaint, [ dd the complainant (heoceforth referred to as
Mr A) of the difficuliy 1 face in matters relating 1o deninl of legal liability and of my
imabilily to determine same, I undertook to look at whether the Department hosl
obtained all relevant reports and information, and whether it had dealt with Mr A's
claim on a proper basis,

1 subsequently received a report from the Department (logether with the relevant
file which I had asked for), the terms of which were as follows—

(a} A thorough investigation into the cause of the accident was carried out
following receipt of Mr A's claim but no evidence of negligence on the
part of the Depariment's employvees, which would justify meeting the cos
of repairs to his vehicle, eould be found.

{b} At the tme the accident ocourred, Diepartmental employees were carry-
ing out heavy patching work on the section of the Highway in question
and reports indicated that Mr A was directed to proceed through the
work site keeping fowards the centre of the carragewny. However,
instend, he chose to drive his vehicle towards the side of the road where
there was a quantity of loose material and, in so doing, struck a rock
which damaged his vehicle,

(¢) Leaving aside the fact that the Department claimed that there was a
clear, unobstructed path available to Mr A's vehicle and that this path
wias used by other traffic quite safely, the Department mainiained that
it was the responsibility of a driver to choose and negotiate the course
to be followed by his vehicle. The Department pointed out that Mr A
admitied being aware of the conditions but had driven at a spesd, no
matter how slow, st which he was unable to stop when confronted with
an obstacle which he recognized as being too high to surmount.

(d} In the circumsiances, the Depariment considered that the pccident was
the result of an error in judgment on Mr A’ behalf and as such, liabiliy
could not be accepled by the Depariment.

Having examined the Depariment’s file, | considered that there were o number
of issues arising out of Mr A’s complaint that 1 should pursue. To this end, I arranged
for one of my officers to interview Mr A in order to clarify certnin aspects of the
secident. A transcript of such imerview is aftached to these notes marked “Anncxure
A,

At the same time, | wrote to the Depariment selting ot my views following
examination of the relevant file and those views can be summarized as follews—

L. It seemed to me that Mr A's claim had been consistently rejected on the
basis that—

(a} there had been o clear and unobstructed path available 1o him and
this path had been wsed by other vehicles quite safely;

(b} Mr A had been directed 1o proceed through the work site keeping
towards the centre of the carmageway; nmd

{e) it was the responsibility of a driver to choose and nepotiate the
course to be followed by his vehicle,

2. Quite clearly, the issues in dispute were whether there had been a clear
and uncbstrected path available, and whether the fingman had directed
Mr A to follow any particular roufe {and, if so, which oncl. Mr A's
claims were clear in both respects; however, in my view, the same could
not be sxid for the reports on the Department’s file which [ summarized
s follows—

(i) The official Accident Report prepared by the Works Engineer and
endorsed by the Divisional Engineer placed Mr A's cor and caravan
second in a line of three vehicles and taking a different route to
that taken by the first and third vehicles. The clear inference
here was that, if Mr A had followed the first vehicle, he would have
had no problems. Thot report also placed the grader facing in the
same direction as southbound traffic and well to the right hand side
of the centre line when looking south.

(i) The Grader Operator, however, had reported that he was travelling
north and on the right hand side of the read when looking north.
He, the operator, placed himself on the opposite side of the road
from the position shown in the official repart. He also confirmsed
Mr A's claim that there was no vehicle in front of Mr A's vehicle.
The Operator claimed that other vehicles had pone around him to
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his left and then back o the correct side of the road once past the
grader, but that Mr A had gone past him on his (the operator's)
right.

(iii} The Roller Operator reported that he had been rofling “about the
centre of the road”. He could not remember where the grader was.

{iv) The Flagman's report had Mr A's vehicle second in 2 line of
vehicles and placed the grader well to the right side of the centre
line heading south (i, in the same position as shown on the
oificial Accident Report and not where the grader operntor said he
was).

3. It was apparent that some confusion existed, particularly about where
the grader was, In my view, there could be little doubt that it had been
where the grader operator said it was and his version appeared 1o support
Mr A's version. In addition, he supportad Mr A’s claim that there wers
no vehicles immedistely in front of Mr A knd, therefore, no vehicle for
Mr A to follow. '

4, It scemed to me that the Department had made practically no attempt to
iron out the inconsistencles arising from the various reports. For
example, none of the employees concerned had been interviewed as far
as 1 could asceriain. Some aftempt had been made in January, 1980,
to clarily the sliuation as described by Mr A in his original letter to the
Department and in his subsequent representations to the Minister,
particularty his consistent claim that he was the first vehicle to move
through the roadwork site af the time (ie., that there was no vehicle, in
sight, in front of him), as opposed to what had been said in the official
Accident Report. The minute from the Engineer-in-Chief to the Divi-
sional Engineer in this respect was quite interesting in that it suggested
that Mr A might have a case and asked for further information . . .
which would justify o refusal of (Mr A% claims”.

5. The conflicting reports referred 1o above were provided s result of
that minute but, in my view, had done little to clarify the situation.

& In o minute of 29ith January, 1980, from the Works Engineer, under
cover to which the reports were provided, it was admitted that there
was ¥, . . conflict as to (Mr A’s) position in the line of waffic”, Meither
this minute por the report obtained from the relevant Flagman dealt
with Mr A's claim that he had been directed to fake a particular route
by the fagman. In addition, whilst the minute referred to a statement
by the Ganger in charge of the workmen such statement did not appear
on the Dicpartment’s file.

7. The inconsistencies apparent in the reporis had been disposed of,
apparently on the basis that they were not significant, by decision of
g Deputy Commissioner rather than by proper investigation,

8. In addition. none of the reports dealt with whether Mr A had been
directed to follow a particular route by the flagman and, instead, the
concept of a driver’s responsibility “1o choose and pegotiate the course
o be followed by his vehicle™ had been introduced. T could not agree
with this approach. In my view, where the Department had employees
in atlendance 0 conirol trafic, and sech employess indicated a route
to be followed, it would be a foolhandy motlofst indeed who chose,
himsclf, to adopt some other rowte,

In the event that o motorist damaged his wehicle after ignoring a direction
from a Departmental employee, 1 amumed that the Depariment would
reject any claim he made on the basis of his non-compliance with
the dircction given. It seemed that the Department, then, would never
be Liable.

9. The Department had had two further opportunities o investigate and
clarify the inconsistencies referred to—when Mr A made political repre-
sentations through the Premier and when 1 referred his complaint. In
both cases, the Department had merely drafted replies based on an
garlicr decision made by & Deputy Commissioner on 23th February™.

After outlining all of this to the Departmend, 1 went on to say—

*At this stage, I am not satisfied that (Mr A's) claim was properly investigated.,
There remains considerable confusion in the Department's reporis regarding
whether the flagman directed him to the left of the grader, to the right of
the grader or anywhere ot all and about the position of the grader. There
was even conflict a3 to whether there was a vehicle in front of (Mr A)
but this was resolved in his favour,
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The significant thing about the latter point, however, scems fo me to have
beea overlooked. If there was no vehicle immedintely in front of (Mr A)
there was no vehicle for him to safely follow and it matters mot that other
wehicles, arriving at the scene before him and already through the road-
works, had traversed the work site without incident. The location of the
road plant had probably changed by the time (Mr A} arrived from when
the last car had gone through before e arrived,

A great deal depends, it seems 1o me, on whether he was directed onlo a
particular section of the roadway by (the) flagman, . . ., and this question
should have been clarified.”

I asked the Department for further information, including a copy of the state-
ment made by the Ganger but not on file, T also asked where I might conveniently
interwicw the variows workmen involved if 1 considercd it necessary to do so.

Several weeks later, I had discussions with the Deputy Commissioner of Main
Roads and he delivered personally a further letter outlining the Department’s position,
1 regret to say that my discussions with the Deputy Commissioner did not bring about
& resolution of the matters in dispute and, i the end, we agreed to differ; his position,
in fact, was as set out in the Department’s letter wherein the following comments
werg made—

“There is mo doubt that the driver of a vehicle has the primary responsibility
to conirol and manage the wehicle with safety and the responsibility to avold
eonflict with stationary and fixed objects rests clearly with such deiver.

Flagmen are provided by the Department to direct draffic at works in progress
and drivers of vehicles are required to observe a direction to stop exhibibed
by a flagman. There Is no requirement for a driver 1o accept a direction
to proceed.

This sitwation exists equally at traffic light signals where the diplay of a
red signal clearly requires a vehicle not to proceed. However, the display
of & green signal merely indicates that, subject to the Motor Traffic Act
and Regulations, the driver may proceed provided he has a clear path,

Even where a green light is displayed, or conversely a Police Officer indicates
that & wehicle may procesd, the onus is still with the driver to avoid a
collision. Should a driver ender an interseclion which is mot clear, even
where directed to do so, and collide with a stationary wvehicle or other
visible object, then the driver is clearly at fault.

In the case in question, (Mr A)d admits that he saw the large stone with
which he collided and that be was proceeding too rapldly under the con-
ditions 1o enable him to stop before colliding with the object.

In wview of the over-riding responsibility of the driver of a vehicle to avoid
stafiopary and fixed objects it was considersd that further inguiries, including
the obtaining of additbonal details from (Mr A) in relation to his version
of the accident, were nol necessary.”

I decided 1o pursee my inguiries a5, [ confiess, 1 had some difficulty in accepting
the approach that was being put forward by the Department. In this regard, 1 decided
that it was pecewsary for the Department's cmplovees directly involved ot the scene
of the accident 1o be interviewed, particularly the flagman.

Accordingly, one of my officers interviewed a number of the Department's
emplovees, who were invelved in the roadworks at the time of Mr A's accident, at
Port Macquarie and points Morth on 22nd January, 1981, following their return to
work after the Christmas break. Not surprisingly, such interviews did nothing to
resolve the inconsisiencies in the various reports that bad been obfained by the Depart-
ment in January of the previous year. The overall results of the interviews can be
summarized as follows—

(i)} the grader was placed in three different positions Including, aceording
te one employes, completely off the readway altogether;

(it} the relevant Flagman was placed in two differenl positions, an the rond
shoulder (by two employees) and in the centre of the ropd (by three
employees);

(i) the point of impact was shown in four dilferent positions ranging from
one side of the road to the other (and, by one emplovee, on the
centrefing) |

(iv) the route taken by Mr A through the work was shown in four different
locations ranging from one side of the road to the other;

(v] the *safe” roule allegedly available to Mr A was shown in three different
positions,
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The employvees who were spoken 1o were the Grader Driver, the Ganger, the
refevant Flagman, a Back Hoe Operator and the Flagman who had been stationed on
the southern end of the work site.

I wroite to the Department outlining the resulis of the inderviews and, in my
letier, 1 went on o say—

“1 realize, of course, thalt in light of the lerms of your letier of 18th
Movember, which the Deputy Commisioner handed to me when he attended
here on 1%th November, the Depariment’s view i that the inconsistencies
and conflicting stories are not all that impertant.  For the purposs of my
investigation, however, 1 do regard them as important for several reasons
{incleding the need for me o try o establish what did happen} which will
become clearer Inter in this letler.

In circemstanoes such as exid in this case, where | am confronted with
quite conflicting stories, any attempt fo establish the events that actually
occurred must, of necessity, invelve some consideration of probabilities nod
the reasonable beliel that any reasonably sensible person would be unlikely
io do something which could only be regarded as plainly ridiculbous.

In my considerntion of this matter, therefere, 1 have taken inte account
{reasonably, I believe) the version of events recounted by the complabnant,
both in his letiers 1o the Depariment and in an imlerview with one of my
officers on 315t October, 1980 {a copy of the transcript of that interview is
enclosed) as well as the conflicting accounis related by the Department's
employees,

O that balance, 1 consider that | should accept (Mr A's) version of what
pocured and his statemenis concerning (he location of road plant and
employvess. | consider it reasonable 1o do so because—

{a) there is considerable doubd, even amongst the Deparfments own
eomployees, in this regard and, in the absence of anything to suggest
that (Mr A) s uniruthful, | can see no reason why he should not
be given the benefit of such doubt; and

(b} all of his significant claims are supported by atl least one of the
Department’s employees {and, in some cases, by more than one},

Turning now 1o the views expressed in your letter of 18th November, it seems
to me that you nre clearly suggesting that the onws is always on the driver of
a medor vehlele to drive his wehicle only where it s safe and there is no
risk of damage occurring. | have noted, in this respect, the analogous
exarmples referred to therein (the driver at traffic fights or a1 an intersection
controfled by a policemand and on which the Depariment appears largely 1o
base or, at least, justify its views,

With respect, | do not agree, for to accepl this approach would countenance
a proposition that the Department would never have any liability and that
this would always rest with the motorist, In this regard, 1 cannot accept that
the situation confronting a motorist at a set of traffic lights or at a police
conirolled intersection can ressonably be eguated with the situation confront-
ing him at a site where roadworks are in pregress and which is controled
by the people carrying out such works. [In the latter case, ﬂ'mc s normally
no question of aveiding other traflic or objects but of avoiding obatacles and
dangers created by the work being carried out and by the presence of road
plant working on the road,

I am of the view that, having crented by its works a situation of possible
harm, the Department has some responsibility to ensure that traffic being
controlled by its employees is directed safely through the hazards. The
suggestion that a driver i not required 1o accept a direction to proceed, 1
believe, is somewhat trite. This may well be the legal position, strictly
speaking, but its logical extension is to regard as irresponsible any mntmi:-t
who nccepls the direction, relying on the employee’s indication that o s
safe to proceed, without leaving his vehicle and surveying for himself the
best route o take.

The Department’s oft repeated statement that (Mr A) has “admitted” that
he was “proceeding too rapidly™ to stop when he saw the stone appears (o
me 10 be taking out of context what {Mr A), in fact, said. He said that the
sione was parily obscured by the loose materinl pushed aside by the grader
and. by the time he was able to see it, he was unable to stop his vehicle in
time to aveid hitting the stone, even though he applied the brake, because his
vehicle had traction problems duc to the loose materfal over which it was
travelling. He was unable 1o swerve to avoid the stone because of the
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position of the grader. He has not, at any time, admitted that he was
travelling “too rapidly™ and the Department’s attempis to suggest otherwise
are o be deplored.

It may well be that the gluring inconsistencies In the various reports belatedly
obtained by the Department would not kave been resolved even if reasonable
afternpts to do 5o had been made by the Department at the outset. This
will mever be known; but | am certain that the chamce of resolving the
inconsistencies was greater when (Mr A) made his claim and diminished
proportionately the longer it was left. As it was, (Mr A's) claim, initially,
was decided on the besis of what can only be as mn inaccurate,
misleading and quite uszless official Accident Report which indicated, quite
wrongly, that there was a clear and unobstructed path available ta (Mr A)
straight down the left-hand carrisgeway and all he had to do was follow the
car in front of him,

Even though the official report was in direct conflict with all that (Mr A)
had said when he made his claim for reimbursernent on the Dicpartment, no
action was taken to clarify the position ot the local Works Office, at the
Divisional Office, or at the Department’s Head Office. Thus, on Sth November,
1978, the Department weede to (Mr A) rejecting his claim,

Yet the very next day, at least one officer of the Department apparently
considered that (Mr A's) version of events ought to be looked ot o little more
carafully. That officer minuted the file a8 follows—

“Ask D0 E. to confirm fe agrees with deninl of lability in the circum-
stances and for comment on state of road as claimed in 3rd paragraph
of (Mr A's) leter.”

The response from ihe local Works Office mukes it clear thot, even then, no
aftempl was made to clarify the situntion in the light of the conflicting stories
tald by (Mr A) on the one hand, and the officinl Accldent Report on the
other.

When (Mr A) made representations 1o the Minister, the Engineer-in-Chief, in
a minute to the Divisional Engineer, expressed the view that . . . perhaps
(Mr A) would bave a case against the Deparimeni”, [ note, however, that
the Divisional Engincer was not asked whether (Mr A) might have “a case™,
but whether ®, . . there is any further information available . . . which
would jwatify ¢ refusal of {Mr A's) claim,” (my cmphasis).

It wns at this stage, over four months afier the accident had occurred, that
the Works Oflice finelly obtained, from some of the employees involved,
reports which did nothing fo resolve the Bsues in dispute, Such reports
appear 1o have been mercly obtained and sent on and no effort was made,
apparently, to try to establish with any certainty exactly what the position
had been.

The Department’s reasons for rejecting (Mr A's) claim for relmbursement
have varied a8 the matter progressed and it almost appears that as one reason
for rejection was refuled or called into question, anather arose to replace it.

Such reasony can he summarieed as Follows—

Reason
{m) {Mr A} conld have faliowed

Copriment
This wus based on incorrect information,

the path of the vehile in in ihe officinl Accident He that
froat of him end, in apy cane. (Mr A%} vehicle was second in g line
there wns plenty of room for of  traffic that the lefi-hand
him 1o swerve @ miss the um;ﬁ:m wak clear of pbsErscibos
stome {Movember, 1979}, {iz, the grader).

{b} There was s clezr and mnob-
structed path available and
other wvehicles bl weed this
route quite safely. (Mr A,

o, ¢hose o drive on
the road shoolder (March,
1980},

Modified 10 accoant for acceplance of {Mr
Al clnim that there wai no vehicle
ui fromt af him but stifl based on con-
Micting imformntian.

fe) (Mr A) was direcied 1owards
the cemtre of the road o
cheose insdead to drive tovwards
the side of the rosd. In oy
case, If was his responsibilicy
to choose a safe poth.  (Sep-
bember, 1980.)

lhrrrﬁlﬁnpﬂm 0 be md ome scintilin of

[ ce o suppon the claim that (Mr
Al wms dirgcied lowards the cenire of
the road.

1dl

G HEAD—E

It is always the nworisis
respomsibility 10 proceed only
where it I8 safe 1o do so.
{Mavember, 1980)

The appears o mean that once ike molorist
procesds. it fx always his fanh if his
wehicle susiaing damage, irrespective of
the circomslances,
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After consbdering all of the material availlable 1o me in this matter, my
present views can be summarized as follows—

1. that the Departecnt failed to propecly investigate (Mr A’s) claim
for reimbursement and, initially, improperly and unfairly rejected
it relying on an incorrect report;

that the Department's failure to properly investigate the claim at
the time it was made mitigated against any possibility of establish-
ing the facts due to the simple efMuxion of time. In fact, the first
atiempt to clarify the obvicus inconsistencies occurred over four
months after the accident happened;

3. that the Department's witempd e equate the position of a motorist
confronted with lhazards created by the Deportmsent due to rosd-
waorks with that of u motorist proceeding through traffic Hghts or
an intersection controlicd by o policeman & erroneous and unreason-
able;

4. that the Depaniment appears 10 have mounted s continuing search
for ressons to justify its initdal rejection of (Mr A') claim, rather
than to have examinad the claim on s merits; and

5. that there was and stll is doubl regarding the location of the rond
plant and the Flagman, and about whether and/or which directions
were given by the Flagman in relation to which way (Mr A)
should cause his vehicle to go. In the absence of any evidence to
suggest that {Mr A) is untruthful, the benefit of the doubt should,
reasonably, be given to [Mr Aj.

Accordingly, T am new suggesting that the Depariment scriously reconsider
(Mr A's) claim in the light of the views that I have expressed and, if neces-
sury, the question of reimbursement as an act of grace be looked at”™

13

Finally, in April, 1981, the Department wrote to me and, jnier alia, sald—

“While it i still roaintnined thot the Depariment has no legal obligation to
reimburse (Mr A) for the domage sustained o his vehicle, the Department is
prepared in this instance, without ndmission of liability, to make an ex grona
payment of $388.45 to (Mr A} in view of the difficulties in determining
the actual positioning of the Departmental road plant and fiagman at the
time the accident cccurred, Payment will be in full satisfaction of (Mr A's)
claim, and subject to his signing a release indemnifying the Department
against any further claims in respect of the matter,

Advice in this regard will be forwarded 1o (Mr A} in the near fulwre,”

1 was pleased, of course, to be able fo ppss on the good news o Mr Al
However, 1 beliecve that this case is an excelient example of the need for public
authorities o properly comsider ond fully investigate any claim made against them
for compensation of reimbursement of expenses arising out of something the authority
alicgedly has done or has failed 1o do. In this regand. | belicve that poblic anthorities,
representing government as they do, have a much higher responsibility to discharge
than might attach to a non-government organization.

It 15 of paramount imporiapce that o claimant be able (o beleve that justice
has been done to his claim, even if it cannot be mel. Quite offten, this may involve
more than relinnce on legal principles and there will be a peed (o look at the moral
considerations present in the claim. B: thal as &t may, the very least a claimant can
or should be psked to expect is that his claim will be fully and properly investigated
and considered,

ANNEXURE A

laterview with Mr A on 31st October, 1950

Q. Mr A, I've explained the current position in regard to your complaint to the
Ombudsman about the Depariment of Main Roeads and the accident you had in
1979 on the Pacific Highway and wvou understand the present position im this
fatter af the moment, I take iL

A, Ye
Q. There are just a few guestions | would like 10 ask you to clarify o number of things,

First of all, on the day in question, when yoo arrived at the flagman, were you
in o line of traffic?

A, Mo, There were no vehicles abead of me that 1 could see, They mo doubt were abead
hut they weren't within sight,
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Q). Were they any vehicles bebind you?

Ao Mot immediately behind, bu these must have been not oo far becasse 1 remember
some cars did go past us after we were stationary ofter the accident, =0 they
may have been a quarter of o mile behind or something like that.

Q. Yo, that would indicate they were a fair way behind by the time you approached
the fagman anyway.

A, Mo-ope stopped behind me when I stopped. It was some minutes before they
armived,

2. Mow when you approached the flagman, 1 think you originally said that be changed

his bat from “stop™ to “pa”™ as vou spproached. In other words you really didn’t
have to €op as such,

As That's comrect. | begun to show down but then he changed o “go” and so 1
proceeded on.

. Right, Did be indicate by hand signals or any method which way you were (o go in
relation to the centre line of the rosd?

A. Yes, as he was focing me be had his flag in the left hand and with his right hand he
peinted to the side of the read indicating the beft hand shoulder as 1 approached
- o that T was to drive slong the shoulder of the road.

Q. And, mcoording 'o your letter to us and your letter Lo Lhe L=y
severnl letters to the Departmeni—towards the centre line of the road and further
down ihe road in the direction that you were proceeding, there was a grader
operating?

A. Yes, that's right.
Q. And that grader was on your side of the centre line, would that be right?

A. That's eorrect.

Q. How far from thut grader would yoo say the Aagman was? A rough estimaie?
Ao Oh (pause) aof the order of 150-200 yards or metres,

. Right. Mow, at the time that you hit this rock and did the damage, where did you
stop? When your vehicle stopped where were you, in relation to the grader ag thai
time? How for past it or were vou alongside it, or whatever?

A. By=the time [ had come o a stop when the rock was under the back of my cara-
van ot that stage, the grader was then just passing.

~5o you hit this rock almost alongside the grader.

A, Ob, yes. The grader wos just ahead of me and by the time [ had stopped he was
alopgside me,

3. Did the grader continue to operate of did be slop?
A He didn't stop. He kepl going.

Q. MNow you mcntioned before that vou noticed that some cars came through afier
you had been stopped?

A, That's right,

Q. Mow, did you notice what route they took to get through the work? 1 guess you
wouldn't because you were probably preoceupied, but I thought you may have
Just noticed?

A. Yes, 1 think ihe grader hoving passed on, and was further up the road, they were
then able to go around me down the irock that the grader would have made.

Q. I see. s there eoything che you would like to say about the matier while we have
got the recorder going? There's no further question T need 1o ask you at this
stage, but if there & apyihing further you would Iike 1o say about the whole
mAller, ROW's Your opporiunily.

Ao 1 think it s worth mentoning that there were 3 witnesses who were watching in the
truck and may be that's one of the problems. One of them was the ganger, because
I went over to the truck after I'd stopped or after we became stationary and T said
"Whao's in charge around here”, and one of the fellows siting in the truck sdmitied
that he was in charge and | asked him to sign o piece of paper 1o the effect that the
accident had occurred ar that sive and that the damage to my vehicle had been
eaused by the rock, He was rather reluciant to do that but be did agree to do It and
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then be gave some assistance to help me bend the blades of the fan so that they
wiould ke elear of the radiator. But those 3 people were sitting in the truck and
had o complete view of the whole scene,

Q. Would they have been in a position to have observed the actions of the flagman?

A, Ah, possibly not, becauss they were fairly close to the scene of the accident and the
fingman was further back.

Q. 1 e,

A, They may not have been able to sec the Bagman. They probably wouldn't have been
taking any nofice anyway.

Q. I note {and I mentioned thi= to you In comversalion prior (o starting this inter-
wview] that the Department now claims that the flagman, when he motiooed or
changed his direction for you to go through the work, directed you to proceed
towards the centre of the carriageway. You noticed that in the reply that we seat
vou. What's your commend about that?

Ao Thars just ndiculous and when 1 showed that letter o my wiffie she laughed, Ridicu-
lous, because be was standing on the main part of the carriageway directing me
to his right which was to my left hand side of the road. Had be wanted me to go to
the middle of the road he should have been standing on the shoulder direcling me
to the middle, but it was the other way around.

Q. 5o ke was standing approximalely in the cenireline of the road was he?
A Yes,

Q. 1 see . . . facing you?
M. Facing me yes; or even slightly alf-centre.

. And indicating with his right hand, which would be your left, for vou o go that
way?

A, That's right. Directing me down onle the shoulder. Well he should have been the
other way around if he wanted me o go in the middle of the rond. And anyway

it"s just hedicrous because if he had directed me 1o the middle of the road be
would have been directing me 16 a head-on collision with the grader.

0. It seems valid point!

A. Rather! If they suggest that I should have driven down the middle of the road,
perhaps they should also suggest what the grader was supposed 1o do with the line
of traffic that was proceeding down the same path in the opposite direction. It's
just madness,

Q. Alright, well I don't think there is anything else we need to discuss at this stage.
As I've told you, our inguiries are continuing 1o some degree in fact, and in due
course we'll no doubt hear from the Department and we will be pursuing the
matter as far as we possibly can. But T want to siress again what Tve sald to you
that, even if our investigations show that the Depariment’s conduct has been
wrong in the way that they have dealf with your claim, this does not necessarily
mean that vour claim will be met by the Department. Mow you underatand that,
don't you.

A Yes, QK.

METROPOLITAN WATER SEWERAGE AND DRAINAGE BOARD

Linhility for Rales

Section 101 of the Metropolitan Water, Sewerage, and Drainage Act, 1924,
provides i pari:

“{1} Any person may apply for a certificate under this section as to the
amount {if any) dee ofF pavable to the Board For rates or otherwise in
respect of any Jand,

{2) The Board shall, upon payment of a fee prescribed by by-law for each
certificate having reference to a parce] of land separately aswesed, forth-
with give or post to the applicant a certificate kn writing, signed by the
officer prescribed by the by-laws, and stating what (if any) rates, charges,
or sums of money are due or pavable o the Board in respect of the
land with the particulars thereof, and when the same became due or
payable, or that no swch rates or charges or sums are then due or
payable, as the case may be.
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(4) The production of the certificate shall for all purposes be deemed con-
clusive proof in favour of & bana fide purchaser for value that at the
date thereof no rates, charges, or sums other than those stated in the
certificate were duc or payable to the Board in respect of the land.

i
R

The complainants in purchasing a block of land, which was part of a larger
subdivided block, had made an appHeation to the Board, through their solicitors, for o
Certificate under secthon 101 so that their contribution in respect of the Board's rates
could be allowed for in the amount payable to the vendor an settlement,

The Certificate issued by the Beard on 2nd Movember, 1979, showed that for
the year commencing Ist July, 1979, rates were $240.64 but that payment of 5240.64
had been made leaving no balance outstanding. The amount puid out on setthement by
?ﬁh nl]:m,pialu;ﬁl incheded $151.63 as their proportion of $240.64 water rates paid o
une, 1 :

However, the Board belatedly recognized the subdivision and pdvised the com-
plainants on 18th August, 1980, that the property which they had purchased was
of a subdivision operative for the Board's rating purposes from 1st July, 1979, It sent
an account for rates levied as follows:

3
Ist July, 1979 to 30tk June, 1980 - . o 184,32
15t July, 1980 to 30h June, 1981 o ok ve 20N, 54
£190.96

The complainants” solicitors queried this account in the light of the section 101
Certificate previously bBaued,

The Board in reply indicated that at the time of Bswve of the section 101
Certificate (2nd Movember, 1979} it had no authority to treat the property as
subdivided,

Accordingly the section 1001 Certificate was isswed in respect of the original
rating but showed the complaingnis’ ot as the subject of the inguiry, Following
receipt of authority to subdivide, the rates shown on the section 101 Certificate
for the osiginal lot were cancelled. The Board sles indicated that the amount of
$240.64 shown a3 a payment on the scction 101 Certificate for the original lot
represenied $120.00 credited, due to a pension rebate and the balance of $120.64
was transferred to that part of the original property retained by the initial owner
following the subdivision,

Rates were then raised by the Board for the period fst July, 1980, to 30th
June, 1981, on each of the three new ratings created by the subdivision.

The Board informed the complainants’ solicitors that as they had applied
for a section 100 Certificate #t hasd amended the rates pavable from $390.06 o $328.50
being rates from the day following the issue of the Certificate, i.e., from 3rd November,
1979, to 30th Tune, 1981,

This comprised rates os follows—

¥
It November, 1979, to 30th June, 1980 .. 5l 121,86
Pt July, V980, 1o 30th June, 1981 .. - i e 206, 64
$328.50

The complainants’ solicitors sugpested that the complainants seck a refund frem
the wendors, of the amount overpald on settlement, s the calculations did mo provide
for the pensioner rebate of 5120.00 on the Y9T9-80 rotes as subsequently advisesd
by the Board.

The comploinanis also sought my help in having the Board write off the further
amount of $121.86 sought for the period (Fom 15t November, 1979, o 30th Jupe,
I980. By that time the matter had reached a final notice stage and despite personal
attendance by the complainants at the Boards Office no headway was made,

On my taking the matter up, the Board held action on the final notice. Follow-
ing a carcful investigation of ithe matter raised by me the Board reported that It
had cancelled the rates levied for the period from 3rd Movember, 1979, 1o 30th June,
1980, as these had been ralsed after n Certificate of Rates had been issued to the
complainanis’ solicitor snd indeed after scttlement of purchase had been elffoctied,

Although I found the complaint (o be sustained, as the matter bad been rectified
I decided to conclude my investigation
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METROPOLITAN WATER SEWERAGE AND DRAINAGE BOARD

A “No Win" Situation

I received a complaint from a man who had built his home in such u way
that it encronched upon a watermain easement on his propery, He felt that, as his
building plans had been submitted to the Water Board in the wsual way aml had
been ' {1 use his term), the Board should agree to accept liability for amy
damage which might in the future sccur to his home as a result of problems with
the watermain, The Board had refused 1o do so.

In his letter to me, however, the complainant bhad sabd, iater alia;

“During 1974 my wife and 1 purchased a block of land at Castle Hill knowing
of an easement on the eastern side of the block.

This did not concern us as the block wans 84 feet wide and s1ill left plenty
of ares 1o build the house we had planned. We had alfowed 16 feet on the
gastern side knowing that the MW.E & DB would advise of any change
that had to be made if i@ wos pecessary.”

I took up the matter with the Board and, during the vourse of my investigation
obtained and perused the Board's file. As well, T asked the complainant to provide
me with a copy of his Certificate of Title, The Board reported fo me on two DECASIONS
and the terms of those reports were to fhe effect that—

{n) it was the property owner's responsibility to ensure thal any proposed
building was located so that it did not encroach on adjacent property,
whether such property be land held under separate litle or under an
casemant,

(b) the Board required that building plans, after approval by the local
Council, be submitted to it to ensure that the proposed structure com-
plied with the Board’s By-laws relating 1o the location of sanilary
fittings and the relationship of the building to watermains, sewers e
stormwaler channels,

{e1 the complainant’s plans bore three Board stamps:
{i) that the plans had been submitied;

(i} that the disposition of sanitary fittings was salisfactory and the
building would drain 1o the Bonrd’s sewer: and

(i} that the buikding’s location in relation 1o the sewer had been “noded™,

The President did not consider that a reasonable person would construe
that the plans had been “approved” by the Board.

{d) There were three options open o the eomplainanl—
1. Accept the Board’s offer that it take no action in regard to the

building encroachment subject to acceptance by the owner of the
conditions laid down in the Board's letter of 25th Jamuary, 1979,

2. Arrange for the Board to relocate the watermain and eascment 5o
that the easement is free from encroachment ol an estimated cost
of $1.510 {determined 12th July, 1978). This cost is escalating
as time passes and final settlement would be on an actual cost basis.

3, Demolish that part of the building that encroaches on the casement.

{e) The Board did not see itsell as having any primary responsibility o
ensure that propesed buildings did not encroach on its easements.

{f) The complainant was aware of the existence of the sasement.

The facts disclosed by my investigation were interesting. In 1973, in connection
wiih the subdivislon of an area of land in Showground Road, Baulkham Hills, the Board
by agreement with the subdivider provided a walermain fo serve further subdivision
in the area. The subdivider created an easement for the benefit of the Board, pursuant
to section 88n of the Conveyancing Act. The casement affected the complainant's
property, and was registered and clearly shown on the Certificate of Title in respect
of the property. The Certificate of Title made clear reference to the casement document
iteelf. The complainant and his wife purchased the property in September, 1974,

There was fio doubt that the complainant was mware of the ensement on his
property, In his lelter to me, he had said—

“During 1974 my wife and T purchased a block of land at Castle Hill knowing
of an easernent on the eastern side of the block™. (my emphasis)

In June, 1977, he submitted his Building Plans to the Board. The plans were
stamped by the Assessing and Receiving Branch. the House Eervices Sub-Hranch and
the Building over Sewers Section of the Board, but were not referred 1o the Distribu-
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tion Sub-Branch which, apparently, looks after the Board's watermaln casements. The
Board did not discover that the proposed building would encroach on the easement—
in fact, the Board’s officers did not discover the existence of the easement at all.

The complainant did aot draw the Board's atteotion to the casement’s existence,
cither by showing ar referting 1o it on his plans or by mentioning it when his plans
wiere being stamped and examined at the Board. His attibude was clearly expressed in
his letter to me where he said—

“We had allowed 16 feet on the eastern side knowing vhar the M. W.5. & D5,
would advive of any change thet hod fo be made if it was necessary.” (my
emplasiz)

Thiz, ot it furned oo, was o dangerous presumplion on his part.

Construction of the dwelling procesded with the inevilable encroachment
resulting. The matter did not come to notice until May, 1978, when the Bank of
Mew South Wales, having been provided with a copy of a survey report required by
the Building Society, wrote to the complainant informing him of the encroachment,
He delivered the Bank's letter and his stamped plans 1o the Board in June, 1978,
and sought the Board™s advice,

The main was exposed and i was found that the easteramost corner of the
house, which encroached on the Boards essement, wad only 0.5 mefres from the
centreline of the watermain, The Board’s Assistant Distribution Enginesr reported
that, if a mainbreak occurred in the wicinity, updermining and/or damage to the
foundations and the house could result. The caves of the house were, in fact, over the
main itself,

The Board's file made it clear that the butlding plans had not been referred to
the Disirtbution Sub-Branch regarding the cosement when dealt with in the Board’s
office. The Assistant Distribution Engineer pointed out that the building plans had not
shown the easerment and that jis existence was clearly shown on the relevant Cerfificate
of Title. He recommended that the Board, in Hew of requiring demolition of that part
of the house encroaching on the easement, oller to relocale the watermain, to provide
sufficient clearance for maintenance purpeses from the wall and eaves of the house,
subject to the cost being borme by the complainant, He also proposed that the casement
boundary be changed to coincide with the ling of the caves of the bouse (ie., to
remowe the encroacheent by altering the easement boundary)d. Coste, Including survey
and legal cosis, were estimated = that time ot 51,510,

O 24th Movember, 1978, the Board's Acting Senlor Megotiations Officer, in a
covering submistion supporting the Assistont Distribution Engineer's basie recommenda-
tions, said, futer olia, the following—

“In the present cose the relevant Sewerage Reference Sheet Index clearly
showed the subjeci properiy as affected by o Board's walermain. In the
instruction to searchers displayed om a sign in the public area of the Ist floor
the cobour coding is Mentifled as referring to a watermain. The notice reads,
in part:

(a) Inform the attendant at this counter of your inlention to search and
the lecntion of the land, He will produce o Reference Sheet Index
board of the municipality or shire. He will then ddentify from this
board and produce the Sewer Reference Sheet relsting to the
subject land.

(b} Lecate the land on fhis index board.

fe) Mote whether any blug line (stormwater channel) or green line
{watermain) i in the vicinity of your land. If such a line is in the
vicinity of vour land, ask the attendant where you can get further
information as to whether your land 5 affected.

The Reference Sheet also cleasly showed the Boards “Easement for Water
Supply Warks 3.05 metres and varinble width™ within the property. The
relevant Sewerage Service Sheet delimeates the casement boundaries but does
oot identify the casement as being in favour of ithe Board

The Indications are that the owners (or whoever submitfied bailding plans
to the Board on their behalf) were not alerted to the existence of the Board®s
I mm CLCL. walerminin and  associaleéd ecasement within the subject
property. As T see it the fact that the owners’ building plans conflicted with
the Board's watermain and associated casement could, and should, have
been detected by Board's staff {and clearly drawn to the applicant’s attention)
on at least ane of {wo separate stages:

(i} Af the inguiry desk 18 Floor—when the applicant should have

been clenrly pdvised that the building plans as submitted are likely
to conflict with n Boards watermain and  casecment within the
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property and that furiher inguirics, as pecessary, should be made
at the Board's Survey Branch (Land and Essement Inquiries See-
tlon), Watermains Sub-Branch and Dhistnibution Sub-Branch.

(i} Ar Builldimg-over-Sewers—(the opplicant's building plans were
atnmpeil by B.OLS, in connection with a8 150 mm sewer main also
within the property}—when the existence of the Board's watermain
ensement on the sewer relerence sheet should have been noticed
and the implications discussed with the applicant.

However, the Beard's position seems clenr, i.c., that it has oo legal liability
in the matier, that its records were properly kept and clearly showed the
existence of the affected essement and walermain, and that this information
was réadily available to the applicant at the time of his search. Further the
Board's easement s clearly delineated on the relevant Certifiente of Title and
subdivision plan, and the owner or his répresentative should have been aware
of this and avoided building on the easement,”

The following course of action was submitted for approval—

(f) a section of the watermain beeome “disused” and be replaced by a new
section of watermain;

{ii} the Board’s casement boundaries be adjusied io eliminate the building
encropchment. This would invelve surrender to the complainant of part
of the easement (8 nominal cost of $1.00 wos suggested) with the
lntter to meet all legal costs; and

(iii} watermain relocafion be paid for by the complainant,

The Acting Senior Clerk, Real Estate Section, minuted the fils and pointed
cut that the stamp affixed to the complainant’s plans by the local council, prior o
submission of the plans fo the Board had clearly drawn the complainant's (or his
buibder's) attention 1o his responsibility to . | |, ensure that buildings including eaves
and gutters arc not erccted on casements or walercourses unless with the permission
of the authority having right to the easement. This inchedes ensements under the
contral of the Council, Metropolitan Water Sewerage and Drainage Board and various
electricity nuthorities, ¢ie.”

The Acting Senior Clerk went on to express the view that there was “, . . Do
excuse for an owner pleading ignorance o a registeresd eassment affecting his property.
If he hod been unaware of it in the past the owners (sic) attention was drawn fo
the question of an easerent by the Councils building permit. It would have been
an casy matter to have “scarched” this st ihe same time as his plans were stamped
at the Board, or o have especially raised the matter with Board's staff.” 1 tended to
agree with this. He went on 1o say—

"Notwithstanding the fact that it was possible for Board's staff (o have detected
the encroachment, the overriding fact remains that under the systerm which
operates when building plans are presented to the Board, the onus for the
detection of Board's various interests rests with the property owner or his
representative,”

I certainly did mot entirely agree with this viewpoint. 1f this appronch had
been maintained (and it was not), 1 would have had to raise issues relating to the
Board's responsibilities to protect its own property (easement) and the need o change
a “systemn” that was obwiously quite deficient,

Fortunately, the Boards Heal Estate Officer suggested that the matter should
be referred to the Board's Solicitor, En rowre thereto, the Board's Administrative
Assistant suggested that the complainant’s failure to show the easement on his site
plan would be *. . . an incorrect or not A tree representatbon of plan of the sie™

On 10tk January, 1979, the Board's Assistant Solicitor minuted the file as
follows—

“In the first istance in view of the ferms of the ‘restriction on wse® in relation
to liability for damage to bulldings en (he easement area (see section 833
instrument—>5th item) why does the Board wish to move the pipe or alier
the easement arca?

Having approved the plans the Board has lost its right under the casement
to require the bullding o be moved,”

"The absence of any reference to the easement on the plan 5 sor & ‘material
misrepresentation”,

I relocation and or amendment of ensement b ivshsled upon then it must
e at Board’s cost,”



37

On the same day, the malier was returned to the Distribution Engineer for
sdvice whether, from an operational peint of view, it was imperative that the water-
main be relocated. The minuie doing so said—

“Both the Board's Solicitor and Assistant Soliciter informed me during o
lengihy dizcussicn this morning obowt this matter, that even though the
easement conditions prevent building on the easement area, the fact that the
Board stamped and approved of the building on the property when building
plans were submilted to the Board condones the present building encroach-
ment. The important fact fo remember is that whether the watermain is
moved or not the owner indemnifies the Board by another casement condition
(5.2 of the 88n instrument) as follows:

', . . and will at all times bear afl risk of and responsibility in connection
with damage fo any building or other structure for the time being in
existence upon the said land,”

If there is no cssential resson (rom an operotiopal point of view for the
watermain 1o be adjusted, there pow appesrs to be po reason why a betier
conned issue to the owner simply saying that the Board has no objection to
the building encroachment conditions which affect the subject properiy.”

The Distribution Engineer subsequently recommended that no furither action be
taken about Telocating the walermain or aliering the boundary of the easement and
that the!encroachment be afllowed to remain subject to written ncceptance from the
mmplujd,n_r_:; of the following conditions:

" (i} That the consent of the Board io the encroachment must not be deemed
to be & waiver of the Board's rights ar any extinguithment of the ease-
ment or rights of the Board.

{H) That the Board accepls no responsibility for any damage that may be
eamsed now or hereafter to that part of the building which encroaches
upon the site of the easement ansd that the owner has no claim for any
such damage.

{iii} That the owner acknowledge that the conseni of the Board does not
extinguish in any way the casement and the righis of the Board and
that he underfakes to vse his best endeavours to obtain a like acknow-
ledgement and underfaking from any successor in title,”

A Tetter in these terms but omitting condition (iii) as above was sent to the
complalnant on 25ih January, 1979,

On 2nd February, 1979, the Distribution Engineer was asked to follow up
*_ . . arrangements for improvements in procedures to Mamping or approval of building
plans®.

On 28th February, 1979, the complainant’s Solicitors took issue with the Board
on the basis that it was unfair for the Board 1o expect him o accept responsibility for
any damage which might in fulure be caused to that part of the building encroaching
on the easement becavse, if the Board had told him of the encroachment, he would
have been able o alter his plans and relocate the building. Unfortunately, this letter
did not reach the Board and it was not undil July, 1979, after a copy of it had been
supplied, that action to deal with the Solicitor’s approach was taken.

A reply was sent to the complainants Solicitors on 6th September, 1972, and
it is worth reproducing the relevant terms of that reply—

“The position is that your clienis were or ought to have been aware of the
existencs of the watermain casement on the property and have knowledge
of the terms of that easement document. Accordingly, they should pot have
prepared building plans which contravene the terms of the casement or

encroach upon the easement anen,

The Board is not liable for oll damage which may occur as a result of a
watermain Break, Indesd, it is vousual for it to have any liability at afl and
the Board s not prepared to waive its statulory and Common Law rights in
relation 1o this matter by nccepling liabiiy.

You point cul that the plans hove been stomped by the Engineer, Building-
over-Sewers. This obviously is no assistance to your clients as the building
is built near or over a walermain, The characteristics and the consequences
are cofirely different. A sewer is gencrally a gravitulional main not under
pressure. A watermain is not gencrally purely gravitational and is under con-
sidlerable pressure.

Ax you will appreciate from this, a break of a sewer main or, indeed the
development of a leak would be of much less significance than the same
pecurrence In o wotermain, It & for (his feason that the Board holds to the
principle that approval to a building being placed over a watermain i§ never
to be given and that building close to a watermain would ooly be satisfactory
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o the Board upon the clear understanding that the owner of the building
has the full Lability for any copsequences of the building being so sited.
This is the position where no easement has been granted in favour of the
Board and the Board s relying purely wvpon s statutory rights to have
constructed the walermnin within the land,

In this case, of course, the position is entively different in that there has been
granted to the Board an casement for the watermain and that the teros and
conditions of that easement are available for all the world by way af search
to become aware of. Ceriainly an intending purchaser would or should be
aware of the full terms and conditions of that casement having been put oo
potice by a search that such a document exists, It is, therefore, not for the
Board to tell your clients that the building plons should be altered, it &
rather [or the owmer amd/or builder 1o be oware that the plans in the first
instance shoukd make allownnce for the existence of the easement.

While the Board in ifts operation of iis wafer reficulation system endeavours
to maintain @ safe working pressure within fs mains, you will appreciate
that because of the demnnds of users, the pressure is mot maintained at a
constant figure and it is frankly the wvariation in pressure that can cause
o main to break or fracture. Thers are other reassons, of course, external to
the operation of the water reticulation system which can cause the (racture
of a watermain. These include a shift in the soil supporting the walsfmain,
the passage of trafic nearby o across a walermain or physical contact with
the main by some person carrying out excavation or building operations.
MNong of these are within the control of the Board and consequently the
Board would bhave no linbility in respect of any damage camsed should &
main burst or break,

As stated in the carlier letter, the Board has carefully considered the situation
and it 5 not propared to accept responsibllity for any damage which may
occur to the bullding by virtee of its position adjacent 1o the watermain and
in fact encronching upon the catement."”

1 must zay that I bad no major argument with the terms of the Board's reply,
except that it attempied (o place all the responsibility on the complainant, 1 certainly
agreed thot the exitence of ithe easement and the terms and condiions of i1 were

. available for all the world ., " to know by way of search and, without doubt, he
had a responsibility in this regard.

However, I took issue with the stnlement that it was . , , pot for the Board fo
iell your clienis that the building plans should be aliered, it is Tather for the owner
and/or builder to be aware that the plans in the first inslance should make allowance
for the existence of the ensement”™. In my view, it was "for the Board fo el people
that their plans should be altered, where such people had not made “allowance for the
existence of (an} easement”. In other words, ithe Board also had a responsibility to
discharge,

In a minute prepared on 25th July, 1979, the Board®s Assistant Solicitor clearly
sef oul the allernatives available, namely—

1. To take no further action ether than the continuing 1o refuse pa
any Iilhiiilj." lor ﬂ:m:gc- to Lhe hui|r]:i|:|[l; aor ol leasd that part of it which
encroaches upon the sasement shoald the main break or the Board
damage the building during maintenance or renewal operntions,

2. The other aliernative is 1o sugped to the owners that for their own
protection they mny care 1o armeige by payment 1o the Board of any
necessnry costs for the main to be re-routed and the site of the casement
adpested.”

At & later stage, a third course was sdded—demolition of that pant of the
building encreaching on the ensement,

Following & letter from me to the Beard, wherein 1 raised the issue of the
Board’s responsibility to kdentify potentinl encroachments wpon its casermnentz, the
Inspecting Engineer {Operations) prepared a snbmizslon whereln, fnter alia, he said:

“The owner has the responsibility for ensuring that proposed buildings are

located in such a way as not to encroach in any way on adjacent property
whether it be land held under a separate title or under an easement,”

“The Board's casement however was nol shown on the site plan prepared
for (the comploinant) which wns presented to the Board for comsideration
and stamping. Had it been shown on the site plan, the encroachment woulkd
have been indicated clearly, and (the complainant) would have been able to
amend his plane early in their preparatiodn.

All the relevant plans wsed by the Board show the easement and Boand's
stafl should bave noted M existemce. That they did not do so is probably due
parily 1o the fast that the slandard method of indicating such easements was
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changed some seven years ago and that staff were unfamiliar with the new
method, because the incidence of such ecasements on land on which new
buildings are to be erected is very small. Steps have been taken to reinforce
instructions in this regard and also to make the existence of such agreements
mrore apparent on the relevont plans,

While the Board has sdopled certiin procedures to assist in ensuring that
building proposals comply with its By-taws, they assist the landowner, but do
not absolve him of the responsibility of ensuring that his proposals comply
with those By-lows.”

In determining what my attitude in the maiter should be, I had to analyse the
facts of ihe case a5 best | coubd. Im my view, the following considerntions were
relevant:

(i} the complainant knew about the easement at the times he—

prepared his plans;
submiited them to the Board.

(i1} the Board failed to nscertain the potential encroachment on the easement
or, even, that the property was so burdened.

This being the case, 1 felt it proper to consider the responsibilities attached to
the complainant on the onc hand and the Board on the other—

{a) (i) The complainant was aware of the easement on his property. In
my view he had a responsibility 1o ensure that any building erected
did mot encroach thereon. He had s further responsibility to discover
far himself the ierms of the casement {if ke did not know them)
by means of the normal search. There seems litthe doubt that, at
least, he knew he should not build over the easement, for he
admitted that he had made allowancs in the plans for iis existence.
He assumed that the Board would tell him of apy alteration needed
if such nllowance was insufficient,

{il} In sddition, his responsibilities, as the property owner, in relation
to the casement, were specifically drawn fo his altention on fwo
occasions after his plans hod been prepared:

in the stamp affixed to the pluns by the local Shire Council,
hefore the plans were submitted to the Board; and

in the Board's office, when his plans were submitted, in the sign
displayed in the public area of the Ist Floor. (The
existence of such sign had been confirmed by one of my
officers. )

{iii} In the complainant's cuse, | belioved that his failure to discharge
his responsibilities in the fece of these “warnings” was all the more
significant because he already knew that there was an easement on
his praperty. His duty was not merely to seck “approval” of build-
ing plans, but to scek, as well, permission to erect over the Board's
casement.

(b} (1) The Board was the “owner” of the easement and, as such, ought
to be expected to take all sction necessary to protect the land com-
prised therein (i.c., 1o protect what belonged to it).

{ii} 1 could not sccept that the onus 1o ensure non-encroachment rested
solefy on the property owner. The Board bad a responsibility to
ensure that none of it coscments were going (0 be interfered with.

(i} In fact, the Board appeared to recognize that It did have a respon-
sibillity to identity pofertial encroachments, eic., in those instances
where an owner bullder did not bring to notice the existence of 3
Board sewer line or easement, and was apparently taking action
adminksiratively o discharge that responsibility.

In my view, both the l:nmphi.rlunl and the Board were ot fault—ithe fovmmer for
for not, st least, having brought the casement to notice when his plans were being
denlt with at the Board. He knew the cavement existed and knew (by virtue of the
Councll siamp) what his responsibilities were. The Bourd was at faull for not dedeet.
that the casement existed and was likely to be encroached to enable the matter to be

brought Lo notice,

In this regard, 1 found somewhat strange the reason given by the Board for the
failure of its officers 1o note the existence of the ensement, namely that “the standard
method of Indicating such easements was changed some seven vears ago and that staff
were unfamiliar with the new method . . * | wondered how long it would be before
the “new"™ method achieved the status of being “old”.



&0

I took the view that, because of the complainant's failure to fulfil his responsi-
bilities in relation to the casement (of which he was always aware) he could not,
rearonbly, atempt to rely on the propesition that, as the Board did not tell him of
the encrogchment and, consequently, he did not alter his plans, the Board should agres
o be respomsible for any damage which might in future oecur to the building
encroaching on the casement. In this regard, I agreed with the view expressed by the
Board that, whilst the Board should have defected the Hkely encroachment, its failure
to do s0 did not absolve the complainant from discharging his own responsibilities,

I was further of the view that the Board's eventual decision to allow the
encroachment to remain, subject to the conditions already cullined, was & reasonable
decision and, quite frankly, the best the complainant eould reasonably hope for.

If the Board had been insisting siill on watermain relocation and easement
boundary adjustment, I would have been inclined 1o think that the costs of such wark
ought to be shared 50-50 between the Board and the complainant, notwithstanding
the view that had been expressed by the Assistunt Solicitor. The Board was not so
insisting—neither was it requiring demolition of that part of the building constituting
the encroachment (even though it might attempt to do so). 1 could noed see that the
Board should be expected to deliver up its rights by agreeing to accept linbility for
anything which might happen in the future.

In all the circumsiances, 1 informed the complainant that I considered the
Board’s refusal to accepl responsibility for any damage that may occur to his building
hy virtue of its position adjacent to the watermain and upon the easement should net
be found to be wrong in terms of the Ombudsman Act and that I should take his
complaint no further. 1 nccorded him an oppartunity to make further comments which
might persuzde me to adopt a different view but 1 did not hear from him again.

At the same time, 1 wrole to the Board and said, fnfer alig—

“In conclusion, my views can be summarized as follows:

(a) (The complainant), being aware, of his own knowledge, of the
existence of the casement and, further, having been alerted by
Council to his responsibilities in this respect, should have at least
raised the matter with the Board at the time he presented his plans;

(b} The Board, requiring the submission of plans to it to check, among
other things, the relationship of a building to watermalns, should
bave detected the existence of the cascment and the propossd
encroachment upon It and shoukd have brought the matter 1o notice,

Therefore, %o far as (this) complaint is concerned, I am of the view that
the Board's refusal 1o accept Hability for any damage which might in future
be sustained to {the complainants) building as a result of the encroachment
cannot be regarded as unreasoneble in terms of the Ombudsman Act,

So far as the Board s concerned, 1 would like to know whether the Board's
present procedurss are pow such as o ensure that the existence of an
casement can be readily asceriained by Board stalf and, if necessary, will
be brought to the attention of the person presenting building plans for
approval {(even where such person i@ either not aware or does not discloss
the existence of the casement). This course appears reasonable, particularly
in view of the comments made by various of the Board's officers and to which
1 have already specifically referred,

I would alio appreciate your views about the desirability and possibility of
displaying another sign in the public area of the Boards office {15t Floor),
drawing to sttention the responsibility of an owner/bullder to ensure that
buildings do not encroach the Board's casements, etc., and the availability of
search [ucilities [n this fespect.”

In ruising these jssues with the Board, | was particularly concerned sbout the
member of the public who, unlike the complainant, might not be aware of the existence
of a Board easement or service on his Innd,

The Board subsequently informed me that its procedures had been examined
very thoroughly and action was being taken to—

(a) clearly identify oll Board casements on Sewer Refercnce Shects:

(b) produce a leaflet, for distribution from the counter area, explaining the
procedure 1o be followed in searching land and the significance of
the various markings on the Sewer Reference Sheets: and

(c) make some minor changes to the existing signs displaved on the First
Floor arca of the Board's office, where building plans are submitted, and
to suspend a new sign over the Building Plans counter. This new sign

will draw attention to the Board's requirements regarding obstructions
@ its walermains, sewer mains and stormwater pipes and channels,
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The Board expressed the hope, as do 1, that the action proposed would ensure
that every possible precaution hod been taken to convey all necessary information to
the public and to ensure that each inquirer is made fully aware of his/ her responsibilicy
w0 far as buillding plans and the Board's services are concernesd.

MUSIC EXAMINATIONS ADVISORY BOARD

Music Examinztiens

Our compladnant was & music teacher who complained that an examiner of the
Music Examinations Advisory Board had unfairly failed some of his pupils becauss they
had used photocopies (instead of criginal scores) in their exominations. After profest
o the Board, these pupils were re-examined, but the Board said it was merely “a
review™, and this review confirmed the first cxaminers decision. There was disputed
evidence a3 fo the way in which the originel cxamination was conducted, including a
pupil’s aliegation that the photocopy (which led 1o penalty) had been provided by the
cxaminer,

Correspondence with the Ministry of Education revealed that the bolding of a
“review™ was nol the normal policy, ss candidates can soon sit for the examination
again. Evidence of “quality control® of the cxamination process was presented. The
rationale for the photocopy mile was twofold: the protection of copyright material
and the promotion of the sabe of the Beard's publications.

Due to the protracted natwre of the inguiry and the coniradiclory evidence it
was o posaible to decids whether or not the examiner had behaved improperly in
the examination of this group of students, The investigation therefore focussed on the
“photocopy rule”,

The suggestion that this rule profected copyright materinl was fairly qoickly
dispensed with. While little in the way of substantial justification for the rule could
be seen in the Board's need to protect its revenues, 1 decided that this could not be
considered to be wrong conduct. However, the way in which the rule was applied
did cause me great concern. What happened was that o candidate who produced a
photocopy for any sectiom had his/her mark sheet endomsed “MOT ABLE TO BE
ASSESSED", whole their playing was beard and the examiner apparenily went through
the motions of marking.

1 duly advised the Ministry of Education that | saw this procedure as wrong.
After consultation between this Office and the Minisiry it was agreed that the photocopy
e would be widely advertised and where infringed the candidate advised that ihe
rule was being broken. In due course the Board changed its procedures accordingly.

The inguiry was concluded with the view that the complaint as to the pholocopy
rule’s n'plll.‘.nllurl was suskhined and that no conclusion could be reached about the
other circumstances of the cxamination complained of,

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS/DEPARTMENT OF
AGRICULTURE

Unwarranted Resumption by a Government Department
During the year I received a complaint through a3 Member of the Legislative
Assernbly against the Department of Public Works., The issue related to the resumption
of a part of the complainant's property which bed previcusly been leased fo the
Department of Agriculture as a dip site for the control of ticks.

The complainant alleged that the action of resumption was unreasonable and
unfair, and an unnecessary expenditure of public money as—

I, The Board of Tick Coairal had a 12 year lense of the site with the
option of renewal;

2. At no time prior (o the resumption was the complainant notilfied of the
pending resumption;

3. The lease was prepared by and was satisfaciory to the inspector in charge
of the Murwillumbah office of the Board of Tick Control; and

4. AL po lime was any officer of the Board of Tick Control refused nceess 1o
the subject land.

Prelimipary inquirics into (his motter revealed that the Department of Public
Works had acted to implement the resumption for the Department of Agriculture as
that Depariment does mot have the necessary resumptive powers. Additionally the
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impression was gaimed that the Department of Public Works had not been completely
happy with the circumsiances of the resumption. The file of the Department of Pablic
Works relating to this matter was perused and following this action the complaing was
Found to be not sustained against the Department of Public Warks., The matter was
bowever then taken wp as & complaint against the Department of Agriculiure,

In my imitial letter to the then Director-General, Mr Watts, [ set out the
complaint and made mention of my inquiries to the Department of Public Werks. 1
also expressed my concern that from o shedy of the fle 1 had formed the opinion that
sufficient negotiations were nod pursued with the complainant, nor was he given adequaie
advice, prior to the resumption of his lond,

In due egnirse | received o reply from the Department of Agriculivee which sei
aut in detail the history of the matter and highlighted the difficulties which had oecurred
in negotiations between the Department and the complainant over a period of some
years. i appeared ihat in this somewhat stormy relationship the Department was
responshile for some errors which would not have added to the cordiality of the
relationship and stated dufer olic. “Apparenlly a1 no stape was Mr . . . sdvised
that the property was to be resamed . . " In conclusion the opinion was offered
that the land had been resumed “for good reason and with due and proper regard to
the rights of the complainant™. It was furher stated that whilst ihe land could be
returned to the complainant, i@ was feared that in such circumstances it could be
expected that further difficulties would occur between the Department and the
complainant.

My reply to the Director-General of Agriculture did not agree with his lettes.
In point of fact 1 wrote that basically the errors appeared 1o be on the part of the
Diepartment and that I considered the resumpiion of the land was conduct which could
be seen 1o be wrong in terms of the Ombudsman Act, I suggested that the Department
might well consider the return of title 10 resolve the matter and that in the event of
this decision being reached the compluinant should not be Hable for any nssociated
coste

Following my reply the sew Director-General, Mr Enowles concurred with
the relurn of the subject land, but expressed the view that this retwrn should be
conditional upon a bease being offered to the Department by the complainant. 1 did not
agrec to this and stated—

“In my letier o you of 15t July, 1 siated that | was of the opinion that the
actions of the Department in this maller could form the basis of a report of
wrong condact in terms of the Ombodsman Aet. It was as a rectification of
this conduct that | sugpested that you might lke to consider transferring the
land back to Mr. . . Inothe circumstancess I do not consider it reasonable
that a iransfer of the subject site for the specified parpose should be in any
way conditional, I am of the opinion that the title of the subject land should
be returned to the complainont with no liability for costs assoctated with the
matter nor with any provises attached, In my lefter to you I set out what
I consider to be the reasons for the resumption, ond stated that T did not
comsider that this was sufficient justification for the manner in which the land
was resumed. T am still of the same opindon and T would not consider that
the return of title, subject (o conditions by the complainant, did constitute a
sufficient rectfication 1o absslve the wrong conduct,

The matier of release and indemnity and conditions of any lease appear 1o me
to be malters for negotiation between vour Department and Mr . . . and
should not intrede into the foregoing matier.”

Mr Knowles graciously ncknowledged this letter by stating in pan—

"I acknowledge your comments concerning the manner in which this matter
should be dealt with and you may be assured ithat the Crown Solicitor will be
instructed io return the side free of any conditions precedent ond with no
lHakitity for eoss.™

The matter of relense and indemnity and conditions of any lease appear o me
principle that where a Government Department has the power to initiate or carry out
certain actions, that awthority must be cxercised with metlewlons care 1o ensure that the
freedom and rights of the individual are fully and completely protected,

STATE RAIL AUTHORITY

Fablure of Qilicer to Produce ldentification

A lad attending high school was guestioned by o Special Officer of ihe Siate
Rail Authority when he (the lnal) was found with his fect on the seat. The officer ook
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the boy's name and other particulars and the Authority subsequently wrote fo his
father and said, fwrer alia—

“I desire to point out thot your son’s action was an offence for which a
penalty §s provided. However, in wview of his age, if is nod proposed io
proceed further on this occasion as it is felt you will appreciate the oppor-
tunity of pointing out o him the seriousness thereof.”

The boy's father wrofe fo me and, while making it clear that he in no way
copdoned his son's conduwct, raised the matier of the officer’s refusal to identify himself.
The father put his complaint this way—

“From Michael’s carliest years bis mother and I have warned him to be wary
of sirangers,

During my questioning of Michacl abowt the offemce under comment,
Michael was interviewed on Use irnin as 1o his name, ape, school, ete., by o
gentleman casually dressed and who did nol provide or wear any identifica-
tion. When Michael agked the gentleman who he was he was told “not to be
cheeky™. The interview, details of which were wrilten on a newspaper, and
the lack of identification were witnessed by three of his school acquaintances.

I have also ascertained that some doys previous fo Michael's offence the same
gentleman interviewed another of hig school acquuintances about o similar
aocurpence. In this case, when asked, the gentleman refused fo provide any
identification. The name of the sivdent in this case can be provided if neces-
ary.”

“1 would appreciaie, therefose, if you conld take the matter up with the

Commission, That is, 1o always show proper ldentificatbon especially when
speaking to school children.”

I iook up the matber with the Authority and alio soughl [rom my complainant
the name of the other boy 1o whom he had referred in his letter.

The terms of the report 1 received (rom the Authority made it plain that there
was conflict between the stores tobd by my complainant’s son on the one hand and the
Special Officer on the other. The officer claimed to have produced his identification
card when he spoke to the boy and, further, claimed that the boy had not asked him to
produce identification at any time.

In an effont to asccriain what hacd hapened, | sought from my complainant's
son ond from theother boy referred to above, written stntements of what had happened.,
Both lads claimed that their requests for identification had gone unheeded by the
Authority’s officer. (My inquirics subsequently csfablished that mwo olficers were
invodved).

I then sought and perused the relevant Authority files. It was apparent that
Epecial Officers were instructed by the Chief Ticket Officer to conduct periodical
checks on the partbcular train involved (one in which Inrge numbers of schoolchildren
habitually travelled) as a resoli of a lefier complaining of bad behavicur being published
in the local press.

At ihe same time, | had sought from my complaint’s son the names of his
frieneds whe had been travelling with him oo the day in guestion and one of my
officers subsequently interviewed each of the boys in the presence of one or other of
their parents. My officer felt thot the bovs had obviouwsly “potten together™ to some
extent on their stories; this wos probably unavoidable as prior arrangements had to be
made with thelr parents for the boys o0 be seen. Mevertheless, all of the boys were
quite sure thal the officer—

did not show wentiftcation at any tEme;
did not give his name when asked lor it

Mr officer then had discussions with the Commercial Superiniendent, the Chief
Ticket Inspector and the Planning Services Manager, State Rail Authority, where con-
cern was expressed regarding the need for Authority officers to properly bdentify
themselves. My officer was referred to “Rule 67 contained in a book of rules issued
1o all Authority employees and the view was expressed that, perhaps, “Rule 6" would
wcover the situatbon. My officer asked that a copy of “Rule 6" be made available and this
was done some days later,

Rube & siales—

“Emphoyess mast be prompl, civil and obliging. They must afford appropriate
assistance in the transaction of business, be careful to give correct informa-
tion and, when asked, give their names amd numbers without hesitation,
Employvees mast not wse improper longuags, or enter into on alercalion with
the public or their fellow employecs whatever provocation may be given,™
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1, therefore, wrote to the Authority and sajd—

“1 have carefully noted ithe terms of Rule & contaimed in the book issieed
to all employees but, quite frankly, I do not think the instructions thercin
are explicit enough or go far enough, bearing in mind that my investigation
has to do with the question of proper identification of an officer questioning
n child or young person.

In this particular case Involving Michael . . ., one of my officers inter-
viewed three lads who were travelling on the train in the company of
Michasel . . . on ihe day in guestion. All of the boys were adamant that
the Special Officer concerned did net give his pame when asked 1o do 5o
ard did not show his identificntion at any time,

I am awore, of course. of the distinet possibility that the four boys might
have 'gotten together” so far as their stories are coneerned. This was probably
unavoidable in a siuation where prior arrangements to see the boys had o
be made with their parents. In any event, the situstion iz that [ bave con-
flicting statements from the Special Odficer on the one hand amd the four
boys on the other. | cannod sce any purpose in aflempling to pursue this
aspect as it would be impossible for me 1o determine exactly what did happen,

I am more concerned fo ensure that officer on the Avthority, particulary
those who do not wear a uniform or opeoly display their suthority (eg., n
badge), should properly identify themselves, s o matter of course, particu-
larly in a ‘guestioning’ or terview sttualion.

In ihiz regard, [ ithink it would be sufficient for an officer fo say, for
example—
"My name ix Jones, T am n Special Officer of the State Rail Authority”.

before commencing 1o ask questions or seck information. OF course, if the
oifficer is nsked to produce his authority, he should do so immediatety,

My vigws apply to amy interview situation bat, 1 feel, are particularty relevant
when the person to be inferviewad or questioned B a child or young person,

In this conneclion, therefore, | would appreciaie your comments reganding
the desirakility of the Chief Ticket Officer issning a clear, written instruwction,
to appropriate officers under his condrol, incorporating the views that 1 have
expressed,”

I was pleased, therefore, when the Authority later informoed me that the Chief
Ticket Officer had issued instructions fo Special Offeers and Ticket Exominers under
his control 1o the effect that, should it be neccssary {0 question or interview any person
for any resson whatsoever, the officer & to introdoce and identifly himself in the
manner that 1 had suggested and, at the same time, prodoce his badge or authority
for sighting by the person belng questoned or intervlewed.

I informed my complainant of this and said that 1 felt I had taken his complaint
as far as | could. | expressed the hope that, in the Hght of the instructions isswed
by the Chief Ticket Officer, cause for complaints such as his would not again arise.

STATE RAIL AUTHORITY

Different Booking Periods

My complainant wonted to travel from Cofls Horbour o Svdney al Easter,
She asked at the station when she woold be able o book and was told “one month™,
At that time prior to her irip she booked a seat down on the Morth Coast Daylight,
and wanted to return on the Morth Coast Mobtorail but was told it wos completely
booked out. She discovered that “people at Murwillumbah and Sydney are capable
of booking further in advance than we are®,

The State Rail Avthority responded as follows—

“Bockings o intrastale frains may be arranged one month i advance of
the intended date of travel on the forward journey and op to two months
ahead on the return trip, However, resetvilions on the Gold Coast Motorail
Express, for passengerd iravelling to Casino and beyond may be made up
ies twelve months in advance of the intended date of travel on the forward
journcy and thirteen months ohesd on the refurn iip. This arrangement
of prior booking it availed of frequently by passengers who will be travelling
ot holidny weekends, Christmas, New Year, Esster and the schosl vacations,
and during these busy periods all accommadation & seon fully booked.

The Gold Copst Motorgil Express is primanly provided for travellers io
dedinations north of Grafion City, where no other aliemative service b
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availabie and for this renson the reservation of seats and sleeping berths for
travel between Sydney and Grafion Ciy or vice versa I restricted fo one
menth in advance, Passengers travelling between Sydney and Coffs Harbour
may avail themselves of alternative services such es the Morth Coast Mail
and the air<opditioned Morth Coast Daylight Express which services are
ifically provided for persons residing on the North Coast &s far as Grafton
ity. Bookings on these services may be sitangsd one month ahead oo the
forward trip amd two months abead for the refurn journey.

Because of the constont demand for seats and berths on the Gold Coast
Motorall Express and the alternatlve services avallabbe to passengers travel-
ling only as far as Grafton City, it is congdered necessary for the present
praciice to be maintatned in order that longer-distance travellers are given the
opporunity to feserve pocommodation."”

I replied in the following lerms—

“I conclsde from your letter and frown Ms X% sccountl that she was not
clearly advised of the options avaflable to ber nor of the reasons why
passengers from Casing and places north have eleven months' pricrity? 1
would be grateful for your advice on what information about bookings
s placed in notices at stations, and what iaformation s given o customers
on this in printed form. I would als be inlerested to know whal reasons
suppori & 12-13 month booking period for the Gold Coost Motoraill which
would not alse apply 1o, say, the North Coast Daylight Express.”

Which evoked the fellowing response—

“The advance booking facilitics avallable on the Gold Coast Motorail Express
are in line with those provided on the Brisbane Limited Express and all
other long distance Interstale services. While the Gold Coast Motorail
Express is ot an inlerstate service these extended advance booking facilities
were applied to this train from its inception as it replaced the previous
Brisbane express which provided a second service between Sydney and South
Brisbane on which passengers for intrasfate stations north of Grafion City
wers able to obtain reservations two months prior to the date of travel and
interstate passengers coald book fwelve months in advance. Ansiher reason
is that the majority of passengers travelling to Murwillumbah continue by
connecling road coaches or other means of transport to Queensiand destina-
tions, particularly to the Gold Coast and many of these passengers travel by
train from Yiclorinn sfations, particularly during the wipter months. These
circumstances do mot apply to trains such as the North Coast Davlight
Express or Morih Coast Mail, which convey only inirastate passengers.”

To which 1 responded—

“While your letter does indicate . . . that the booking period for the Gold
Coast Motorail follews the long-established practice for Interstals bookings
however, it does not explain why there is a difference (12 months as com-
pared with one month) between the booking periods, except for the possi-
bility of occasional Victorian bookings”

The Authority replied, saying (in part)—

“The running of the Gold Coast Motorail is considered equivalent to an
intersiate service, and an extension of vehicle carriage facilities for interstate
passengers, ofl the Southern Aurora, and New South Wales passengers travel-
ling &0 and from the Gold Coast or stations Casine o Murwillumbah
inclssive, and it is felt only fair that these passengers should receive preference
over passenpgers travelling 1o and from sistions short of Caslne which are

also served by the North Coast Daylight Express and the North Coast Mail
trains.™

“Turning now Lo the matter of extending the period for intrustate bookings,
it is fel that at present these arrangements are satisfactory and that there s
no pesd to vary the procediure. Furihermore, the facllities ai ihe Central
RBeservations Centre are fully taxed, which precludes the extension of the
reservation system at the present time."

I pursucd the matter further, saving—

"While I accepd that imlerstnle and far north coast passengers, who

have the option of travelling on the North Coast Daylight Express and the
Morth Coast Mail, should bave some priority, I would like to know why
in the face of complaints like those of Ms X, who raised this matter, you
cun say ‘it is felt that ol present these armangements are ﬂﬂﬂlﬂ-ﬂﬂ' and that

O S8430-8
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thers 5 mo meed o vary the procedure’, apart [rom the admission that ‘the
facilities at the Central Reservations Centre are fully taxed, which precludes
the extension of the resenation system at the present fime’."”

And the Authority replicd—

“The present arrangement wherehy passengers truvelling to stations Casing and
beyond are permitied to book 12 months ahead, helps to eosure that these
clients are not deprived of wsing & service primarily designed for their con-
venicace, which could occur i passengers travelling shorter distances, with
alternative train services available, were given equal opporiunity fo travel
on the Gold Coast Motorail Express. 1t is also economically more atiractive
te the Stule Kall Auwlhority for trains (o operate o capacity with both
passengers and motor vehickes, for their emtire journey.

It is considersd that the present booking limitation or inirostale traine of one
monih in sdvance for the forward pourmey ol two months in advance for
the returned - journey meets the requirements for the short distance
travellers , . .7

1 refined my question as follows—

“Your assertion . . . that ‘the present booking limitalion on intrastate trains of
one month in advance for the forward journey and two moaths in advance
for the return journcy mects the requirements for the short distance travellers'
is nal borse ol by Ms X's complaint {and others received here). The gist of
her complaint was that she wanted to go to Sydasy by the Daylight and
return by Motorail and the different booking periods defeated her. It seems
clear that the Motorail is regularly booked out some months befors the trip
concermed

The point of my inquirics remains simply this: "Why the difference of
12 3 1T "

and the response was (in part)—

“The policy adopted by the State Raoll Auwihority from the very inception ol
the Clold Coasd Modorul and cdber long distance trains s that bookings can
be made by intending intrastale passengers one monih ahead for a forward
journey and up o two months in advanee for the return Erip, as against the
interstate travellers being able to book seats twelve mooths and dhirtesn
months in advance for the forward and return journeys respectively.”

“Howrever, it must be stated opce again that the Gold Coast Motorail Express
s primaorily provided for travellers lo destinations north of Grafton City,
where no other alternalive service is available and for this reason the reserva-
tion of seats and sleeping berths for travel between Sydney and Grafton Ciky
of vice versa is restricted to one monih oheod on the forward trip and two
montihs abead for the relurn journey.”™

At thas stage | concluded the inguiry as folbows—

“1 belieyve that Ms X was adequalely advised and that her complaint is
therefore sustained. While there & some justification for the difference in
booking periods, the renson for such a large difference still eludes me,”

CANTERBURY MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

Unreasonable Refusal to Compensaie for Cost of Repalrs

I have mentioped in my previous apnusl reporis my concern regarding the
manner in which many Councils deal with claims from members of the public by
simply referring the claims 1o Council’s insurers instead of dealing properly with the
claim themselves. 1 receive a number of complaints in this regard each year bt
there is litile 1 can do apart from looking fo see whether the Council has jrself
comsidered the claim involved and whether, i deing so, all relevant facts and circum-
stances have been taken into accouni.

In practical terms, of course, even where [ find the Councl to bave acled
wrongly in ferms of the Ombuodsman Act, | cannod force Councl o accept legal
liability or fo meet the complainants claim,

My investigation of ope such complaint well illustrated, 1 feel, my fear that
claims of this nature are not always properly considered by Councils,

The complainant (who | shall shall “Mr A”), while driving along Punchbowl
Road at Lokemba, had his windscreen broken by o crickel ball kit from one of three
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ericket pitches nt Parry Park. The incident occurred on & Sunday afternoon and was
witnessed by at beast two people (presumably cricketers) who signed a statement lo
that effect. Mr A, of course, wrote to Council seeking reimbursement of the cost of

repairs (5126.00).

Council forwarded 1o its insurers (GIO) a copy of Mr A's letter and other
documentation, including the statement signed by the two witnesses. The insurers,
nafurally and as is invariably the case, declined liability on behatf of the Council on
the busis that Council had not been negligent. Mr A then wrote to Council and in
his lefter said—

“As 1 consider there i some megligence on the Council's part in erecling a
playing field so chose 1o a main road as it may be (and evidently is)
dangerous o passing motorsgs, | am reluctant 1o accept the GIO%s ruling.
As | um pot covered by inswrapce for this damage, [ feel it is unjust that
I should have to pay for this damage out of my own pocket, and therefors
I ask that vou submit this claim 10 Council for their reconsideration,”™

Mr A was subsequently informed by the Tewn Clerk that Council bad <on-
sidered his claim but did not sccept liability for the damage and, therefore, was
unzble to grant his request for payment. Mr A then wrote to me and reiterated his
beliefs that there was some negligence on Council's part in allowing a playing field
“to be erecied so close to & main road” and thal Council was scting unfairly in
refusing to accept some responsibility for the damage caused to his vehicle.

I decided to investipate Mr A's complaint but 1 clearly warned him of the
difficulties I face in such cases. In due course, | received a report from ihe Town
Clerk which simply told me what 1 alresdy knew based on what Mr A had said.
I therefore ohtained and perused Councils file in the mailer and one of my officers
i ed Parry Park and, in particular, thot aren from where the offending cricket
ball had been hit.

My perusal of Councils flie revealed that, following Mr A’s approach requesting
that Cooncil iiself condider his clalm, an officer of Council, in & minuie addressed
to the Town Clerk, sait—

“The Common Law cpse Boblon v, Stone (& shonl extract from which is
attached to the cardboard backing sheet hereunder) is still good authority
for disclaiming liability in the circumstances of (Mr A'%) accident.

Shall 1 prepare a draft agenda item to go to Councll as requested by
(Mr A}

The Town Clerk directed the preparation of an agenda item, amd af its next
meeting, Council considerad the Town Clerk’s report and refused Mr A's request for

payment.

I think it worth recording the terms of the “short extract” 1o which Council's
officer meferred-—

“In Bolion v. Sione the facis were as follows:

During a cricket mafch a batsman hit & ball which struck and injured the
respondent who was danding on a highway adjoining the ground. The ball
was hit cut of the ground at & podit st which there was a fence
rising to seventeen feet above the cricket pitch, The distance from the striker
to the fence was some seventy-cight yards and that to the place where the
respondent was hit about one hundred yards, The ground had been ocoupied
and used as a cricket ground lor about ninety years, and there was evidence
that on some six occasions in & period of ower thirty years a ball had been
hit inte the highway, but no one had been injured. The respondent claimed
damages for negligence from the appellants, as occupiers of the ground.

It was held unanimously by the House of Lords that for an act io be
actionable in pegligence there must be both o reasopable possibility of the
happening of such an aet and a reasonable likelihood of the injury occasioned
by it; on the facts the risk of injury to a person on the highway resulting
from ihe hitting of a cricket ball out of the ground was so unlikely that it
could mot have been ressonably anticipated and, consequently, the appellants
were nol liabke in negligence.

In the course of his judgment Lord Porter said:

‘It is not cnough that the event should be such as can reasomably be
foreseen. The furiher result that injury is Hkely to follow must also
be such i a reasonable man woold contemplate before he can be
convicled of actionable negligence. Mor is the remole possibility of
injury occurting enough. There must be sufficient probability 1o lead
o repsonnble man w anticipate it The cxistence of some risk is an
ordinary incident of Bfe, even when all due care has been, as it must
b, tnken.'™
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T was unable to identify the suthor of the text from which the extract was
taken badt for reasons which will be evident, 1 did pot regard it as Emportant to do so.
(For those who wish to read for themselves the various cases referred 16 in thiese
nxtes, references have been conventionally shown, )

The material on Council’s file made it reasonably clear that Councils con-
sideration of the matter did not fake into account all of the relevant facts and
circumstances and that its decision not fo make any payment (¢x gratia) was deler-
mined solely by the advice contained in the agenda item prepared by the Town Clerk,
namely that “. . . Common Law precedents in similar cases bave decided (1) that
for an act to be negligent ihere must be a reasonable likelihood of damage being
occasjoned by it and (2) that the rizk of demege on @ highway remliing from the
hitting of @ ericket ball is 5o ualikely thar it could ror kave been reasonably anticlpaied”.
{My emphasis.}

This advice to Council, which was sabd to be based on the judgment in Baoliom
¥ Srene!, tended to be a litle misleading in my opinion. The words wsed im the
agenda time {as emphasized above) conveyed an entirely different seénse to the sense
conveyed by the article or extract on which the former were based. By reference to the
extract, it will be noted that what the author therein said was—

“On the facts the risk of injury 1o a person on the highwny resulting from ibe
hitting of & cricket ball cut of the ground was so unlikely that it could not
have been reasonably anticipated . . " (my emphasis)

Clearly, such comnents were restricied io the particular sination that existed
in Bolton v, Sione.

In any cose, not all that was said in BoWton v, Stone had been conveyed to
Council and the fact that the circumstances in that case were quite different to those
in Mr A's case had not been mentioned at all

The termis of the minute o the Town Clerk quoted above appeared to suggest
that Council coald seck to rely on Boirow v, Store in overy case where damage of
injury was caused &s & result of a cricket ball being hit out of & ground oo to &
road; but the Coorts, in my view, had made it plain that this could not be so.

The decision in Belton v. Srore had been considered/ explained In several subse-
quent cases, perhaps the most significant being The Wapon Mowrd (Moo 2)? where
Lord Reld, in discussing Bolren v. Stoae said—

“But it does not follow that, no matter what the circumstances may be,
it §s justifiable to neplect a risk of suoch a small magnitede. A reasonable
man would only ncglect such a risk if he had some valid reason for dodng
so, g, that it would inwvolve considerable expense to eliminate the risk
He would welgh the risk againsf the difficulty of eliminating ic.”

®, .. Bolton v, Sione did not alter the general principle that a person must be
regurded as negligent if he does not take steps fo eliminate a risk which be
knows or ought to know is o rend risk and not & mers possibility which would
never influence the mind of o repsonnble man. What that decision did was
to recognize and give cffect to the qualification that it is justifiable not to
take steps to eliminate & real risk if it is small and if the circumstances are
such that & reasonable man, careful of the safety of his neighbour, would
think it right to neglect it.”

Lord Thomson applied Lord Reid's view in awarding damages fo a man
struck by a golf ball hit over the fence surrounding a golf course? and, in his judgment,
referred 1o the “classic words™ of Lord Atkin in Donoghne v. Sievensont=—

*¥ou musi take reasonable care fo aveid acis or omissions which you can
reasonably foresce would be likely to Injure your neighbour™

Lord Denning in Morten v, Wheeler (1256) (unreported)® said—

"But how are we to determine whether a state of affairs in or near a highway
is n donger? This depends, I think, on whether injury may reasonably be
foreseen. If you take afl the cases In the books you will find that, if the
state of affairs B such that injury may reasonably be anticipated o persons
uiing the highway, It = & publie nuisance ™

1 {1951) All E.R. 1078,

T (1966) All ER. T09,
(1966) 3 WL R, 498

#Lamond v, Glasgow Corporation—{1968) SL.T. 291.
41932y 5.5 (HL) 3L
§ Appliad in The Wagon Mound Ne. 2 (1966) Al ER. 709,
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The decision in Bolton v. Stome attracted fairly strong criticism in the Law
Quarterly Review (67 LOQR 460) and, perhaps, the final paragraph of that anicle
was the most significant. 1t said—

“As the present case has given rise to some misundersiending in the popular
press, it is to be hoped that it will be made clear to those responsible for
cricket clubs, whether these are sifuated in & town or in the country, Usat
they are under a duly to take reasonable care not to injure those persons
who may be passing outside their grounds, and that the degree of care must
depend on the facts of cach particular case™

It seemed to me to be reasonably clear from all of this that the circumstances
in each case must be considered; or, put mose correctly, perhaps, that the principles laid
down by the Courts, and particulaly in Bolton . Sione, must be considersd
in relation to the circumstances of each case, Even Lord Reid in Bolrom v. Srone said
that "Statements of law must be read in light of the facts of the particular case™®
His remarks in The Wagon Mowrd No. 2 reinforced this

Lord Porter in Bolren v, Sione said-—

“The existence of some risk is an ordinary incident of life even when all due
care hax been, as it must be, taken™, {my emphasiz)

I thought that this was relevant to Mr A's case for, in my view, Council had
mot taken “all dus care™.

More importantly, perhaps, the circumstances in Balton v. Storme were quite
differeat to thove in Mr A’s case. In the former, there was a profective fence, some
78 yards from the pitch, rising to 17 fect above the level of the pitch, In addition, it
seemed clear that the highway did not immediately adjain the ground but was something
like a further 22 yards away. As well, the highway was described by Lord Radcliffe
as being “not . , . o crowded thoroughfare™ and by Lord Reid in The Wagon Mound
ﬁdi as an “unfrequented public road”. At Parry Park, Lakemba, on the other

there was no profective fence,
the ground immediately adjoined the Punchbowl Road, a very busy main
thorseghfare;

the pitch coneerned was only approximately 65 yards from the edpe of the
rosdway.

It seemed to me that, as Council had control over the land comprising Parry
Park and control over the use to which such land & put, Council was in a particularly
strategic position to prevent accidents and might reasonably be expected to take affirma-
tive action 1o prevent harm which may result from activities creating risks of harm.
In this regard, the public should be able to depend on Council’s co-operation for their
effective protection for, it seems to me, occupation and control are entitled to be
recognized as n positive source of responaibility,

In the light of all of the circumstances in Mr A's case. 1 was not convinced
that the risk of damage being camed by cricket balls being hit on to Punchbowl
Road from Parmry Park was “so unlikely that it could not have been reasonably
anticipated”, On the contrary, 1 regarded the risk as being quite likely and capahle
of reasonable antizipation bearing in mind;

(a) the distance from the pitch to Punchbowl Road;
(B) the heavy traffic usage of Punchbow! Read; and

(e} the lack of any protective fence between the cricket grounds and Punch-
bowl Road, or other means of precaution, to prevent cricket balls being
hit onto the roadway.

Meither did it appear to me that Council, in dealing with Mr A’ request for
reimbursement of the cost of repairs 1o his windscreen, had properly considered the
circumstances of his accident. Rather, based on the terms of the Town Clerk's report
to Council, the view appeared to have been adopted that, no matier what the circum-
stances might be, Council conld avoid responsibility by relving on Bolton v, Stone,
In my view, Council should have considered the markedly different facts in the two
cases but had failed to do so.

I ook the view, and so infarmed the Mavor, that Coopeil—

(i) had not taken sufficient action to prevent the risk of harm ecreated by
permitting cricket to be played in an arca close to n busy main road; and

(ii} in considering Mr A's claim, had not considered the particular eircum-
stances of his case but merely relied on a decision reached on entirely
different facts and in entirely different circumstances.

8 0p. Cit—pp, 1084,
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1 said that, in my view, Councl should reconsider Mr A's request for reimborse-
ment a¢ an act of grace on the grounds that it was al least open 10 question that
Council had no legal liability in the matter and, in any case, Council clearly appeared
to bave some moral responsibility,

1 added that Council might alse wish to consider whether it should take some
action o prevent similar accidents in the futife.

The Town Clerk later Informed me that Council’s insurers had agreed to meet
Mr A's claim as an act of grace. T have no idea whether that decision was taken because
my arguments proved 1o be compellingly persunsive or whether it was taken for some
other, less flattering reason. Additlonally, whilst the insurance company had suggested
that Council, in future, might insist that all users of the playing ficlds take out their
own Public Liability insurance, the Town Clerk said nothing about any action proposed
by Council for the future, However, 1 felt that T had 1o leave to Council the resolution
of that problem.

GOSFORD CITY COUNCIL

1. Failure to Prevent Discharge of Water onto Froperty
2, Delay in Replying fo Ombudsman

It is not unusual, during an investigation of a complaint, for me to decide,
pursuant to section 13 (1) of the Ombudsman Act, to take up, of my own volition,
with the authority involved an issue or matier that has come to light as a result of my
inquiries. It i most unusual for such an issue to be concerned with inordinate delay
in replying 1o me, but such was the situation in this case.

As a maiter of record, subsection 1 of section 13 provides—

“Where it appears fo the Ombudsman that any conduct of a public authority
about which a complaint may be made under section 12 may be wrong. the
Ombudsman may, whether or not any persen has complained to him about the
conduct, make the conduct the subjeet of an investigation under this Act.”

In this particular case, in early May, 1980, I received a complaint that Goaford
City Council had failed to take action to prevent the discharze of water onto the
complainant’s property from his neighbours property. T will hereafter refer 1o the
complainant as “Mr X",

Mr X In writing to me, said that he had been corresponding with the Council
since March, 1977, with a view to having the situation rectified but water from his
nelghbour’s property was regularly being discharged onto his land, Copies of cormes-
pondence provided by Mr X disclosed that—

{i1 he had written to Council on 4th March, 1977, alleging that his neigh-
bour was discharging stormwater and septic tank cfffuent onto his land
and that this had caused structural affectation to the foundations of the
dwelling he had built.

(i} Council, on 17th March, 1977, hod replied that a recent inspection of
his premises had failed to disclese the nuisaoce alleged, Council sabd
that the premises would be kept under surveillines particularly during
periods of rain.

(iii} on 28th March. 1977, Mr X hed written to Councll sgain, drawing
aftention to the fact that water was being discharged vin an carthenware
pipe from his neighbour’s property onto a driveway on the south-enstesn
boundary of Mr X's proparty,

{iv) on Gth April, Council hod replied and said—

““The neighbouring premises have already been inspected on a number
of occasions but, fo date, there has been no evidence that cfffuent
or sullage is being discharged into the drain you have excavated
along the castern side of the drive.

Regular inspections will contimse 1o be carried out hut the mulsance
you refer to must be evident at the time of inspection for Counell
o commence any action to abate this nuisanee.”

fv} In October, 1978, Mr X had again raised the problem with Council,
after his neighbour had constructed an in-ground swimming pool ndjncent
to the property boundary, expressing concern about possible discharge
of water from the pool in addition to the water he claimed was already
being directed on 1o his property.
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(i) Councll had ackoowledged his letter on 15t Movember and on 23rd
Movember, 1978, bnd written informing him that an inspection by
Council's Health Inspector had revealed “no nuisance st the time of
ingpection”. Council’s letter went on (o fay—

“The imstallation of the swimming pool should not provide any
drainnge nuisance (o your property,
Shoulkd apy nuisance be created by sullage wader or the overflow
from the swimming pool your advice st the time the nuisance ia
taking place would ennble Council to inspect the property and take
any appropripte aclicn that may be deemed necessary.”

{wii) Mr X wrode to Council en 29th November, 1978, and, inter olia, said—

"Dbvicusly there was no nuissnce occurring at the time of the
inspection because the swimming pool was sill being constructed
and there was so water in it

Secondly, vou obviously recognize the fact that there s a possibility
of nuisance because you stafe that I should contect you if &
nuisance occurs. If vou inspect the installation of pipes leading
from the pool, you will notice that the discharge from the filter and
pool is intended 1o Aow directly on to my land, just as the discharge
from the 4" EWP pipe near the side of the pool was directing
rainwaler direcily on to my lond,

From post experience, 1 have found that your ispectors afe un-
available except enrly in the morning and Iate in the afternoon,
so I fafl fo see how 1 could contact you or your inspectors as you
sugpest s that you can inspect ihe narisance when it occurs, that is,
so that yoo could drive from your office to the site ar that time
1o inspect the nuisance.

Cbviously, unless you can see the water being discharped on (o my
land, you will continue to allow the carthenware pipes to remain
directed on to my land,™

(wiii} In its reply on Tth December, 1978, Council had sald—

*The 100 mm ecariheaware pipe mentioned in your cormespondence
sppears 1o have been disconnected as the pool has been constrscied
through the pipeline,

All spplications for the erection of swimming pools in the Shire of
Gosford are approved conditional that no nuisance is caosed by the
backwashing process of the filiration system.™

(ix) On Znd April, 1979, Mr X apain wrole to Council and said—

“I pasure vou that both myself and my {other) neighbour [n Lot 23,
hove both been subject o problems caused because of the abowe
installotion. Firaly, one 100 mm carthenware pipe discharges rain-
waler directly on to my property (1 have a photograph to illastrate
this), and the excessive water discharge from the pool backwash
discharges directly on to my site and flows ot the full depth of the
profective drain 1 have had to dig to profect my cottage and divent
any possibility of a shide occurring.™

He went on to say that his neighbour in Lot 28 was threatening legal action
against him and that he propesed to fake legal action against the Council. Council,
on 2Tth April, had replied to the effect that his letler was acknowledged and the

contenis had been pobed.

On 13th May, 1980, T wrote to the Mayor of Gosford secking his comments
about Mr X' complaint which T delineated ns Council’s alleged failure to take action
to prevent the discharge of waler on to his property, In accordance with well established

procedure, [ sent & copy of my letter to the Town Clerk.

On 27th June and 15th July, having heard nothing from either the Mayor or the
Town Clerk, I sent reminder letters, the firdd requesting o reply within ten (10} days
and the second within seven {7) days. On 30st July, T was forced (o write and say—

“I have received no reply 1o any of my letters, not even i formal pcknowledge-
ment.
In view of this, | am now arranging for one of my officers to attend at
Council's office to investignte the complaini.

My officer will require nccess to the relevant Council files and will probably
need to interview the approprinte Council officer dealing with the alleged

drainage numsance,”
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On Tih August, the Town Clerk wrote to me and I reproduce hereunder the

‘erms of his letter—
' “Several inspeciions have been cartied out by Council’s Inspecior, however,
st the time there has been fo evidence of dischargs on to the nhove property.

The properiy will be inspected periodically and In the event of action being
taken by Coungil, your office will be advised.”

On the same day, in response to my letler of 31st July, ooe of Council's
cofficers, & Health and Building Inspector (1 will call him “Mr A™), contacted my office
and one of my officers arranged to visit the Council on 18th Avguss, 1980,

On 18th August, my oflicer visited the Council's premises, interviewed the
Health and Building Inspecior, Mr A, and called for the production of all relevant
files, which he examined. Later in the day, in the company of Mr A, he carried out an
inspection of Mr X's property and the neighbouring propertics. My officer reporied 1o
me that, upon his arrival &t the Coungil and before the inspection wns carried out,
Mr A had informed him that Mr X% seighbour, indeed, hod connected his pool
backwash sydem o the earthenware pipe mentioned by Mr X,

After considering my officer’s report to me, [ wrote (o the Mayor, on 5th
September, 1980, in the following terms—

“I refer to the Town Clerk's letfter of Tth Auvpgust (vour reference 3330, 35)
concerning the complaint made to me by (Mr X) about the dbcharpe of
waler on to his property . . .

At the outset, T must say that I consider the Town Clerk’s response in this
case to be fotally inadequate and fo reflect o disregard for my function and
role a8 Ombudsman.

As I foreshadowed In my letter of 31st July, 1 arcanged for one of my
officers to attend ot Council and peruse the file relating to (Mr X)) dealings
with Council, My officer alse interviewed Health pnd Building Inspector
(Mr A), and carried oul an inspection of the two properties Envolved in
{Mr A's) company.

As 8 result of my offfeer’s Inguirfes, I respect of which he has reported
to me, the significant issues in this matter, it seems fo me, can be summarized
ns follows:

fa) It hos boen ascertnined that (Mr X3} has taken action, in the Supreme
Court, against the (offending neichbour) seeking relicf from nuisance
which he alleges is being catsed. Mobwithstanding thiz. my investigation
is concermed with whether Cooncll acted reasonably In dealing with
Mr X% ecomplaints about the alleged discharge of water onto his
property.

(b} Imspecthon of the properties and discussion with (Mr AY revealed that
the {neighbour) discharges water through o small earthenware pipe,
when backwnshing his pool, info n small, rather overgrown, drain which
(Mr X} has dug. This drain, it is said, is not on (Mr X's) property but
on mn access road which separates the two propertics: the drain tekes
away from the rear boundary of Mr X's) land and deposits it on the
road at the rear of n vacant block, next door to (the neighbour’s
property ).

{c) (Mr A) told my officer thai, the pool owner, really, should not be dis-
charging his posl water in this way, bul expressed the view (hat, in
practical terms, the water discharped was nof allecting (Mr X)) and the
only other means of disposal would be for the pool owner lo insfall &
collection well and pump in order o pump out the waler—'a wvery
expeisive exercise’, o (Mr A’ view,

(d} (Mr A} said that a condition of approval for the pool was that posd
water be disposed of 'in 8 manner satisfactory to Council’, The pood
owner clnimed that he only backwashes the pool about once a month
in the summer months and, them, would discharge ‘only abowt 100
gallons”,

fe} (Mr X's) property would receive a considerable amount of surface
run-off in wet weather, doe to the topopraphy of the area. As far a8 can
be mscerfained, apan from the rough deain on the asecess poad, he has
made little provision for drafmage on his land.

([} My officer’s perwsal of Coancil’s file revealed that reports relating to
inspections  and investigations carrled out by Cowoncil's officers and
referred to in Council’s correspondence with (Mr X), and in the Town
Clerk’s letter (o me, do not exist {or. ot least were nof on the file),



73

When questioned in this regard, (Mr A) said that Council's officers
do not have time to make reports, because they are too busy, but that
letters sent to complainants by Council reflect the results of inspections
made.

I have looked carefully ot the terms of Council's letters to (Mr X) from
March, 1977, o April, 1979, and | have reached the conclusion that the
advice given by Council in those letters was inadequate and, possibly, mis-
lending, particularly after construction of the pool (on the pei

properiy]). On Tth December, 1978, for example, Council told (Mr X7 ihat
the 100 mm ewrthenware pipe appeared “to have been disconnected as the
pool has been constructed through the pipeline”. This docs not appear to
have been the case, as the pool owner freely admits that he s discharging
wuler when backwashing the pool through the pipe referred to and this
information should have been readily sscertainable by Council's officers. In
addition, the reference to disconnection infers that the pipe had previously
been connected o something but no information was given in this respect,

{Mr X). in his letter of 2nd April, 197%, made reference to photographic
evidence of the discharge of rainwater through this pipe and mentioned pool
water discharge as well, but Council merely replied io the effect that the
contents of his letter had been “noted™. Council's whole approach appears
to have been one of being unable to take action unless the discharge of water
could actually be observed at time of inspection. Mo consideration

te have been given to dye testing or any other action to cetablish the actual
pﬂ.l.‘l:[;m in respect of the discharge of water from (the nelghbouring pro-
perty).

The Town Clerk’s letter of Tth August to me made no mention of the fact
that it was known to Council that pool water was belng discharged via the
earthenware pipe. Whilst it wos claimed, on inspection, that no water would
frow onto (Mr X'} land, the question still remains as 1o whether such method
of disposal complics with the conditions attached to the building approval
for the pool and, if ned, whether Counedl should take sction in thiz respect,

On the material available, T am of the view that Council's actions in this
matter might be made the subject of adverse comment in ferms of the
Ombudsman Act. However, pursuant to section 24 of that Act, 1 now afford
you an opportunity to make submissions before I reach a final decision in the
matter, In this regard, 1 would particularly appreciate your comments
about the following aspects—

(i} the absence, on Council’s file, of any repons made a5 a result of
inspections earried out by Councils officers;

(i} the inadequate and possibly misleading nature of the letters sent by
Council, both to (Mr X) and to me;

(iii} in the absence of evidence to indicate otherwise, Council’s apparent
failure to take meaningful action 1o establish whether the owner
al (the neighbouring property) was discharging water from his roof,
his pocl, or from elsewhere, through the carthenware pipe and
whether such water was flowing or could flow onto ather properties,
including {Mre X's):

(iv) Council’s apparent acceptance of the present method of discharging
pood waler as a method “safisfactory to Council' in terms of the
conditions of building approval.

In addition, pursuant to section 13 (1) of the Ombudsman Act, I propose to
investigate, of my ownm wvolition, and as a separate matter, the delay on
Councils part in replying to me about the complaint made o me by (Mr X).
In this regard, [ wrote 10 you (and sent o copy to the Town Clerk) about
the matter on 13th May, 1930; I sent reminder letters on 27th June and 15th
July, 1980, but heard absolutely nothing. My letter of 31st July, at least,
evoked a response but, as 1 have already said, | consider such response to be
inndequats in the exireme

I, therefore, request your comments about this matler as soon as possible.
When forwarding your reply, please outline for my information the adminds-
trative procedures presently in operation to deal with complaints referred
by me o Couneil,

I would be pleased to receive your reply in both matters as soon as pousible
and, in any case, within six (6) weeks of the date of this letter. In this
regard, might I express the hope that there will be no repetition of the delay
experienced in respect of (Mr X's) complaint.”

On the same date, I wrote to Mr X informing him of the present position of
amy investigation and of the fact that T was seeking further comments from the Mayor
‘befare I reached a final decision,
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On 20th Octaber, Mr X wiole o me pobiing oul that—

the dmin (referved to in (b} i my letter to the Mayor} was in fact on his
property. His neighbours to the north had a right of way across that
section of the property to gain sccess to their properties.

the pocl water discharged onio his land was contammbrated water contalning
algae, body lats, urine, cle. He expressed the view thal as the Council
had required thai be insall a collection well on his property, a similar
requirement should be impeosed on his neighbour,

his property coubd cope with surface run-off from his

neighbour’s property
if it owos discharged over the whole width of his block (i.e., nl.ul‘llh']
and not conceniraled 1n one spot (ie, through the pipel.

On 315t October, the Town Clerk wrote to me i the following terms—

“The following comment is mode on the isues mised in your letter dated
Sih Scpiember Inst:

{a) Mo nuisance has been npparent at any inspecticn made by a Coun-
cil officer which s evident from previoos letters send (o (Mr X) and

yoursell,

(b} The owner of (the neighbouring property) was interviewed on 19th
September, 1980, and has agreed to provide an absorpiion trench
for the earthenware pipe st the rear of the property.

{e) With the wolume of water anticipated from backwashing & swim-
ming pood it is considersd that the dangers expressed by (Mr X)
are oversiated pnd there 4 no evidence of damage to (Mr X's)
property from any water flow.

{e) It is true that there would be s considerable amount of surface
run-lf in wel weather and Council does not consider that it is
an owner's responsthility fo prevent sorface water from natoral
land surface (tom running over another property.

{f) Council’s officers do not make comprehendive reporls on every
complaint investigated and would only do so if they contemplated
taking legal action.

Your questions are snswered in the following manner:
(i} See paragraph () abowve,
{ii) At no iime has any suisance been observed by Council's officers

and there is no doubt that action would have heen taken had any
nuispnce been apparent.

(iii) The seplic tank instollation and stormwaler diunage lines were
dye tested during the copstruction of the swimming pool and the
tests proved negaibve.

A dye test of the siormwater drainage on 15%th September, 1980

revealed that the stormwater and backwash water are discharg-
ing through the earthenware pipe at the rear of the lot.

{iv} The owner of (the neighbouring property} has agreed fo provide
an absorption trench for the discharge of waslte waters, It s not
Cotneil practice (o ask owners to pump stormwalers or backwaush
water to o higher road level, particularly in this case where no
kerhing and guitering is available.”

Cin 28ih October, | wrole to the Mavor again, pointing out that T had afonded
him, as head of the suthority concerned (e, the Council) an opportunity 1o make
submissions to me before 1 reached any final dectsion whether 1 should make adwerse
comment aboul Council’s sctions. T said that, whilst the Town Clerk’s reply had dealt
with the #sves raised in respect of the complaint made by Mr X, it had not dealt with
the delay on Council’s part in replying to me, and which 1 was investigating of my own
volition. T went on io say—

“I must say that T am concerned that you have not seen fit (0 reply 1o me
personally, particolarty in the light of the serious Bswcs raised. In fact, T
would have thought that mere courtesy dictated that T should receive some
form of response from wou as the hend of the authority. T say this, of eourse,
on the assumption thai you actually see the letters that [ address 1o you.

In this particular case, | am still waiting on your comments in respect of
the deloy in replying o mz sbout (Mr X%} complaint after 1 had referred
it to Council on 13th May, 1980, Reference to my letter on Sth September
will reveal that 1 osked, as well, for information abowt the asdministraiive
procedures presently in operation to deal with complnints referred by me to
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Council. In the light of the present situation, such information appears more
important than ever and, consequently, 1 must ask that you et me have your
reply in respect of the matter as soon s possible and with twenty-one (21)
days of the date hereof,

Whilst 1 regret having to do so, | must draw your atiention to the provisions
of sections 18, 21 and 37 of the Ombudsman Act.

Turning now to the matter of (Mr X's) complaint, there are & number of
comments that I must make reparding the reply forwarded 1o me by the
Town Clerk—

{a) (i) the Town Clerk’s reply still speaks of ‘no nuisance being
apparent al any inspection made by a Council officer’, It does
mat ¢xplain why the compluints made by (Mr X) in his letter
af 2nd April, 1979, were not investigated. In this regard, 1 note
that dye testing (with ncpative results) was carried out during
the constriction of ihe pool . . . but not afterwards, despite
{Mr X's) continuing complainis, until 1%th September, 1980,
following my Inst letter o youw;

{ii} in my view, it was not sufficient, in the light of the claims that
{Mr X) was making, to simply do nothing because “a nuisance’
was ned actoally scen;

(b} Council was aware some time before September, 1980, that pool
water was heing discharged through the earthenware pipe but this
was never conveyed to (Mr X}, The only ndvise ke over
was (o the effect that the pipe “appeared to have been disconnected”
gmd that no mulsance was apparent;

(¢} (i) In fact, as is pow clear, the siluation is ecven worse than
Council thought, for not only is pool water being discharged
through the pipe, but stormwater as well. One wonders how
long this situation has existed and the only evidence available
(namely, the claims made by (Mr X) in his letter of 2nd
April, 1979) indicates that it has existed af least since late 1978
or early 1979 In the light of this, I cannot ngree with the
Town Clerk’s slaterment that (Mre X) has “overstated” the
dangers for it is not only the water from pool backwashing that
is invalved;

(i) it seems guite evident that, even in the face of (Mr X's) com-
plaints and his claims regarding the disposal of rainwater and
pool water, Council appears to have done absolutely nothing
to sscertnin the position. In fact, as 1 remarked in my last
letter, (Mr X's) letter of 2nd April, 1979 was merely ‘noted”;

{iii) whilst T have noted the Town Clerk’s comments about surface
run-ofl (subparagraph (¢) of his letter), (Mr X) has made
the point that his property can cope with normal surface run-
off from his neighbour's property ad this is disc over the
entire width of the block, Hewever, he doss object o storm-
water, etc., being concentrated in one spot (i, discharged
through the pipel;

{d) Despite the condition attached by Council itsell to the approval
far the peol at (the neighbouring property) relating to the satis-
factory disposal of pool water and, again. in the fact aof (Mr X's)
eomplaints, Council appears 1o have taken no action whatsoever to
satisfy itselfl as to compliance with the relevant condition of
ap-pm'n.'a!.
As a matter of interest (Mr X) has informed me that the access road,
referred to in subparagraph ib) of my letier of Sth September and on to
which the earthenwnre pipe discharges, is his property. Access is provided
geross this section of his property o his two neighbours on the norihern
sude

I note the Town Clerks advice that Council's officers do not make compre-
hensive reports on every complaint investigated and would only do so if they
contermplated taking legal action, With respect, 1 suggest that it # not & ques-
tion of making 'comprehensive’ reports, but one of making any reporis at
all. One wonders how Council's officers can adequately inform Council,
should a matter need to be consbdered by Council itself, in the absence of
somme record of what has been done in the fisld, particularly when, &8 is pot
unusual, staff may leave Council's employ, retire, ete, and might not be
available to recall the acthon they iook.

In addition, it i not inconceivable that legal action might have been necessary
in this case in relation to the faiture of the peol owner to comply with the
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conditions of building approval in respect of the discharge of pool water, yet
there were no reports on the file, In any case, I am intrigued as 1o how
Council's officers determine with absolute certainty which cases might result
in legal action and therefore be deserving of report.

I would be interested in having your views about this particular aspedt,

In conclusion, 1 am not persuaded by anything the Town Clerk has said, that
I should mot find Council’s conduct in this matter to have been wrong, and
report accordingly in terms of the Ombudsman Act. However, as 1 have not
had the benefit of your views in the matter, I again aflord you an oppor-
tunity, pursuant to section 24 of the Act, to let me have your submissions,
I would be pleased if such submissions reached me within twenty-one (21)
days of the dote hereof ™

On 3rd November, the Mayor telephoned my Office. He indicated that he
thought that a reply from the Town Clerk was all that 1 had required and, in any
case, be rested on the terms of the Town Clerk’s reply, He added that a further letter
reganding the delay in replying to me about Mr X' complaint was on the way to me,

I subsequently received the Town Clerk's letter, which he had written on 28th
Oiciober, and which said—

“The following information is supplied in response to your criticism of the
delay in replying o correspondence concerning the above complaint.

(1) Upon receipt of the letter from your office dated 13th May last, it was
referred to the Engineer's Depariment for preparation of a draft reply.

(2) Inquiries made from that Department following receipt of the letter dated
27th June indicated that it had been misdirected and forwarded to the
Health and Building Department for drafting of the reply.

{3) The Health and Building Diepartment was reminded about the matter
following receipt of your letter of 15th July, 1980,

(#) A copy of your letter dated 31st July, 1980 (received on 6th August),
was sent (o the Health and Buikding Department as a furiher reminder
and in response a drafi reply dated fith August was prepared, (It s
recalled that about this time (Mr A) of the Health and Building Chepart-
ment reported that arrangements were being made with an officer of
your office to inspect the subject of the complaint.™

After carefully coasidering the material available to me, I wrote to the Mayor
on 11th Movember in the following terms—

“1 wish to confirm that 1 have now received the Town Clerk's letter of 28ih
October concerning the delay that occurred in replying 1o my letters regarding
(Mr X's) complaint and 1 have carefully noted all that he has had to say
in this regard. However, you will recall that, in notifying you of my decision
to investigate this particular matter (my letter of Sth September), I asked
that I be informed of the administrative procedurss presently in operation to
deal with complaints referred by me to Council. I regret to say that this
information was not incheded in the Town Clerk's letter of 28th October
which was not before me or my officer when we spoke to you on the tele-
phone,

In the circumsiances, you might now let me know—

(a) the way in which letters from this office are referred to the appro-
priste Department of Council for preparation of draft reply (e.g., is
a copy of my letter referred while the original is placed on the
general cormespondence file pending receipt of the draft reply?):

{b) whether any system of follow-up is emploved in the Town Clerk's
Depariment to cosure that draft replies are prepared within the time
consirnints imposed in my letlers pursuant 1o section 18 of the
Ombuodsman Act; and

(c) whether any system of follow-up or oversight is employed within
other Depariments io ensure that—

(i) the request has been referred to the correct Department; and
(i) the draft reply is prepared promptly.
It seems to me that the information requested is pertinent In the light of the
Town Clerk’s advice, which indicates that no inquiries were made or reminder action

was taken within Council, In the matter of (Mr X's) complaint, until my various
reminder letters were actually received.

The other issue ralsed in my letter of Sth September, and which was overlocked
during our iclephone discussions, relates to the presemt practice whereby Councils
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officers do not make reports on every complaing investigated, My commentis in this
respect appear on pages 2 and 3 of my leter under reference and I would appreciate
your views aboul the matter before I decide whether I should pursue it

So far as Council's actions in respect of (Mr X's) complaint are concerned, 1
confirm thal your views are represented by the ferma of the Town Clerk's letter of 21st
n!IEIhIE."

On 281th Movember, the Moyor wrote 10 me and said—

"It s to be regretted that the Town Clerks reply of 28th October, 1980,
relating to the complaint by (Mr X) did not satisfy your equiry regarding
the administrative procedurcs presently in operation to deal with complaints
referred by me to Councll. It was assumed that this statement related to the
subject of the letter oaly. In response 1o your general inguiry fe procedures,
the following information is supplied:

(ad There is a delay unforunately somelimes appreciable, before the
letter reaches the Town Clerk. A copy of your letter b forwarded
1o the appropriate semior officer of the Coupcll and the ariginal
refained by the Town Clerk. The Cooncil does not mainfain a
general correspondence file.

(b} A system of follow-up is employed in the Town Clerk’s Department,

but s not always effective.

{2} Each Department is provided with a monthly report of outstanding
correspondence which has been referred to that Department
Monthly reports would include Jetters from your office which were
unanswered at that date of the report. It should be appreciated
that it is more the rule than the exception for a field inspection to
be carmicd out in order to draft o reply, and that the Council deals
with 1 D0} letters per month requiring replies. Furthermore, occa-
sions arise where a technical officer who is familiar with the subject
ks absent on leave.

(d) It is wnssual for a peport, in some form or another, sot 0 be mads
when an investigation &5 carried out—even i that report is recorded
in a reply to o letter. It s nod the practice of the Council to Insist
that reporis be made of conversalions with residents, as such &
practice would unnecessarily add to the workload of the Council's
saff.”

Bearing in mind the factors that 1 had raised in my letiers of Sth Sepiember
and 29th Oclober, 1980, 1o the Mayor and, in particular, that:

(a} no effective investigntion incorporating the use of dye tests had been
carried out in respect of Mr X's complaints, following the construction
of the swimming pool, until after T had raised the matter in my letter
of §th September;

{b) Council had been aware for some time that pool water was being dis-
charged through the earthenware pipe ento Mr X's land;

{e)] dye testing, eventually, bad established that stormwater was also being
discharged through the pipe onto Mr X's land and the only evidence
available suggested that this sitoation had existed since late 197T8; and

{(d) even in the face of Mr X's continued complaints and claims, Couneil
had done nothing to ascertain the trus position (po period here).

I formally found the conduct of the Council o be wropg in terms of the
Ombodsman Act n that Council had failed 1o take sufficient action fo deal with
Mr X's complaints about the discharge of water onlo his property and, moresver,
the terms of Council's letters to Mr X betweesn March, 1977, and April, 1979, had
been inadequate and misleading. Might 1 add that the same had to be said for the
letter of Tth August, 1980, addressed to me,

This left the mafters of Couwncils practice in relation to making reports about
ficld inspections and the general issue of the procedures adopied to deal with com-
plaints referred to Council by me.

So far as the first motter was concerned, [ adhered fo the views 1 expressed
in my letter of 29th October to the Mayor, [ did not suggest that, in every case
where an inspection s made, a detailed report be prepared. However, T was of the
view that, at least, & brief report should be made and retained on Council's file o
indicate—

who carried out the inspection;
when the inspection was made;
the result of the inspection.
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S far os the second matter wos concerned, I considered it relevant that, of
11 matters which I had referred to the Council between 1st January and 30th Sep-
tember, 1980 (not including Mr X's complaint), delay in furnishing a reply had
oecurred in B cases {or 72.7 per cent). Such delay had ranged from a mere 2 days
to 30 days and had averaged a nol inconsiderable 19 days. I could but agree with
the Mayor's statement that the system of follow-up emploved in the Town Clerk's
Department “is net always effective™

In accordance with the provisions of sections 25 and 26 of the Ombwdsman
Act, 1 informed the Minister for Local Government of my inteation fto publish a
report in the matter and offered io consult with him if he wished me to do so. 1
provided a copy of a draft of the report | proposed to make 1o the Minister and to
the Mayor.

The Minister subsequently indicated that be did not wish to consult with me
and 1, therefore, made my report and published it. Copies of my report were given
to the Minister, the Mayor and Mr X,

In my report, in the light of Council's belated action to have Mr X's neighbour
install an absorption trench, 1 made ne recommendation in relation to Mr X's specific
complaint,

However, 1 did recommend—

{n) that Council’s practice whereby officers are not required to make reports
following feld inspections be changed; and

{b) that the administrative procedures in effect for dealing with matters
referred to Council by the Ombudsman be carefully reviewed with a
view to ensuring that replies are prepared and forwarded i
and within the time constraints imposed pursuant to section 13 of the
Ombwdsman Act,

I asked the Maoyor to let me know what action Council intended to take in
respect of my recommendations and he subsequently wrote saying that he had referred
the matter to the Town Clerk for atiention and investigation. The Town Clerk, he
satd, would advise me as soon as he (the Town Clerk) had completed his investigations.

The Mayar himself, however, subsequently informed me in the following
terms—

" Arrangements have been made for officers to make written reports on the
subject of complaints and attach them to the relevant file.

A procedure will be introduced in an emdeavour to ensure that matlers
referred to the Council by the Ombudsman are replied to within the time
required.”

I then concleded my Investigatinm,

PENRITH CITY COUNCIL

Drainage Problems

1 received a compiaint concerning Council's charges relating to the kerbing and
ing of a street bordering the complainant’s land, and alleging that the Council
an open drainage channel on io his land into which it had directed run-off
public road.

I raised these matters with Council and was advised that the subject drain had
in existence for some time and that Councll had only cleansed and maintained

n kn its recent operations, Further, 1 wos advised that Council's charges for
and gutter work were reasonable and based on a detailed examination of the
armance of Council’s staff on similar work in the previous year.

i

g
{1

g

On the basis of statutory declarntions and photographs supplied by the com-
plainant, and maps and diagrams supplied by Coeuncil, T was able to take the matter
up with Council agnin on the basis thai:

{1} Council had not isseed the complainant with a notice of ealry prior to
Councll workers entering on to his land to undertake work on the
subject drain.

{2) The work undertaken to the subject drain was far in excess of that
required just to cleanse the drpin. The information that had becn
supplied 10 me indicated that a mechanical digger had been wsed 1o
significantly deepen, lengthen and restructure the drain,
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(3) The information available to me further indicated that the Council had
copstructed a culvert under the adjoining road {and a gully pit as part
of the subject kerb and gutiering of the road) which had the effect of
concentrating the run-off of water from the public read into the drain
located on the complainant’s land.

{4) The only attempt made by Council 1o deal with or minimize the effect
of this redirection of flow on to the complainant's land appeared 1o have
been the digging of the drin. No attempt had been mncle to purchase
land, scquire a drainage easemeni, or fo pay compensation for any
nuisance caused by the culvert and drain,

{5} It appeared that the extension of the subject culvert, plus the construc-
tion of the necessary gally pit 1ying the culvert into the kerb and gutter,
did not fall within Council's powers under section 243 of the Local
CGovernment Act, 1919,

{6) The decisions of the Supreme Court in Rudd v. Horusly Shire Couneil
(31 LGRA 120) and Srewenr v, Hawral Municipal Councll (Helsham
C.J. in Eg, unreported 578/77) werne relevant in that they were primarily
concerned with Council actions which resulied in 2 nuisance being
created in a situation where a Council had not purchased land, ncquired
an easement, or pakd compensation. These cases dealt extensively with
Council’s responsibility and liability for muintenance of drainage ease-
ments. and watercourses free from nuisance.

{7} In the complainant's case the road water direcled on 10 his land by
Council had detrimentally affccted the drainage of his property and had
resulted in significant ercsbon.

In the circumstances | advised Council that 1 was of the opinion that it had
gone beyond its powers under section 241 of the Local Government Act, 1919, and
had ineorrectly tried to charge the complainant & percentage of the cost of ceriain
works under section 243 of the Act.

1 recommended to the Council that steps be taken to remove the drainage
nuisance through piping of the subject drain and that the cost of extending the culvert
and constructing the gully pit be deleted from the hill given to the complainant.

In response I was advised that Council was prepared to resolve the problem
by:
{a) piping the subject drain; and

{b) reducing the outsianding kerb and gutter account by deduction of the
estimated cost of the subject culvert and gully pit.

As 1 was of the opinion that Council’s offers were generally ncceptable and
would provide the basis for satisfactory resolution of the complaint, I decided not to
take the matter any further.

SUTHERLAND SHIRE COUNCIL

Refusal of Application for Fence and Ercction of o Difficrent Fence without
Consuliation

A young couple {my cemplainants) purchased a home and land at the rear of
which was some unfenced Council-owned land. Council later subdivided iti land
for sale as building blocks and, by virlue of agreements entered into with its original
neighbours, arranged for rear bowndary fences o he built at Council cxpenss,

My complainanis who had purchased their property [rom one of Council’s
original neighbours heard about the [ence proposals from other neighbours and, after
making inquiries and on the ndvice of a Councll oficer, submilted an application
to have a particular style of fence erecied falher than an ordinary paling fence.
They claimed that they were told by the Counell officer concerned that there should
be no problems about the fence they wanted (20 open picket siyle fence, probably
much cheaper to erect than a paling fence). Almost a month Later, they received a
brief letter of acknowledgement from Council which indicated that their application
had been referred to Council's Engineering Department “for the appropriate action
to be taken”.

My complainants related subsequent cvents in the following lerms—

«Two months lter. on Friday, 9th November, posts had been erected and set
I concrete on owr back boundary which did not conform with our requested
plans,
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I rang (the Council officer) on Monday, 12th November, and he became
evasive about the posts and told me that the council had decided that the
original agreement was now void and the council would erect & standard
five foot paling fence that was said be ‘pleasing o the eye and blending in
with suffounding fences and bushland,

Mo reason was given for the rejection of our original plan. As the plans
were submitled in September we felt they had plenty of time to notify us
ot the rejection and a substitute fence could have been decided upon, example,
4 lap and cap design.

Upon asking (the Council officer) was it o waste of our time going through
this procedure of drawing and submitting the plans be said ‘no it wasn't’,
He would ery to stop the private contractors emploved erecting the fence
on our boundary and the Council would give us the money it would cost
them to erect the paling fence allowing us to pul wp our own fence.
Approaching the second point of interest, that is, why do we have a six
foot kap and cap continuing six foot into our land, this question was also
evaded. (The Council officer) todd me he would wvisit the site and try to
stop the conlractors proceeding and would contact me about future develop-
ment. He did not

On l4th November, Wednesday evening, | returned from work to find a
five food paling fence crected. The femce was shabbily constructed with
paling widlhs varying and gaps between the ground and bottom of the
fence, Alse there was a lot of dumage to our froil tress close o the
boundary. The lap and cap fence, erected on adjoining properties, appear-
amte wis very pleasing,

Of our neighbours (directly next door) effected also in this way, were not
eriginal owners from whom the council purchased the kand, so one would
think that if one agreement wes void theirs would be also. Yet a six foot lap
and eap fence hns been erecied across both thelr boundaries and six foot
into ours. One of the neighbours verbally asked for a lap and cap and the
other had not done anything cxpecting a paling fence to be erected,

We are most upsel that we have been singled out for this treatment, Alo
that the fence consists of two designs, lap and cap, and paling, because the
council are following the boundaries of the new blocks which are narrower
than ours,"”

I asked Council for its comments about ke matter and, a8 the same time,
one of my officers inspected the fence and interviewed the complainant husband. My
officer reported that the basis of complaint was that Council had failesd to contact the
complainanis in any way about the fence even though they had been given a verbal
indication that there should be mo problem about their application. Other aspects
toncerning them were—

(i} the apparent faflore of (the Council officer) (o stop the erection of the
fence alter indicating he would do so and arrange for them to be given
the cost of the paling fence to apply towards cost of whalever sort of
fence they wished to build,

(i} the current situation whereby their rear boundery boasts two completely
different styles of fence (ordinary paling and lap and cap).

The Shire Clerk subsequently reported to me that the fence constructed along
the rear boundary of the complainants' property was without cost to them and,
although Council had no legal Bability to construct the fence, it was built o honour
un agreement with the former owner of the property. That agreement was for a
§ foot paling fence, the posts of such fence to be set in concrete. The agreements
with the other property owners were different in that the type of fence was ot
specified in them. In two instances, the fence was to be a suitable dividing fence
and in the third, a dividing fence of materials approved by the owner.

The Shire Clerk said that the open picket style fence requested by the com-
plainants hod not been considered suitable fencing for a rear boundary. He added
that, when the fencing wus erected, the lapped and capped fence, along the boundary
was cartied about two metres across the complainants' property as the side boundary
of the Council owned lot was used as the transition point. The side boundary of the
complainants’ property was nol defined by any fencing at this point,

Council considered that the standard of fencing constructed was satisfaetary,
No scrious damage was evident 1o any fruit trees on the property (my officer’s inspec-
tion had already confiemed this).
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The Shire Clerk went on to say—

“With reference to the telephons call 1o & member of Council staff at his
home, it B suffice to say that the telephone in guestion i= pot a Couneil
telephons {the officer) was not on duty at the time and his private telephone
number had not been given te the complainants.

Howevwer, for your information (the officer) i o Senior Engincer employed by
this Council and is not the type of person o give abuse. He states the
telephone call was made to him at about 7.30 p.m. on the 14h Movember
amd after listening to about ten minutes of attack on Council ond himsedf,
during which on no less than four occasions he asked them to contact him
at work the next day, the telephone call was terminated. (He admits that
during a conversation with (the complainamis), ke did inform them ihe
decision o erect the fence had been made and that ot that stage, Council
did not intend 1o remove a newly constructed fence in licu of their proposal.

Council has now sold the property adjoining (the complainants’ property).
However, subject (o agreement being reached with the new owner and (the
complainants) paying & contribution of 5100 in advance to Counell,
arrangements will be made to cooveri the existing 1.5 metre paling fence
o a lapped and capped design by placing 50 mm wide palings between the
existing palings and providing capping 1o the whole fence. The reduced
height should not worry the owners as their original proposal was for a
1.2 metre open type fence.

The above proposal is made without prejodice as Council considers s legal
responsibilities have been carried out.”

I was nodt entirely happy with Council's report but, before pursuing the matier [
told the complainants of what Council had had to say and asked for their comments.
The complainants responded as follows:

"Regarding . ........00 000000000, the council’s kegal responsibilities to an
agreement of former owners, about the erection of a five foot paling fence,
is the first time we have been notified of such ap agreement.

As explained in our [ast letler, the council advised ws that if we wished
to have a specific designed fence we should notify them, which we did, in
writing.

As far as legal responsibilities are concerned, this agreement to former ovwners
would surely have become veid on the selling of the property to w. And if
mot, why were we nol told in July, 1979, to aveid prolonging this predicament.

We still emphasize the fact, that on submission of our plans for a specifically
designed fence, thelr rejection was nol nofified o ws until after the com-
pletion of the paling fence,

It is troe that our side boundary has no defined fencing, but there was, and
still remains a white boundary peg, originally placed, and only recently
checked by the council. In our opinion, the continuation of the six foot
lap and capped design &° into our boundary was definitely more sulied to
the council in the anctioneering of their land,

We know the blocks are of minimum building size, 0 with the sddition of
mixed fencing ncross their Blocks they would have been more difficult to sl
for the price wanted. We fecl, as we have been longer standing members of
the municipality, the council would have agreed to our boundary marking.

To conclude, we are definitely not in agreeance to the council's proposal to
the conversion of the five foot paling fence to a lap and capped design (with-
oul the altering of the 6’ lap and capped design) on our expense,™

I wrote again to Council and relayed the complainants’ comments, In my letier,
I said that I could understand the complainants’ feelings and, bearing in mind that the
Shire Clerk's reply had not dealt with several of the major aspects of their complaint,
was of the view that the matter required further consideration.

I referred to my initinl letter wherein [ had set out the sequence of events which,
according to the complainants had occurred and which had given rise to their complaint,
namely—

(i) that they had submitted a design of the fence they wished erected to
the Senior Engineer in September, 1979, and were allegedly told that
the poposed fence was satlsfactory and that there would be no
probdems.

(i) when they saw the posits sel in concrele on Hih November and realised
that the fence they wanted was not being bullt, the complainant wife had
telephone the Senior Engineer, on 12th November, and, after discussion
he allegedly undertook to try o stop construction of the fence pro-

[P R T
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ceeding and, further, indicated that Council would give them an amount
equal 1o the cost of the proposed paling fence so they could apply this
towards the cost of erecting a fence themselves, When the complainants
arrived home from work on 14ih NMovember, the paling fence had beoen
erected.

I said that Council's offer to convert the existing paling fence to a lapped and
capped design, subject to an advance contribution of $100.00 from the complainants,
did not appear to me to represent a realistic sclution 1o the problems. Quite apart
from the aspect of now seeking a contribution towards the conversion of the fence,
such conversion of a 1.5 metre paling fence 1o & lapped and capped design would not
overcome the original complaint made by the complainants that their rear boundary
fence consisted of a fence two distinct beights.

I wenk on 1o Spy=—

“There are several matlers arising from this complaint about which I would
lke further information=—

{a}) Was a plan of the fence {the complainants) wanted delivered to
Couneil in September, 1979, as ihoy claim?

(b Were they told that ihe desired fence appeared satisfactory?

(¢} (i} Was Council's decision, that the (desired) fence was considered
unsuliable ever conveyed to (the complainanti) before con-
gtroction of the paling fence commenced (apparently on Sth
November) ?

{ii) If this was done, when and in what manner was it done?

{Hi) If this was not done, why was some altempt not made to
discuss the matter with them with a view o finding o safis-
factory aMernative?

(d) Waos any attempt made by (the Senfor Engineer) 1o slop construc-
tipn of the paling fence?

I note from the Shire Clerk's letter that the paling fence was constructed
along the rear boundary of (the complainants’) property to honour an
agreement with the former owner of the property. Apparently such agreement
covered & five foot paling fence. However, 1 note that in respect of
owimers in the locality, types of fencing were not specified. It seems to me
that, when Council decided 1o put the lap and cap design fence on the fear
boundaries of adjoining properties, the appropriate course to have adopted
would have been to continue the lap and capped design across the rear
boundary of (the complainants') property, Indeed it seems to me that it
was maos! inappropriate to bring a lapped and capped design fence some
{wo melres past the boundary of (their) property and then commence
construction of an entirely dilferent design of fence,

I note, too, the Shire Clerk’s advice that Council had no legal liability 1o
construct & femce at all; but the fact remains that Council did construct &
fence with the result that, not only is the fence not what the complainants
sought, but there nre now two different styles of fence, of different height,
on their property,

I find it somewhnt contradictory to say on the one hand (as the Shire Clerk
appears to in his letter) that a 5* paling fence was erected becauss this was
the type of fence stipulated in the agreement with the former owner and,
on the other hnnd, that the agreement was no longer valid por binding on
Councll in relation fo (the complalnants).

It is true, a8 the Shire Clerk says, that, had the complainants erected the
fence they wanted originally, it would have been lower even than the exbsting
paling fence. However, I feel the major point is being overlooked in that
there are two types of fence on thelr property. Mo doobt, their original
proposal envisaged that the fence would commence at their property boundary
and net at & point approximately 2 metres inskde their property.

It seems to me (hat it would be appropriate for Council to reconsider the
whole matter with a view to a uniform fence being erected along the whole
of the rear boundary Hnes.™

The Shire Clerk's reply, in response to the specific questions I asked, can be
summarized as follows:

{a) Design of Fence—The proposal for alternative type or design or fencing
wns delivered to Council with a letter from the complainants dated 24th
September, 1979,

(b} War the design satisfactory?—Council admitted that the complainants
were told the proposed altermative fence design appeared to be satis-
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factory. Prior to receipt of the letter of 24th Seplember, 3 member
of Councal’s stafl interviewed them at the Administration Centre, and
the fencing was discussed. They were told to make a formal application
o Council. Council claimed that it was not indicated to the com-
plainants that Council would construct the nlternative fencing without
sorne cost to themselves.

(e} When war Councils decision eonveyed fo them?
(d) Wear mr affempr made 1o stop construciion?

The fle on this mater was needed in varions sectioms of Council’s Office.

It was referred do the Enginesr’s Section on 28th September, was in the hands of
the reporting officer on 15th October, taken by the Administration Section on 17th
October, returned to Engineers Section on 24th October, taken by Treasury on 3t
October, returned to Engincer’s Section on 2Znd November and again taken by
Admiinstration Section on 6th November. For these reasons, the complainant’s pro-
posal was ot formally considered. The malier was taken up with both the Shire
Enginesr and his Deputy on [13th Movember bud it was then comsidered that the
fencing contracior had reached a stage when no change could be made to substitute
o different design of fencing.

The Shire Clerk went on fo say—

“A major point of conflict appears io be the fact that the rear fenee of
(the complainants’) property consists of two types of fence, consisting of
approximately 2 medres of 1.8 metres high lapped ond capped fencing and
1.5 metres high paling fencing for the balance of the boundary. Council,
in constructing the fence with the 1.8 metres lapped and capped fencing
extending 2 metres from the adjoining property onto the subject property,
had no motives other than to ensure that the fencing specification changed
ol a known side boundary.

The side boundary of the new alletment created by Council's subdivision
had been pegged by Council’s surveyors a short time before and, in choosing
this location, it would not have besn apparent that changing the fence
specification at this location would have had any effect on (the complainants”)
property, particularly in view of the topography and the fact that a side
fence did not exist on their property.

To assess what effect, if any, the step in the fence has had on the ameniiy
of the propeny, it s considered neceisary that a site inspection be held
by the Ombudeman or one of his officers, so that account can be tnken of
the topography of the sie. If required, an officer of the Shire Engineer's
Department could be made available to be present at the site inspection,”

Im analysing all of the information availoble, it seemed clear 1o me that ihe

story told by the complainants was trwe in all major respects—

{a) (i) They had submitted 1o Council a design for an alternative style of
fence under cover of a letter on 24th Sepiember, 1979, and had
been told that the proposed style of fence apeared to be satisfactory:

(ii) the only advice they had ever received from Council was & letter
dated 16th Qcteber, 1972 (almost a month later), which indicated
that their application had been referred to the Engincering Depari-
ment for “the appropriate action 1o be taken™,

(b} Councils “rejection”™ of the proposed fence had never been conveyed to
the complainanis beeause the proposal was not formally considered (far
the reasons set out in the Shire Clerk’s letter). In other words, the
complainants’ proposal was “rejected™ by default. The matter was not
taken up within Council until 13th November, the day after the com-
plainant wife ‘phoned to complain about the posts erected on the
propesty.

(e} Even then, according to the complainants {and Council did not deny it),
the Senior Engineer, in undertaking to try and stop the contractor, said
he would contact them, but he did not. They were rorf told that the
contracier could not be stopped. In other words, they were not told that
they could not have the fence they wanted and were, thus, denied the
opportunity to elect to have the same style of fence s their neighbours.
By the time the matter was looked af, the contractor had resched the
stage where no substitufion of a different design of fencing (even lap
and cap) could be made,

(d) The whole point in my view was that, had the complainants been
properly and reasenably informed that—

they could not hkave the fence they wanied: and
it was proposed to erect an ordinary paling fence
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they would probably have dected to have the same fence as their
neighbours (1.8 m lop and cap) and, thus, the problem of two styles
of fence on their property would not have arisen. They said that this
was what they would have scitled for and 1 saw no reason to disbelieve
them.

Council, in my view, had a responsibility to satisfy itself on property
boundarics, particularly as Council had decided to erect a different type
of fence aib the rear of that particular property,

All of the problems had arisen, quite clearly, bhecawse of a wodal failure
on Council’s part to communicate o1 ol with the complainants. All of
the meaningful communication initiatives had come from them, not from
Council, and Council's failure 1o act on their application had led 10 &
situntion developing where it was impossible, because of inection, 0
correct what the complainans, with some justification, regarded as an
absurdity.

Council had said that the fence was consiructed along the rear boundary
of the complainants’ property to “honour an agreement” with the former
awner, 1 imagined that such agreement, in spirit if not in letter, required
the fence 1o be along the former owner’s (Le, now ihe complninants)
and not some other boundary. Council's wse of their own subdivision
side boundary, I felt, was, probably unreasonable in the circumstances.

I still could not undersiand, if the agreement had no force (as Council
clnimed) why the lap and cap style fence was simply not continued right
through. Why a different fence had been built on the property had not
been satisfocterily explained. The fact that & 5 feet paling fence was
stipulated in the original agreement by Council's own admission, was
irrelevant in the complainants” case.

Whilst ane of my officers had already had a look at the site, 1 felt that further

inspection might afford an opportunity for my views o be put in & face-to-face
situation and that this might prove more helpful than a “war of woerds” by correspon-
dence, For this reason, | arranged for my officer to carry oul a site inspection in
company with Council's officer and the complainant husband.

My afficer, following on-site discussions, reporied to me in the following terms

(hiz report has been edited for obvious reasons):

“A site inspection and conference was held on Tth August, 1980, Mr A
{the complainant) and Mr B of Council were present.

The discussion which occurred was fruitful and was conducted without
animosity and in & spirit of reasonablencss. The major poinis arising there-
from wete a1 follows:

{a) Mr B explained why Council had had regard to the terms of the
agreements entered into with the original owners of the com-
plainant's and adjoining propertics and it was agreed that it was
reasonable for Council, in looking for & “starting point”, to have
done so. Tt was unfortunate that the original owner of Mr A's
property had settled for a 5 feet paling fence, whereas his neigh-
bours had held out for o fence “to the satisfaction of the owner™.
Even though the agreement had no legal force in Mr A's case,
Council felt 1 reasonable o proceed in terms of the original
agreement,

{b) (I} The problem was that Mr and Mrs A's application for a
different femce was not dealt with by Council and they were not
told that Council would not approve it

(i} Council claims that, even if Mr A had been told and negotia-
tions had then taken place, Council would have expected a
contribution for any type of fence cosing more than a 5 feet
paling fence, Thus, if Mr A had decided on a 6 feet lap and
cap, like his neighbours, he would have been required to pay
the extrn cost involved,

{c) I painted out that, whilst this might be so, Mr A had been denied
the opporiunily to negotizte anything, due to Council's failure to
deal with his application or to communicate in any way with him
(no matter how valid were the reasons for such failure). Mr B
conceded this.

{d) AN agreed that it would be ridiculous to demolish the existing
paling fence and that such o course would represent a waste of
ratepayers’ money.

{e) () Mr B agreed that the original agreements, which Council used

a5 “starting points”, reloted to the rear boundaries of the blocks
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concerned and nol (o the boundaries of the Council blocks (all
of which have now been sald) abuiting twem. He said that
Council had no ulterior molive in commencing the paling
fence at the Council property boundary rather than Mr A's
boundary; it was simply that the former was I"Eﬂ.lﬂl_lf idemtifiabla
whilst the lnfter was not,

(i) All agreed that there was no question of Council using their
own boundary merely to make the block at the rear of Mr A a
more altractive sale proposition. Mr B conceded my point,
however, thal, as Council elected 1o vse the obd agresment as
a basz of the operation, Council had some responsibility 1o
ascertain where Mr A's lence shoubd starl.

{f) Mr A said that he was no longer terribly worrbed about the fact
that there will be a fence of two heights on his rear boundary line
and he would be happy if Council lapped and copped the existing
S-lool fense, Hi decison was probably influenced by the fact that
the block at the rear hos been sobd and any modification of the piece
off G-foot lap and cap fence on his property would necessarily involve
congultntion with pnd the agreement of the new owner. This would
take more fime, with no guarontee of swecess in any case,  Not-
withstanding that, 1 think his decision was both reasonable and
realistic,

(g} Megotiations then ensued in respect of the basis on which Council
would be prepared to carry out the remedial waork on the paling
fence. It was clear that Council’s original offer to carry out the
work, if Mr A pald $100, represented nothing in that Coupcl
estimaied the work to cost approximately 5100, T made it clear
that this office would expect some retreat from this position on
Council's part.

(h} Mr B pointed out that the paling fence had been erected at no cost
to Mr A when, sirictly speaking, he could have been msked o
contribute 50 per cont of the cost, He agreed, however, that
Council had failed to deal with Mr A's opplication and, on that
basis, suggesied a contribution from Mr A of 350,00, After a lot
of discussion, Mr A offcred o contribote $25.00 ond Mr B agreed
to refer such offer to Councll for approval. T have confirmed by
‘phone with Me B {en 1178780% that Mr A's offer has been
accepted.

{j) 1 am af the view thai the conclusion reached is a reasonable one,
bearing in mind that—

{i} the exiding fence cost Mr A nothing:

(i} modification will cost only $25.00 instend of the [ull cost of
the work {cstimated at $100 or morel;

{iii} the existing femce blends in fairly well with the lopography
of the area and the acsthetic problems will be Iorgely over-
coqmie with time as Mr A% trees and shrobs grow;

{iv) Council's acceprance af Mr A’ affer reflects an ndmission on
Counctl’s part that it must bear o large part of the blame for
the sitpation which arose,”

1 agreed with the view expressed by my officer. | concluded my inquiries on
the basiz that, whilst T regarded the complaint to have been sustained, in view of ihe
action taken by Council, I took no further action in terms of the Ombudsman Act.

SYDNEY COUNTY COUNCIL

Proposed Position of Power Pole

My complainant said that he was nol satisied with the method that Council

proposed 1o adopt in order to supply power to his proposed pew residence located at
the end of a “dead-end™ sircet where the terrain could only be deseribed as difficult.

Council proposed to erect 3 5§ metre high service pole, at the end and on the
corner of his driveway on the street boundary and the complainant contended that
this would render pccess o his property most difficult and somewhat dangerous, not
only for him but for his neighbour as well. He had spproached Council supgesting that
the supply cables be placed underground (he offered to pay the cost of undergrounding
supply) but Council had replied in the following termis:

“. . . a further inspection has since been completed. This second inspection
has wverified that the method of supply—by aerial service—indicated to you
previously . . _ is correet and in sccordance with current Council PEHICY.
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I would point oul that Council's policy in reference to underground services
i5 that they are generally only installed in areas where the streef mains ore
plrendy wndergrownd and in your particolar case, this is not so, Therefore, in
order to be consistent with such policy, | am unable fo accept your offer to
pay the cost of undergrounding & supply cable from Council’s mains pole to
your premises and an asrinl service will be provided,

However, it may be advantageous to discuss the use of o common service
post with the owner of Lot Mo, 3 to reduce the aumber of service poslts on
the street alignment as this would enhance the aesthetic appearnnce of the
subsdivision."

The complainant then wrote to me as he felt that Council wos being quite
inflexible in its approach and was not properly laking into account the special circum-
stances that exdsted, namely—

narrow driveway;

non-existent footpaths;

marrow streci;

lack of sdequate irning ares af the emd of the sireed,

He suggested, in his letter 1o me, that another alternative might be fo set back
the service pole from the sireet boundary onte his property, in order 1o get it away
from the corner of his and his neighbours’ driveways. This would mean the overhead
wires would have to eross his neighbour's drivewny bat, he said, his neighbour was
willing 1o agree to this order to make acoess easier,

I referred the matter 1o the General Manager of the County Councll, outlining
all that the complainant had said,

The General Manager subsequently wrote to me and, Infer olis, sald—

“The matter wos further discussed by (the complainant) and an oflcer of (s
Council but o other suitable alternative could be agreed upon.

Une alternative, namely setting back the service post, was not in the ortginal
complaint {to Council) and was nod suggested 1o (the complainant) for ihe
following reasons:

If the private service post was set buck from the fromt aligament it would
be necessary for the service wires to cross private property which would
require the agreement of the owners of such property.

It bas been this Council's experience that such methods of supply have been
a constant source of disagreement befween the parties concerned fnvolving
each in unnecessary expense o resolve amd 15 not 1o be recommended. An
overall review is to be carried out on the policy of undergrounding existing
overhead mains and should this review affect the method of supply to (the
complainant’s) residence then he will be immediately notified.”

I was not entively convinced by the General Manager's reply and, therefore,
arranged for the sile to be inspected, Following the inspection, T wrote to the General
Manager and said—

“{The complainant) claims that erection of a service post in the position pro-
posed by Council will render access difficult, particularly as. in dus course, a
bome s to be built directly ot the end of (the street). Having viewed the
locale, it seems to me that his claims have some validity.

He claims that his oeighbours . . . are prepared to give him permission in
writing to allow the power lines to cross their property if the service post is
a2l back from the street frootage and, whilst the views vou have expressed
in this regard hove been noded, it seems fo me thal the mater i essentially
one between the residents and ought not be o major concern of Council's,
provided there are no technical factors rendering the requested relocation of
the service post impractical. T am informed that the (neighbours) are not
keen fo have the service post lecated in the position that Council proposes.

Simlarly, T note that (the complainant] is prepared to pay the cost invalved
in undergrounding a supply cable from Council’s maina pole in order to pvoid
perial supply at all. I note, too, thot Council’s reason for rejecting this proposi-
tion is because policy dictntes that underpround services “are generally only
installed in areas where the street mains are already underground™ and
Council desires to be “consistent with such policy™,

This seems bo me (o indicate that on occasion, Council’s policy is depanied
from. As (the complainant) is prepared to meet the cost involved, 1 am
somewhat at a kess to understand why it B 30 important for Council 1o be
“consistent” with its policy in this case, unless, of course, there are technical
considerations which militale against the undergrounding of the sipply eable
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In the absence of any such considerations, T would be concerned thal Coun-
cil's decision appenrs (o be based entirely on being “consistent”™ and has not
properly faken account of the potentinl difficultics in respect of access that
the complainant will face.

In all the circumstances, 1 am of the view that the aliernatives put forward
by (the complainant) should receive further comsideration, particularly the
question of underground supply. . . "

Shorily thereafter, and a5 a result of a request 1 made, the complainant for-
warded to me a letter from his neighbours across whose driveway the wires would have
to go if the service post was set back from the street boundary. That letter said—

"This is to confirm that we have no objection to the crossing of power frans-
mission lines over our property. We concur with a location of a pole approxi-
mately 4 meires from the street boundary and on the property of (the
complainant), resulting in the above line crossing. The pole should be of such
a height to give a minimum chenrance of 4 metres and preferably 5 metres
clearance sbove pround st any poinl Over owr property.

We In fact prefer the above location to a pole at the street boundary adjacent
to our property, due 1o the danger of wvehicle collision with the latter
location,”

1 sent that letter on to the General Manager who later wrote fo me and said—

“] wish to npdvise that the problem is now resolved,

Generally 1 am reluctant to agree fo service lines crossing adjacent properties
as even though the cwner may give conseni in writing, it has been found
that the agreement is not binding on any subsequent owners. For this

reason registered casements are generally required. However, in some diffi-
cult siluations & property crossing is the best solution and as the owners of

the adjacent property . . . have given such permission the work will proceed
on this basis,

The conditions imposed by (the neighbours), that a pole be erected on (the
complainant’s) property approximately 4 metres from the streed boundary
and that a minimum ground clearance of 4 metres, preferably § medres,
be maintained, are satlsfactory.”

1 informed the complainant that, whilst 1 regarded his complaint to have been
sustained, in view of Council’s agreement (o set back the service post, | proposed faking
the matter no further and 1 concluded my inguiries.

SYDNEY COUNTY COUNCIL

Failure to Inform Affected Residents of Proposals

I received o complaint about the erection of an electricity distribution kiosk
in the vicinity of the complainants home. He contended that the kiosk could have
been located further along the street in a recreation reserve or, even, undergroond.
My investigation satisfied me that those contentions were simply not practicable.

However, during my investigntion it became apparent that, as claimed by the
complainant, no effort had been made to notify local residents affected by the kiosk
of the proposal to erect it Only the local council had been informed and, affer
initially raising ohjections, thut Council had eventunlly agreed to the location proposed
by Sydoey County Council.

Shortly after the kiosk was erected, several residents, including the complainant,
objected to the local Council. The latter, apparently fortified by the wiews expressed
by the local residents, renewed its objections to the proposed location of the kiosk.
There followed inspections of the site by representatives of the local Council and
Sydney County Council with the result that the kiosk was moved 90 degress so that
it no longer stood parnllel to the street but at right angles to it. was moved slightly,
the area was landscaped and shrubs were planted.

1 was concerned that there had been no attempt to involve the focal residents
in discussions regarding the kiosk’s location, particularly in view of the advice 1 had
received from the Chdef Engineer of the Councll Council that it was “. . . not practicable
to involve local residents in these discussions other tham through their elected repre-
sentatives and Council always endeavours to co-operative fully with the local council™.

1 wrode to the General Manager and said that 1 found it difficult to accept that
this was so, I went on Do say—

"Iy this case, following objections having been received from the loeal residents
by (thel Council about the original siting of the kiosk, the kiosk was furned
through 90 degrees and moved closer to the public pathway (in othes



words, it was relocated), T cannmot see why bocal nffected residenmfs camnot
be informed of proposaks of this nature and be given the opportunity to
siate any objections they might have. In this case, the kiosk was installed
and then had o be relocated becawse local residents were not fold of the
proposal and consulted beforehand. Had they been notified of the proposal
1o erect the kiosk, it does mot appear 1o be beyond the realm of possibility
that, as & result of consideration of their objections before the kieak was
erccted, the compromie solutbon later found (foflowing Council's approach
1 you ) might have been found and acied upon, rendering eventual relocation
unnecesary,

T iy nod knew how much extea i cost to relocate the kiosk: however, not
only might this cost have been saved, but the cost, as well of the further
investigations and inspections thot had 1o be carried out™

The General Manager replisd and said—

“. . . it is central to oll of this Council's polickes, ax a frading under-
taking, 1o endenvour to establish and maintain the best poscible relntions with
its cuwstomers. Accordingly, it would ceriainly be ihe praclice to discuss
matters such as the siting of distribution substations with local residenits i this
had been found to be helpful in avoiding disputes. Unfortunately, whatever
merils such a procedure may eppear 10 have in theory, it is simply unwork-
able in practice.

It is for this resson that the existing procedure has been developed wherehy
the local councl is advised of all substation proposals and invited to par-
ticipate in the selection of the site so that the matter can then be considered
by the council’s works commitiee and n preference cxpressed taking into
gecount the overall interests of the whole local community. At various limes
ower the years different councils have sought to invelve residents in these
discussions and deliberations either in purticular cases or as o matter of general
policy. All such attempts have been short-lived since it is found in practice
that with rare exceptions all property owners strongly opposc any site
adjscent fo their own premises and press for & site &5 remote from them as
possible, This also applies, but to 8 lesser extent, to poles, sireet Hghts, trafic
signs, bus stops and all other streel furndiure.

The result in practice is that vehement dissent rapidly develops between the
residents themselves; objective discussion becomes impossible; opposing pres-
wures are exericd on aldermen with the result that the local council becomes
unwilling to deal with the matter thus defeating the whole purpose of con-
sultation. This is also the experience of local councils in o wide range of other
matters and 1 em firmly of the opinion that it is best beft to local councils to
determine the cases in which substation proposals, of which they are notified,
should be discossed with residents.

You suggested in your better that in the case of (this) complaint any prob-
lem may have been avoided had the local residents been informed of the pro-
pesal and consulted beforchand, The whole of this Council’s experience in
dealing with this matter over many years is to the contrary.

The site originally selected in conjunction with (the local) Council was
entirely suitable. The position was Fater improved by turning the kiosk through
90" but this Involved removing existing chrubs and I can recall no previous
case in which a local council has been willing to have shrubs removed from a
footway for this purpose. It seems to me more than likely than had the
final orientation of the kiosk been the one originally suggested it would still
have been necessary to moke some change (o satisfy the complaint. As far
as costs are concerned, the cabling of the kicsk had not been installed zo
that the cost of re-orientation was of a8 minor amount."

Adter consbdering all that he had had to say, T wrote to the General Manager
again and sapd—

“I furn mow to the guestion of notifying local affected residenis of sub-
station siting proposals. 1 have noted, but must confess that | find some
difficulty in agrecing with, all that you have had o say in this regard. I
concede that telling people aboud proposals of this nature can pencrate
opposition, This is not uncommon where other public authorities and local
government authorities notify people of their various proposals (e.g., Main
Rieads) but the autherities do not cease to do so amply becouse opposition o
their progoanls B generated.

I am firmly of the view that where it is possible to do so, people should be

told by public awhoritles about proposals which will or might affect them.
They should be entitled fo state their views, to have iheir views properly
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comadered, and, where their views canngd prevail, to be told why this & the
case, unless there are overwhelming reasons which Indicate that this should
nad oo,

You will Torgive me if 1 say that the tenor of your argument appears o be
ane of “telling people causes problems and, therefore, people should not be
todd'. ¥ou say that it is best left fto local councils to determine the coses
in which subsiation propesals, af which they are notifted, should be discussed
with residents. | cannot entirely agree, even though [ see value in continuing
1o involve the becal councily the propoesal, after all is yours, not coungils, and
s 19 the respopsibility to inform,

Perhaps the solution lies somewhere between the approaches that you and 1
have advocated. In this regord, T can see that the local council may be in a
much beiter position to quickly determine which local resideniz are most
affected and should, therefore, be notified. The weakness in this approach, of
course, is that some councils might not notify anyone, This weakness mighi
be removed, tooa large extent. if the County Council, as well as notifying the
kscal cosimeil, gave general nodice of s propossls, for example, by adveriise-
ment in o local newspaper eirculating in the area concerned, Another sugges-
tion which might deserve considerstion, would be fo place a notice on the
site selecied.

Despite what you say about the original location of this particular sub-
station, vou cleady say that the present position is an improvement on the
aofiginal and this was achieved becaure o local resident raised obpections and
ihe matter was looked at again. It is not merely a question of finding a loca-
tion ‘entirely suvilable’ o the County Councll, but one of finding the most
suitable location, bearing in mimd the needs and views of the County Council,
the local council and the Iocal residents. Similarly, vou have nod denied that
some extra ¢ost was incurred (' minor amount'), cost which might have
been avoided il the matter had been looked ot apain before construction.

In this case, vou have expluined quite clearly, in my wview, why the sub-
station could not be located clsewhere or underground. Had this explani-
tion been given to local residemts, including the complainant, in & process
of notification such as 1 am suggesting, {the complainant) may not have been
moved to complain ot all, Even if he had sill complained, his complaint
would certainly have been disposed of much more quickly than has been the
case because. in my view, whilst he may nod have been happy with the
eventual decision. at least he would have been notilied of the proposal and
been able fo raise his objections and have them considered, Mo citizen
can repsonnbly expect more bat he should not be asked to expect lese™

The General Manager replied—

“I gertainly agree with vour contention that, to wse yoaur wonds, “people should
be told by public suthorities about proposals which will or might affect them.
They should be entitled 1o state their views, to have their views properly
considered, and, where their views connot prevail, o be told why this is the
case’,

I§ seems to me thal the only essential dilference between the opinions we
have ench expressed i confined 1o the means by which people can best be
advised of projects in their locality.

The Sydney County Council’s presenl practice stems from its special relation-
ship with s eonstifuent councils, which s somewhat different from the
relationship between those councils and other public authorities,

The fact that the councillors of the Svdney County Council are eecied by
the aldermen of the constituent councils has given the latter a strong voice in
all matters affecting their areas and has made councillers more willing 1o leave
consultnfion with residents to aldermen, as the directly elected local represen-
intives, than might otherwise have been the case, Wevertheless, it is certainly
true that the ultimate responsibility for the siting of distribution substations
rests with this Council,

As T indicated in my lasd letter to you, the comparatively small oumber of
complaints received in refation to the Council’s very extensive works pro-
gramme s a messure of the efectiveness of present procedures. Neverthe-
less, any practicable measure which may reduce the incidence of public
objections to an even lower level is certainly worth a trial and your proposal
that the Council should give general notice of substation projects seems o
me o be o reasanable one,

On » matier of deiail, an advertement in a local newspaper would be
unlikely to come to the atlention of non-resident properly OWReTs W_hn
may have s grenter inferest than resident tenants. Furthermore, Council’s
peneral experience with advertisernents in local newspapers has been far from
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satisfactory. Circulation i3 unrediable in many cases. Abo the frequency
of publication and the exient to which local newspapers are read both wary
considerably throughout the Sydney County District. For this reason it is
established practice to publish all public notices in the Sydney Morning
Herald and I belicve that this would be the more effective way of bringing
new projects fo public attention.

1 propose to adopt your proposal with this modification on an extended trial
for paelve months and I trust that experience over that perjod will prove it
to b worthwhile.

Lecal councils and other interested public authorities will, of course, continue
to receive direct advice of projects ax in the past”

1 was plessed to note that a system of notification was to be adopted on a trial
basis and 1 concluded my inguiries.
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APPENDIX B

STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDIMG

A0 JUNE. 1981

EXPLANATORY MNOTES TO STATISTICS

NO JURISDICTION—

-
=

Mot Public Authority under the Ombudsman Act.

., Conduet of class described in Schedule 1o Ombudsman Ad—ie., excluded by

Schedule, ¢.g.. courts, employver/emplayes, Parole Board, efc,

3. Conduet or complaint out of time—i.c., in respect of public authorities other than
local powvernesent authorities the conduct took place before 18th Oictober, 1974
and in respect of local government authorities the conduct took place before 18t
December, 1976,

DECLINED—

4. Gepernl discretion, e.g., complaing premature of concurfent fepresentations meade
to the public asthaorty,

5 In sufficient inferest, trading or commercial function, alternale and satisfactory
mieans of redress, complaint trivial, frivolous, vexatious or nof in good faith.
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11.
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These often involve those in o grey area where the investigation of the complaing
is discontinued following some action by the awthority although it i not clear
whether or not there has been any wrong conduct by the public suthority,
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PART 11

POLICE REGULATION (ALLEGATIONS OF MISCONDUCT) ACT,

Statisti

For the period 1st July, 1980, 1o the 30th June, 1981, I received a total of 830
complaints; this i an increase over the previous year. In addition 311 complaints were
under investigntion, having been received prior to the 3(th June, 1980. Of this total
of 1141 complaints, 571 were still under investigation at the 30ih June, 1981, The
balance of 570 complaints represented 811 allegations and of these 32 were not within
jurisdiction, 55 were declined and 79 were not proceeded with. Conciliation was
effected in respect of 129 allegations, 456 allegations were not sustained and 60 were
sustained,

Staff

The Assistant Ombuedsman, o Senior Investigation Oficer, wo lnvestigation
Officers, an Interviewing Officer and a Stenographer dealt with complaints ander the
Peolice Regulation {Allegations of Misconduct) Act, 197E.

Concillation

There has been an increase in the use of conciliation to deal with complaints.
In my last Report I referred to this and indicated that 42 complaints were conciliated
up to the 3Mh June, 1980, In the period to the 30th June, 1981, concilintion bas
been achieved in 120 cases.

Public Mischief

In one case a complainant whose complaint was found not sustained was
charged with public mischief and convicted. T understand that he has appealad againat
the conviction, 1 should like 1o express my concern at the use of this charge against a
person who has brought o complaint lo my Office.

Greneral

Cenerally speaking, the matters which were the subject of comment by me in
previous Reports were still of concern to me during this last year. In fact the position
became more difficult in one respect, in that the Commissioner of Folice during the
year issued a direction to Police throughout the State that should members of the
Ombudiman’s stafl communicate with them by telephone with respect to any maotter
then they should be advised that the inquiry should be conveyed in writing to the
Commissioner. “This direction did not assist In the completion of investigation of
complaints.

Challenge to my Jurisdiction

Dwuring the year 1 successfully defended proceedings brought against me by two
Police Officers. The matter was decided by Mr Juslice Rogers in the Supremea Court
of Mew South Wales Administrative Law Division on the 28th April, 1981, An appeal
has been lodged against the decision. I have set owt in full His Honour's reasons for

judgment in Appendix C of this Report.
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APPENDIX C

Boyd v, The Ombudrmon & Anor
Tudgrment

HIS HONOUR: On the 4th December, 1979, Mr L. A. O'Hara interviewsd Inspector
Crawford of the Mew South Wales Police Force. He claimed that on that day he
observed two officers of the Force travelling in a police car norih i
Sydney. The vehicle commenced to make a right band turn east into Hay
Al the time the traffic lights at the intersection were green to traffic travelling
and south in George Street, but not turning armow was illuminated. According to
Mr O°Hara the action of the police vehicle forced a Ford sedan travelling south in
George Strect to brake and swerve. After the two vehicles came to a stop, the police
officers appeared 1o Mr O'Hara to book the driver of the Ford, presumably for an
alleged infraction of the traffic laws. Mr O'Harz was of the view that there had besn
no offence committed by the driver of the Ford motor car,

Subsequent inquiry revealed that the driver of the police car was Coostable
First Class Boyd. He apparently fssued a traffic infringement notice to the driver of the
Ford, Mr J. L. Torrejon. The notice asserted to Mr Torrejon disobeyed a traffic control
light signal which the Constable claimed bad been red at the time when Mr Torrejon's
vehicle entered the intersection.

Mr O'Harn's written statement to the Polics was treated as a complaint within
the meaning of the Police Regulation {Allegations of Misconduct) Act, 1978 (“the
Act™) and & copy forwanded to the Ombudsman,

Thereafter investigations were carried out on behalf of the Commissioner of
Police and on the 30th April, 1980, its fruits were forwnrded to the Ombudsman.
Inchuded in the material was a statement by Constable Boyd which stated, inter alin,
that &s be was execuling his right hand tum into Hay Street, the lights were red with
respect to traffic travelling north and south in George Street and that in obedience to
the traffic signal, vehicles in the first and third south bound lane bad coms fo & stand-
#ill. However, the Ford was travelling at speed and passed through the intersection
in disobedience to the traffic signal and for that reason the driver was issued with a
traffic infringemnent notice. Sergeant Wade who was the observer in the police vehicle
also subscribed to a report to the same cffect. His stafement further containe an alleged
admision by Mr Torrejon that the traffic light was red against him when he travelled
through the intersection.

The inguirics disclosed that, as permitted by the relevant Act, the infringement
notice wns satisfied by Mr Torrejon making a payment of the prescribed penalty.

In his letter of the 30th April, 1980, the Commissioner expressed the view
that—

E’

“Tt ¢con be clearly seen that the complainant’s allegations are incorrect. The
police vehicle, at the time of furning right into Hay Street, was legally entitled
to do so. The driver of the other wehicle concerned, Mr Torrejon, has
admitted to disobeving & red traffic conirol light signal at this intersection.
The penalty for this offence has been satisfied.

From the information before me, T am satisfied that the allegations mads by
Mr O'Harn have not been substantisted and accordingly, I propose no further
departmental sction,™

After considering the maferial that he recelved, the Ombudiman wrote to Mr

O'Hara a letter dated 10th June, 1980, in which he sald—

*“The information provided by the two policemen b5 at varance to your
allegntion, Based on the information supplied by the police, Constable Boyd
was. legally entitled to turn right into Hay Strest when he did. Under the
circumstances, 1 have decided that your complaint has not been sustained.”

The Ombudsman further informed Sergeant Wade and Constable Boyd that he
had decided that the complaint had not been sustained.

Mr O'Harn was not prepared to let the matier rest there and apparently
contacted an officer in the service of the Ombudsman. As a result of the discussion
Mir O'Hara had with this officer, the Ombudsman again wrote to the Commissioner on
the 27ih June, 1980, draowing attention to certain matters which Mr O'Hara had
reported. In substance, attention was drawn to o claim that the police car made its
right hand turn in vielation of an illominated sign forbidding the execution of right
hand twms from George Sireet inte Hay Street. The Ombudsman went on:
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“Under the circumstances, Mr O'Hora's complaint should be further investi-
gated, particularly in respect of the operntion of the 'no right turm® sign.
I consider that, in addition to any other inguiries you may wish 1o have
carried out, the driver of the yellow Falcon sedan, registered number HFN=
483, Mr 1. L. Torrejon, as well as the complainant, Mr L. A. O'Hars, should
be interviewed,"

The Commissioner of Police did as he was bidden. In a statement he made to
Inspector Gleeson, Mr Torrejon asserted that the Hghts were green in his favour when
he wend ihrough the intersection of George and Hey Sireeis, and that he so informed
police in response 1o Sergeant Wade's claim that the light was red. He denied
aking the ndmission aitribuied to him by Sergeant Wade and asserted that be paid the
because he did not wish to become “involved im any hassles®. There waa
erial brought to light which sugpested that the police wehicle may have mado
turn inte Hay Street contrary to the traffic rules obtaining at the relevant
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the Tth August, 1980, Constable Boyd was fumished with copies of the
statements which had been obtained by Inspector Glesson, and instructed to
a full report. The present proceedings were thereafter commenced for a
on that the Ombudsman had no power to require or request the Commissioner
of Police to make further investigations into the conduct of Constable Boyd, in the
light of the Ombudsman’s determination of the 10th June, 1980, that Mr O'Hara's
complaint had not been made out.

In order to understand the competing submissions, it is necessary to look at the
framework within which the Ombudsman and Commissioner of Police were
in relation te Mr O'Hara's complaint. The Ombudsman is a creature of
stalule, establisbied by the Ombudsman Act, 1974, However his powers and functions
for present purposes are to be found in the Act. Section 5 (1), requires that complaints
made in sccordance with Part 1 of the Act about the conduct of o member of the
Police Force, should be dealt with in accordunce with the provisions of the Act.
Subsection (1) provides that—

“A person may not make a complaint in accordance with this Part about the

conduct of a member of the police fores f—

(#) he has already made another complaint about the same conduct and
that other complaint (iii) has been adjudicated upon after investiga-
n'mIIF

He f

|

Section 9 requires the Commissioner to send any complaini that be receives
to the Ombudsman, Section 17 permits the Commisioner to cause a complaint to be
investigated and he is reguired to make an investigation if the Ombudiman so deter-
mines. In the present case, the decision to investigate was that of the Commissloner.

Section 19 indicates broadly the persons in the pofice force who should carry
out the investigation and section 23 reguires such investigator to make a report to ithe
Commissioner, together with coples of all statements taken and all ofther documents
upon which the report @ based. Tt will be observed therefors, that certainly wup o
this point, the Ombudsman’s role in the enlire matter is resiricied to the receipt of
information as to the making of complaint and to the fact that the complaint is being
investigated, In any casz, the most that he can have done in other dcrcomsiances,
is 1o instruct the Commissioner to have an investigation made.

Once an investigation has been concluded, the Commissioner is required to
send & copy of the report and other documents to the Ombudsman, together with such
comments & the Commissioner thinks fit and to specify what action should, in the
opinion of the Commisioner, be taken with respect 1o the complaimt. Power is con-
ferred on the Ombudsman fo reguire additional information which he condidess neces-
sary to enable him to determine whether the complaint bad been properdy investigated
once he receives the information I have jint mentioned. Section 25 nextly provides
that—

(1) Where, after receiving the information referred o in section 24, the
Ombodsman is not satisfied that the comploint to which the information
relates was properly investigated, be shall report to the Commissioner
accordingly, specifyving what are. in his opinion, the defleiencies in the
investigation,

(2) Upen receipt of o report wnder suhsection (13, the Commisioner shall
cause 8 further investigation fo be conducted in order fo remedy the
deficiencies referred to in the repord.

(3) Thiz Part {including this section) applies 1o and in respect of a forther
investigation under this section in the same way ps it applies to an
inltin] investipation."
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Seclions 17-26 are in Part IV of the Act beaded “lovestigations’. Pari V is
headed “Reports™ and section 27 provides—

“Where, after conssderatzon all the materinl and mlormation provided for him
under Part IV with respecl to a complaind, the Ombudsman is satisfied that
ithe eomplaint has oot been sustained, be shall 5o report to—

(a) the complanant;

(b} the Commisssoner; and

(e] the member of the Police Force whose conduct was the subject of the

complaint,™
Where bowever the Ombudsman bs satisfied that the complaint relates to an

action which for one reason or another was improper or that the complaint was other-
wite sustpined, he shall compile a report giving ressons for his conclosions, He i
further required fo recommend what action should thercafter be taken. The Ombads-
man is required to inform the Minister of what he iz proposing to recommend and
senid a copy of his report o the Miobter and to (he Commisdoner, whilst i turn (e
Commpsioner 15 required to give a copy to the member of the Police Force affected.
It is then for the Commissioner to notify the Ombudsman of any action proposed
or taken, and the only resource to o dissatisfied Ombuedsman is o make & repart
to the Minister For presentation to Parliament {scction 30). Upder section 33, where
the Ombudsman is of the opinion that & member of the Police Force is or may be
guilly of serious misponduct warronting his dismissal, removal or punihment be is
required to report his opinion to the Misister and o the Commisshoner, giving his
TERECDS,

It may thizss be observed that although m a given case it may be the Ombuds-
man who may decide 10 have a complaint investigated, the actual conduct of the
invesligation is in the hands of the Commissioner of Police, although the Ombudsman
may request further steps to be faken in the course of or relating to the investigation.
Further, when the investigation is completed the Ombudsman is in no position to take
any action beyond the moking of recommendations and reports. The im
of those recommendations and reports & for the Minister and the Commissioner,
respectively,

Ii Is convenient io deal with the respective confention of the parties by referring
it the thres submizssions of Coussel for the defendant for the dismissal of the Summons.
Counsel submmitted—

(1) there wos no justification to grant the reliel sought because the plaintil
lacked standing:
(2} the Ombudsman was the wrong and inappropriate defendant;

(3) the Ombodsman had acted in proper exercoe of his powers under asction
25 of the Act in calling for a funber nvestigation.

In support of the first submission, it was pointed out that the Ombudsman
makes no determination of any rights, he does not investigate, e merely superviss
the work done by the Commissioner of Police and his reports and recommendations
Iack any legn! force or effect. Attention was drawn to the judgment of the Full Couart
of the Supreme Court of Western Australin in B, v. Diron 1979 W.AR. 116. Prohibi-
tion was there soughl against the local vanant of the Ombudsman, the Parliamentary
Commissioner for Administrative Tnvestigotions, A submission in the same sense as
the one presently under consideration succeeded. For relevant purpeses, the Ombuds-
man's powers are substantially the same & those of the Commissioner apd in the
leading judgment, the Chief Justice expressed the view that the functions of the
Commissioner can be likened fo those of o Royal Commissioner. For this reason, he
considersd that the reasoning of Stephen, J in B v. Colline ex parte ACTU—Sols
Eaterprizes Pry Limired (1976) 50 AcT:-1:R 471, was applicable and the prerogative
writ refused.

Stephen, J in the declsion referred (o, sald ot p. 475—

“With the situation in all thess cases may be cootrasied the position in the
present case. Whatever may be the tenor of the Commission’s Report, it
will not legally affect the rights of the applicant; with or without such a
report, and even, no doubt, in direct opposition (o any recommendations
in it, the Minister might, in his absolute discretion, take action affecting the
applicant’s crude oil entitlerments, or might decide to take no action at all,
Accordingly, the nature of the Commissions Report nefther direcily affects
nor in any way subjects to @ pew bazard the rights of the applicant; the
hazard of ministerial intervention has alweys been present and it i only
the degres of likelihood of that imervention occurting in a sense adverss
to the applicant’s interests which is [nereased by the nctual nature of the
Commissfon’s recommendation. That cannod., in my view. suffice to justify
curial interventbon, by means of cerviorori, in the cnse of a Roval Com-
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maswn whose sole function is to Inquire and report 10 the Executive the
result ol its inq_lL]l'iH, whiose mode ol EnndutﬁnE ils ]nq_uir_l," s q.nLiJ'l:I]r
unfettered, cither by statute or by executive direction, and whose report
neither directly affects rights nor is o condition precedent to the affecting
of them."

The fact that the Ombudsman's Report may not of its own force affect the
rights of a member of the Police Foree may in an analogous way affect the standing
of the plaintiff in an application for a declaration {Hretiimpharm-Moore v. Mundelpality
of 5t Leonardr (1969) 121 CL.R. 509 & 524,

It s undesirable that this question which i of eritical comsequence 1o the
operation of the Ombudsman's Office, should be decided in the present case, haviog
regard o the conclusion o which I have come in relation to the third submission.

As 1o the second submission, Counsel bas drawn auention to the fact that
there is no dispute as between the Commizsioner of Police and the Ombudsman,
further it is the Commissioper of Police who has called for & report from Constable
Boyd. Although it is frue that it was the Ombudsman who prompted the Commis-
sioper Lo make further inquities, there can be o doubt that in the lght of the
furtber information which has come to light, the Commissioner of Police would pursue
his inguiries whether or oot the Ombudsmon had scted within power or not In
instigating the further investigation. It is impossible to conceive that faced with such
& $eriows situation, the Commissioner would not, in any event, conduct precisely the
same inguiry and investigation which he had in train when the Summons ssued. In
other words, the remedy scught by the plaintiff is, in a sense, useless, because insofar
a3 be may be desirous of bringing the investigation w an end, that must be a forlorn
hope. However, it is unnecessary and undeairable that I should determine the matter
on this basis, becawse [ think if is imporiant that the Ombudsman’s powers and
position be clarified.

It & beyond doubl, as was put by Counsel for the plaintiff, that the varioos
steps to be taken in ihe investigation of a complaint are coumerabed in & sequence
which then culminate in the receipt by the Ombudsman of all the material and
information and making of a report by him. In other words, provision for furiher
investigntion in seclion 25 precedes sequentially in the struciure of ihe Act, the
Ombudsman’s report, which in the eveni that be considers the complaint unjustified,
brings his aclivities o an end in relation to that complaint, However, there is nothing
in the words of section 25 ilsclfl which deny the opporienity of Turther investigation
after & repont had been made pursvant o section 27, Counsel for the defendont sub-
mits that no such limitation exises,

It & important to consider the competing submisitons in the light of two
features of the Act. Firstly, the Act establishes a most elnborale system, the ultimate
purpose of which must be to ensure that consisiently, with fairness and duc protection
to police officers, complaints against them are fully and properly investigated under
the supervision of an independent entity, the Ombudsman, The Court should be
slow to construe the Act in such o way that the powers of investigation are clreum-
scribed, There may be a multitude of reasons for wanting an investigation to re-open
after a report is made wnder section 27, The deficiency in an investigation may not
af once be apparent. A new Wilnegss may emergs, wome other new cvidence, say
photographs, tapes, ma¥ come fo light, one or more of the witnesses may decide to
change their story. Bearing in mind the purpose of the Act, & the community to be
denicd the protection of full and complete imvestigation pursuant to the Act, merely
because, perhaps erroncously, an initial report has been made under section 27 holding
& complaint not o be justified? That the answer to this question should be in the
nepative is supported by the other feature of the Act. There is oo res judicats or
issue estoppel of any Kind created by the decision of the Ombudsman. The prohibition
contained in section 5 (iii} s direcled only to the original complainani. There @
nothing to preclude another person making & complaint in relstion to the same
incident. What policy advantage is (o0 be perceived in holding that although another
investigation may be institufed by the making of a fresh complaint by someone, even
after o report under section 27 in relation fo another person’s complaint, the initial
mvestigation cannot be re-opened. The filier which the Act prescribes for preventing
improper harrassment of police officers by the making of fresh complaints by different
members of the public in relation fo the same iscident 5 the discretion which the
Commissioner and the Ombudsman have in determining whether an investigation
should be carried out,

There is, a5 1 bave said, 0o time bl stated in section 25, The only temporal
criteria set out Is the prior receipt of the information referred io in section 24,

In my view, the Act is susceptitle of the inferpretation sought to be bestowed
on it by Counsel for the Ombudsman and that interpretation is the one which properly
gives effect to the evident purposes and requirements of the Legislation.

The Summons will be dismised. The plaintiff will pay the defendant's costs
Exbibits may be handed out




